
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, December 18, 2024

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

24-1600 Common Council Meeting Minutes of December 4, 2024

CC Minutes 12-4-24.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

24-1521 Parade Committee Awards Presentation

 

24-1599 Confirmation of Appointment

Dec 18 2024 Council Appointment Memo.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25300
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=527c9bba-83eb-4df8-9768-0dba97577790.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25221
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25299
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33af57a4-f3bf-4910-ae8c-4641b73956ca.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1562 Approve 2025 Morrison Street Asphalt Reconstruction Traffic Calming 

Design Changes.

Morrison St Design Changes 12-09-2024 .pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1563 Award 2025 Contract for Operation, Maintenance, and Monitoring at the 

Closed City of Appleton Landfill to SCS Engineers, in an amount not to 

exceed $76,361.

Award 2025 SCS Mackville 12-09-2024 .pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1564 2025 Sole Source Purchase Request - Various Traffic Equipment & 

Technologies

Sole Source Purchase Request - Traffic Equipment 2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

24-1495 Operator License for Crystal Williams.

Crystal Williams Application.pdf

Crystal Williams Clerk's Letter.pdf

Crystal Williams denial letter.pdf

Crystal Williams supplemental denial.pdf

Crystal Williams Operator License Memo.pdf

Letter provided by Crystal Williams 12.11.24.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

Crystal Williams was present and addressed the committee.

24-1500 2025 Secondhand Jewelry, Secondhand Article, and Pawnbroker License 

renewal applications, contingent upon approval from all departments. 

 

2025 SECONDHAND.PAWN RENEWALS.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25262
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e5ab1b3-eb44-424b-af2d-ba3d2eaf0180.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25263
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8407b0ce-e382-468c-b996-2867139cdbbe.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25264
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d6a6ef52-0573-4d3c-80e8-10003787810b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25195
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2bf45400-5361-4e32-8bd3-3bf8f44321d9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=570a7846-301f-4c78-97fb-4fd97dc3084b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=93dfac41-ec9d-4fe4-931b-1377658a0a12.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=143b4165-b2c3-4a4f-b9f4-70d5f3f04afc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45c8c081-e1e1-461c-ba23-4666288749f6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0879790-7f4c-47e9-a52e-7bcb9e2af4cd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25200
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=677cada2-437e-4043-b72c-8f6503a91af4.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1501 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Sushi Lover 

in Appleton LLC d/b/a Sushi Lover, Zhen Zhen Sun, Agent, located at 527 

W. College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Community 

Development, Health, and Inspections departments. 

 

Sushi Lover in Appleton LLC.Alcohol.Class B Beer_Liquor.11.11.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1502 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Eldorado 

Moon LLC d/b/a Missfits Tavern, Hollyann Strunc, Agent, located at 317 N. 

Appleton St, contingent upon approval from the Community Development, 

Health and Inspections departments. 

 

Missfits Tavern.Eldorado Moon LLC.Alcohol.Class B Beer_Liquor.11.11.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1519 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License application for Taste of Thai 

Appleton LLC d/b/a Mad Elephant, Chisa Jitmaiwong, Agent, located at 

1222 S. Oneida St, contingent upon approval from the Community 

Development, Health, and Inspections departments. 

 

Mad Elephant.Tast of Thai Appleton LLC. Alcohol. Class B Beer_Liquor.11.25.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1506 Police Department Requests Approval of Sole Source Purchase for Load 

Bearing Vests

2025 Sole Source Memo.pdf

Armor Express - PD.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1566 Fire Department Request to Apply - Assistance to Firefighter Grant

 

Request_to_Apply_AFG_SCBA.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25201
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=15441757-4b77-46e3-a6e1-696280997e67.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25202
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dae6dbf3-c66a-473b-a907-0a45e9fc4aae.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25219
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92dfa2a9-9ff2-4763-92cc-c0df1979c02f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25206
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0d20105-2812-43fc-bf93-b32dd8adf65c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=edf8a9e3-11c3-4880-a742-844be5859669.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25266
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d60e214a-a59c-41b5-ba4d-abbaf14aa6cb.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1567 Fire Department Request to Purchase Cardiac Monitors

 

12-04-24_Request_to_Purchase_Cardiac_Monitors.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

24-1569 Request to approve the Relocation Order for the Lawe Street 

reconstruction project from College Avenue to Spring Street.

0515 - Lawe - Relocation Order (12-02-2024).pdf.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

24-1570 Request to approve contract extension for BMC ARPA Grant 

Administration Contract.

MemoContractExtension_BMCARPA.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

24-1571 Request to approve Development Agreement for Lumbini Estates (Saket, 

LLC).

0288 - Lumbini - Development Agreement - Draft 12-03-2024.pdf.pdf

LumbiniEstate_DAMemo_12052024.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

24-1572 Request to approve write off of $49,609.68 of accounts receivable invoices 

and $23,407.02 of personal property taxes (outstanding over one year).

AR Write Off List 2024.pdf

PP Write off List 2024.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/24 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25267
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d182f3c9-506a-4db5-8531-960465ffea91.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25269
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d634e490-aeda-44be-a951-af15a854750f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25270
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cac63f38-e83f-41ff-ac2c-bd6b8f02fad8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25271
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=92ba5656-e721-47b4-a5a4-51186ca5d098.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3cc9d740-41b3-4b7d-b9fd-c93880816078.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25272
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c60b097-d9f7-4aaa-b4fb-a3a9dc9cff61.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=477b24c4-8335-4594-8663-66cf101fc6b4.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1531 Award Organic Recycling Contractor Services to Hsu Growing Supply for 

an extended one (1) year term ending December 31, 2025.

 

241202_UCMHSU_contract extension 2025.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

24-1532 Award 2025A Stormwater Management Plan review contract to Brown and 

Caldwell in an amount not to exceed $80,000.

 

2025A BC Plan Review Award Util Memo 12-10-2024.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

24-1533 Award 2025B Stormwater Management Plan review contract to raSmith in 

an amount not to exceed $30,000.

 

2025B raSmith Plan Review Award Util Memo 12-10-2024_r1.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

24-1534 Award N-24 Spot Repairs, Protruding Taps & Mineral Deposit Removal to 

New Restoration and Recovery Services, LLC dba Aqualis, in an amount 

not to exceed $129,512.50

 

N-24 Contract Award Form w Bid Tabs.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

24-1535 Amend K-24 Native Vegetation Contract (K-24) with Robert E. Lee & 

Associates, Inc. dba NES Ecological Services by an increase of $15,000, 

from $192,345.12 to a new amount not to exceed $207,345.12.

 

K-24 NES Contract Amend Util Memo 12-10-2024.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

24-1536 Approve Contract Amendment #2 to McMahon as part of the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Grit Removal, Blended Sludge Piping and Heat 

Exchanger Replacement Project for additional design and construction 

management services in the amount of $18,900.

 

241120_Utilities Memo_HEX Project Contract Amendment2.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25231
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b45f193a-f565-470d-86aa-f80ebd316454.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25232
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0ea85cd-a261-4cdb-a71e-5fb2083212db.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25233
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fe21b2d2-e47b-45ad-ad54-6b4526309f21.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25234
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bf209a88-ed21-4c5d-9ba7-428c0949b6ef.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25235
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9d2a3d5c-6c4e-40b5-a576-d0c5774e2587.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25236
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70edd702-07a3-4b66-a8f6-12f5442a7f7d.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1580 Approval of an Engineering Services Contract for the North and Ridgeway 

Tower Coating Projects to Dixon Engineering, Inc. in the amount of 

$129,390 plus a 7.5% contingency of $9,704 for a total cost of $139,094.

 

2025_North-Ridgeway Tower Coating Services Contact Award Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Utilities Committee held

24-1598 Approve Water Rate Study Consultant.

 

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

24-1545 Approval to Over Hire for the Deputy Director Human Resources Position. 

 

Over Hire HR Deputy Director.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Human Resources & 

Information Technology 

Committee

recommended for approval

24-1546 Approval to hire CP2 Consulting for the City of Appleton Strategic Guide 

Facilitation Services. 

 

Strategic Planning RFP Memo.pdf

CP2 Strategic Plan Proposal.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Human Resources & 

Information Technology 

Committee

recommended for approval

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

24-1553 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Outagamie County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2025 Contingent on Outagamie 

County Approval

2025 Outagamie County Contract.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25280
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=85f716d4-f386-4867-af2a-69032c0e37c0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25298
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25245
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e97f55c-fbf3-4f50-bee9-4ea2865a9fc6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25246
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3722469e-8c61-4325-b4f0-46957bb33f83.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ccd225f6-0fbf-457d-9004-c19d64377713.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25253
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d3931be0-e605-4a20-8d5d-bc30f734763d.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1554 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Winnebago County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2025 Contingent on Winnebago 

County Approval

2025 Winnebago County Contract.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

24-1555 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with Calumet County for 

Specialized Transportation Services for 2025 Contingent on Calumet 

County Approval

2025 Calumet County Contract.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

24-1556 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with the City of Neenah for Northern 

Winnebago Dial-A-Ride Service for 2025 Contingent on City of Neenah 

Approval

2025 NWDAR Neenah Contract.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

24-1557 Approve the Intermunicipal Agreement with the Village of Fox Crossing for 

the Northern Winnebago Dial-A-Ride Services for 2025 Contingent on the 

Village of Fox Crossing Approval

2025 NWDAR Fox Crossings Contract.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/10/24 Fox Cities Transit 

Commission

recommended for approval

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25254
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d4fab08c-031d-4b95-84b4-dfc2aed7fe43.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25255
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=43216b6a-5587-412b-92e8-ee3c4251abc3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25256
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42e810cd-930b-4cce-ac17-ee09bbef8110.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25257
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8a5fe776-8671-4c32-bba5-5550584c1d13.pdf


December 18, 2024Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. CLOSED SESSION

24-1597 The Common Council may go into closed session according to State 

Statute §19.85(1)(e) (deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 

properties, investing of public funds or conducting other specific public 

business when competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 

session) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating items related to the 

proposed Valley Transit Mixed Use Development.  Upon conclusion of the 

closed session, the Common Council will then reconvene into open 

session.

 

T. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 8 City of Appleton Printed on 12/13/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25297


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, December 4, 2024

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Meltzer.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson Schultz appeared virtually.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake 

Woodford

Present: 13 - 

Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Patrick Hayden and 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan
Excused: 3 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

24-1517 Common Council Meeting Minutes of November 20, 2024
 

CC Minutes 11-20-24.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25217
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53f0a8d5-3860-49a9-ade5-ef84115d7076.pdf


December 4, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Patrick Hayden and 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

24-1520 Confirmation of Committee Appointments/Reappointments
 

Dec. 4. 24 Appointments.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Patrick Hayden and 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

There was no one signed up to speak during public participation.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, Alderperson Meltzer seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Patrick Hayden and 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25220
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=00e9935b-68d0-42bb-894d-53694e5f6122.pdf


December 4, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

24-1515 Request to Approve the Proposed Revised Reid Golf Course Rates 

Policy
 

2025 Reid Rates Policy Memo.pdf

Reid Rate Policy 2025 DRAFT.pdf

Reid Rate Policy 2025 REDLINE.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

24-1508 Request to award Unit Z-25 Water Main Reconstruction - Ballard Rd at 

I-41 to Advance Construction, Inc. in the amount of $366,302 with a 

8.2% contingency of $30,000 for a project total not to exceed 

$396,302.

Z-25 BID TABS.pdf

Z-25 Contract Award Form.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

24-1509 Request to award the AWWTP Painting and Crack Sealing Project 

contract to Masonry Restoration, Inc. in the amount of $103,235 with a 

15% contingency of $15,485 for a project total not to exceed 

$118,720.

AWWTP Painting and Crack Sealing Project.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

8.

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25215
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2fb329f-da92-418c-a137-76516aa1f359.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4b7471f5-efa4-471d-b991-f8f5bbca9080.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=14f5a5f2-a147-444e-af19-d171dd78f5bf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25208
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=110f9dbc-16fe-42ca-be49-9b28cf5ad98b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e2349e4d-a23e-457a-989e-3cdab9ff48ac.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25209
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4543e7f7-34cc-40fb-b555-679f3f1b5575.pdf


December 4, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

24-1518 Ordinances #169-24 to #171-24

Ordinances to Council 12-4-24.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Ordinances be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Patrick Hayden and 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:05 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson 

Brad Firkus, Alderperson Martyn Smith, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Excused: Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Patrick Hayden and 

Alderperson Patti Heffernan

3 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25218
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e6c6ad3-a423-4e94-91bf-aee37b0d3370.pdf


December 4, 2024Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 5City of Appleton



CITY OF

APPLETON
.■^o

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 18. 2024

Members of the Common ^uncil
From: Mayor Jacob A. Woodforj^
Subject: Confirmation of Appointrnent

To:

It is with pleasure that I present the following recommendation for your confirmation at the

December 18, 2024, Common Council Meeting.

Community Development Block Grant Advisory Board - New Appointment

Term ends December 2025Jenny Krikava

Jenny Krikava serves as the Community Engagement Manager at the Community Foundation of

the Fox Valley Region. She leads grant-making for the Basic Needs Giving Partnership and has

overseen the distribution of almost $12 million in philanthropic dollars in this role. Jenny has

extensive experience reviewing grant applications and recommending grant allocations and

understands needs in the community through the nature of her role. Additionally, Jenny previously

served on the CDBG Advisory Board in 2021 and has a working knowledge of the functions and

priorities of the City’s CDBG program.



 

Date:   December 9, 2024 
To:  Municipal Services Committee 
From:  Peter Neuberger, City Engineer/Deputy Director of Public Works 
Subject:  Approve 2025 Morrison Street Asphalt Reconstruction Project Design 

Changes 
 

 

The Department of Public Works (DPW) requests approval of the revised design 
parameters for Morrison Street between Wisconsin Avenue and the Glendale Avenue as 
follows: 

Upon further review of the proposed Morrison Street reconstruction project and based on 
the recent adoption of the City of Appleton’s Complete Streets Design Guide, city staff has 
proposed that the following items be added to the project: 

 Construct a traffic calming circle at the intersection of Morrison Street and Brewster 
Street. 

 Construct curb extensions (narrowing the pavement) at the Parkway Drive/Erb Pool 
Driveway intersection to serve as a traffic calming measure and to provide 
enhanced pedestrian safety. Additionally, construct a raised concrete crosswalk at 
the south side of the intersection with associated pavement marking. 
 

All other design elements are proposed to remain UNCHANGED as previously approved, 
including: 

 New asphalt pavement and concrete curb and gutter constructed to a width of 27’ 
from back of curb to back of curb.   

 Traffic calming circle to be constructed at the intersection with Lindbergh Street.  
 Existing on-street parking within the project limits would be restricted along the west 

side of Morrison Street. 



 

Date:   December 9, 2024 
To:  Municipal Services Committee 
From:  Laura Jungwirth, Director of Public Works 
   Peter Neuberger, City Engineer/Deputy Director of Public Works 
   Luke Vandenberg, Project Engineer 
Subject:  Award 2025 Contract for Operation, Maintenance, and Monitoring at 

the Closed City of Appleton Landfill to SCS Engineers, in an amount 
not to exceed $76,361. 

 

The Department of Public Works requests award of the 2025 Contract for Operation, 
Maintenance, and Monitoring at the closed City of Appleton Landfill to SCS Engineers in an 
amount not to exceed $76,361. This is the tenth year of a ten (10) year contract originally 
approved in December 2015.   

Work on this contract includes: 

 The monthly operation and monitoring of the landfill, including the necessary 
reporting to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR); 

 Regular maintenance of the site, wells, and gas system; 
 Routine scheduled replacement of one monitoring well; 
 Assistance with review of any changes proposed by the Valley Aero Modelers, who 

currently lease the site, and any proposals or concerns related to the Mackville 
quarry site; and 

 Coordination with WDNR and the landfill cap maintenance contractor. 
 

Per the memo dated December 1, 2015, the 2016 contract award requested contract 
extensions through 2025, the 2015 RFP process associated with that award, and 
satisfactory performance by the consultant.  Therefore, the Department of Public Works 
recommends awarding the 2025 Contract for Operation, Maintenance, Monitoring and 
Passive Vent Improvements at the Closed City of Appleton landfill to SCS Engineers in an 
amount not to exceed $76,361.  

Timing for this contract award is critical to ensuring response coverage availability at the 
landfill beginning January 1, 2025.  

 



Page 1 of 3 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 12/09/2024 

To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Michael Hardy, P.E., Traffic Engineer 

Subject: 2025 Sole Source Purchase Request – Various Traffic Equipment & 
Technologies 

 

This sole source purchase request is reassessed and presented annually as required by the 
City Procurement Policy.  It was last approved for calendar year 2024. 

Traffic Signal and Control Equipment 

Within the traffic signal control industry, there is a tremendous amount of proprietary 
functionality and limited interoperability.  The number of vendors servicing traffic signal 
equipment is also very limited.  For example, Traffic and Parking Control Company, Inc. 
(TAPCO), located in Elm Grove, Wisconsin, is the exclusive vendor in Wisconsin for 
Siemens traffic signal cabinet and control equipment, which the City of Appleton uses.  
Because TAPCO is designated as the exclusive rights vendor in the state by this 
manufacturer, they have exclusive knowledge for set-up, testing and servicing, beyond what 
the City is capable of performing.  There are other vendors in nearby states that carry this 
product line, but their manufacturer-vendor relationships do not allow overlap with each 
other.  Thus, the City cannot, for example, do business with Brown Traffic Products, Inc., 
which is TAPCO’s equivalent in Illinois and Minnesota. 
 
Because of this, it is common in the traffic industry that complete traffic signal control 
assemblies are sole-source purchased as complete, functional systems.  Another 
unfortunate reality is that each manufacturer’s equipment has its own proprietary firmware 
and controls, which makes it nearly impossible to competitively procure comparable 
equipment.  In this situation, TAPCO or TCC will assemble the cabinet, controller, vehicle 
detection equipment and any other integrated equipment, and perform functional testing 
prior to shipment and installation.  The advantage to this approach is it helps manage 
compatibility issues and puts responsibility on the sole source vendor to assure complete 
functionality of the system.  The disadvantage is that procured equipment is not 
competitively bid in a formal process.  The other common application in the traffic industry is 
that specifications are written to accept only one manufacturer’s products.  This gives the 
illusion of being competitive, but often only one vendor can meet the required specifications. 



Page 2 of 3 

 
In 2023, there were some big changes related to the traffic controller and software the city 
uses.  Siemens was acquired by a company called Yunex.  Yunex then changed their 
distribution to a new vendor named Mobotrex.  Several other product lines we use (Iteris, 
EDI, Polara) also transitioned from TAPCO to Mobotrex.   In 2024, the city began a switch to 
Econolite for traffic controller and software, with is exclusively purchased thru TCC.  By the 
end of 2025, the city will be exclusively Econolite. 
 

Decorative Street Lighting Equipment  

Specific items that apply are decorative lighting components involving steel poles, concrete 
poles, arms and fixtures.  One large contributing factor is the City has standardized on a 
specific appearance and quality using Stresscrete, King and Visco brand.  While there are 
other decorative brands on the market simulating a comparable look, the quality of these off-
brands has been much lower, leading to increased maintenance costs and decreased life.  
To meet the City purchasing policy, we have been competitively bidding these decorative 
lighting brands through the electrical supply chains.  While this gives the appearance of 
competitive bidding, it actually amounts to a mark-up on a product we ultimately know we 
are going to purchase.  Having considered the above, we feel sole source offers the best 
value of the City’s time and resources. 
 

LED Street Lighting 

We have standardized on products from Cooper and Philips as the preferred fixtures.  To 
comply with the City’s purchasing policy, we would have to competitively bid these two 
brands thru the electrical supply chains.  While this would give the appearance of 
competitive bidding, it would actually amount to a mark-up on the product.  Based on this, 
we feel sole source offers the best value of the City’s time and resources.  We have 
established a relationship with the manufacturers and have been advised we can purchase 
from them directly.  Where these two products are competitive with each other, we would be 
able to compare costs direct from the manufacturers which would meet the competitive spirit 
of the policy.  However, three products would be needed to satisfy the policy as written.  
Having considered the above discussion, we feel a sole source exception offers the best 
value of the City’s time and resources. 
 

Summary: 

The City Traffic Section continues to pursue equipment and services to help improve 
competition in our purchases.  When we evaluate comparable products, we try to take a holistic 
approach, considering additional software, training, stocking, etc.  We also stay in touch 
routinely with our counterparts in the traffic industry, like WisDOT, City of Green Bay, and 
Milwaukee County to help evaluate pricing when and where sole sourcing is performed.  This 
helps communicate between agencies on acceptance of alternative products.  We also pursue 



Page 3 of 3 

alternative procurement options when available through the WisDOT procurement contract.  
Where equipment is consistent with WisDOT procurement contracts, a price match is pursued. 
 
The following is the Traffic Section’s current list of equipment and services we feel it is in the 
City’s best interest to sole source for procurement: 

 
Signal Controller and Control Software: 

 Econolite (TTC) 
 
Signal Control Cabinets: 

 Mobotrex (Mobotrex & TAPCO) 

 Econolite (TTC) 
 
Signal Control Malfunction Management 
Unit: 

 Eberle Design, Inc. (Mobotrex & 
TAPCO) 

 
Loop Detector Amplifiers: 

 Eberle Design, Inc. (Mobotrex & 
TAPCO) 

 Reno A & E (TTC) 
 
Video Detection Systems: 

 Iteris, Inc.  (Mobotrex) 
 Econolite (TTC) 
 
Radar Detection Systems: 

 MS Sedco / Intersector.  (TAPCO) 
 Notraffic (TAPCO) 

 Wavetronix (TTC) 

 Iteris, Inc.  (Mobotrex) 
 
Pedestrian Pushbuttons: 

 Polara (TAPCO) 
 
Preemption: 

 GTT/Miovision (Mid America Signal) 
 
Wireless Radio Communications: 

 Encom Wireless (Mobotrex & TAPCO) 
 
Radar Speed Signs: 

 Information Display Company 

 TAPCO 

Field Network Switch: 

 Comnet (TAPCO) 
 
Railroad Interconnect Inspection Service 

 Meade & Hunt 
 
Decorative Concrete Poles & Arms: 

 Stresscrete / King Luminaire (Visual Impact 
Lighting, LLC) 

 
Decorative Steel Poles & Arms: 

 Niland Company (Visual Impact Lighting, 
LLC)Spring City (Visual Impact Lighting, 
LLC) 

 Structura Inc. 
 Candela Series (Spectrum Lighting) 
 
Decorative LED Fixtures: 

 Stresscrete / King Luminaire (Visual Impact 
Lighting, LLC) 

 Beacon Viper 
 Candela Series (Spectrum Lighting) 

 Gardco 
 
LED Street Light Fixtures: 

 Philips (Neher Electric, TAPCO) 

 Cooper Lighting (Neher Electric, TAPCO) 

 American Electric Lighting (Neher Electric, 
TAPCO) 

 
Traffic Cameras: 

 Avigilon/Aware 
 
School Zone Flasher & RRFB Controls: 

 TAPCO 

 Carmanah (Mobotrex) 
 RTC 

 Carmanah (Mobotrex) 
 

 







 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 9/11/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of Crystal Williams’ Bartender 

License Application 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Crystal Williams’ application for a bartender license.   

 

Wis. Stat §125.04(5)(a)1., does not allow issuance of licenses or permits to those with an arrest 

or conviction record unless denial would constitute prohibited employment discrimination. 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335, it is not employment discrimination for a licensing agency to 

deny an applicant based on conviction record where the circumstances of the conviction 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

 

Ms. Williams was convicted of Battery (a class A misdemeanor) in Outagamie County case # 

2019CM000863.  This offense is in violation of Chapter 940 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  

Additionally, Ms. Williams is on active supervision through the Wisconsin Department of 

Corrections.  One of her rules of probation is “Not possess or consume alcohol.”  She would be 

in direct violation of her probation rules if she were to obtain a bartender’s license. 

 

The above conviction is for an exempt offense under Wis. Stat. §111.335(1m)(b). Under Wis. 

Stat. §111.335(4)(c)2., there is no requirement for the licensing agency to state its reasons for 

denial in writing or to allow the individual an opportunity to show rehabilitation and fitness to 

engage in the licensed activity. 

 

Ms. Williams does not meet the requirement of Wis. Stat §125.04(5)(a)1. A license or permit 

related to alcohol beverages consequently may not be issued. 

 

Very Respectfully:  

 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department 



 



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM:  Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 9/16/2024 

 

RE: Supplemental Report for the Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of 

Crystal Williams’ Bartender License Application 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Crystal Williams’ application for a Bartender license.  This document 

is a supplement report with further information pertaining to Ms. Williams’ criminal history. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(2)(b) and (3)(a), it is not employment discrimination for a 

licensing agency to deny an applicant based on an arrest or conviction record where the 

circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(a)1., no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to an individual with an arrest or conviction record where the circumstances of the 

record(s) substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(b), no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to a “habitual law offender” where the circumstances of the habitual law offenses 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Also pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), if the licensing agency refuses to license an 

individual based upon arrest or conviction record, the applicant is allowed an opportunity to 

show “evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity,” unless the 

conviction(s) are for “exempt offenses.”  Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(d) provides the following 

options that the applicant may produce to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and 

fitness from a given conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  

(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 



federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 

evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Additionally, the licensing agency must consider any of the following evidence if presented by 

the individual: 

(1) Evidence of the nature and seriousness of any offense of which he or she was 

convicted. 

(2) Evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense, including mitigating 

circumstances or social conditions surrounding the commission of the offense. 

(3) The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 

(4) The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

(5) Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

(6) All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present fitness presented. 

 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

 

As noted in my previous denial recommendation letter, Ms. Williams was convicted of Battery in 

Outagamie County under case # 2019CM000863.  Additionally, she pleaded guilty to Battery 

Due to No Contest Plea in Outagamie County under case # 2021CF000866.  Because these 

convictions are “exempt offenses” under Wis. Stat. §111.335(1m)(b), there is no requirement for 

the licensing agency to state the substantial relationship between the circumstances of the 

offenses and the licensed activity in writing, or to allow the individual an opportunity to show 

rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity.  Based upon these records alone, Ms. 

Williams does not meet the statutory eligibility criteria to be granted an operator/bartender 

license. 

 

Ms. Williams is on probation for case # 2021CF000866 with one of her probation rules stating 

she shall not possess or consume alcohol.  Ms. Williams also was convicted of Possess Open 

Intoxicants in Motor Vehicle – Driver in Winnebago County case # 2023TR002565. 

 

Based upon the above record and reasoning disqualifying Ms. Williams from license eligibility, 

it is recommended that her application be denied.   

 

 

Very Respectfully:  

 

 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department     



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  12/2/24 
 
RE:  Crystal Williams, Operator License Denial 
 

 
Crystal Williams has applied for an Operator’s (Bartender’s) License and is appealing the denial 
of that application.  Below is a summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and 
an analysis of their application in this case. 
 

Summary / Conclusion 
 
The applicant has been convicted of an “exempt” misdemeanor criminal offense.  This conviction 
is for a misdemeanor with a substantial relationship to the licensed activity.  Denial on this basis 
does not constitute unlawful discrimination.  Ms. Williams does not meet the eligibility criteria 
required by §125.04(5), and therefore may not be granted any license under Chapter 125. 
  

§125.04(5) Licensing Requirements 
 
According to §125.04(5)(a)1, in order to be granted a license or permit under Wisconsin Statutes 
Chapter 125, the applicant may not have an arrest or conviction record.  This prohibition is 
subject to the requirements of various statutes prohibiting certain types of employment 
discrimination, which will be discussed below.  These statutes are §111.321, §111.322, §111.335 
and §125.12 (1) (b). 
 
§125.04(5)(b) states that “No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may, subject to 
§111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, be issued under this chapter to any person who has habitually 
been a law offender or has been convicted of a felony unless the person has been duly pardoned.”   
 
In summary, §125.04(5) prohibits the issuance of alcohol related licenses under chapter 125 to 
anybody with an arrest or conviction record, anybody with an unpardoned felony conviction, or 
anybody “who has habitually been a law offender,” regardless of whether any arrests or 
convictions exist (see State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis. 2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 
(1987)), unless failing to grant that license would constitute prohibited discrimination. 

http://www.appleton.org/


 
Prohibited Discrimination 

 
§111.322 – Discriminatory Actions Prohibited 

 
§111.322(1) specifies that refusal to license any individual on any of the bases listed in §111.321, 
which includes arrest and conviction history.  This is subject to exceptions set forth in §111.33 to 
§111.365, neither of which apply to the instant circumstances.   
 

§111.335 – Arrest or Conviction Record; Exceptions and Special Cases 
 
§111.335(3)(a)1 states that it is not employment discrimination because of a conviction record 
to refuse to license an individual where that person has been convicted of “any felony, 
misdemeanor, or other offense the circumstances of which substantially related to the 
circumstances of the particular job or licensed activity.”  In evaluating the existence of a 
substantial relationship, it is the circumstances that provide the opportunity for criminal 
behavior, the reaction to responsibility, or the character traits of the applicant that are the proper 
considerations.  It is not relevant whether the applicant has the ability to perform the work to an 
employer’s standards.  (See Milwaukee Cnty. v. Lab. & Indus. Rev. Comm'n, 139 Wis. 2d 805, 407 
N.W.2d 908 (1987)). 
 
Each offense must be evaluated under the above criteria for determination of whether or not it 
is substantially related to the activity for which a license is sought.  Any arrest, conviction, or 
other offense which is substantially related to the licensed activity is to be considered in the 
licensing decision. 
 

Consideration of Rehabilitation 
 
§111.335(4)(c)1 requires that if a license is denied based upon §111.335(3)(a)1 (as discussed in 
the preceding section), the licensing agency typically has two further obligations.  It must state 
the reasons for denial in writing, including a statement of how the circumstances of the offense(s) 
relate to the licensed activity.  It must also allow the person to show evidence of rehabilitation.   
 

Exempt Offenses 
 
“Exempt Offenses” are defined by §111.335(1m)(b).  Exempt offenses are those specified in 
Chapter 940 or §948.02, 948.025, 948.03, 948.05, 948.051, 948.055, 948.06, 948.07, 948.075, 
948.08, 948.085, or 948.095, or a violation of the law of another jurisdiction that would be a 
violation of one of the listed statutes if committed in Wisconsin.   
 
§111.335(4)(c)2 indicates that the considerations of rehabilitation and the requirement to state 
the reasons for denial based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, including the substantial relationship, do not 



apply to an “exempt offense.”1  The allowance for demonstration of rehabilitation is only 
provided for by §111.335(4)(c)1.b, which does not apply to “exempt offenses.”  Where a 
particular offense is considered “exempt,” its consideration stops at the existence of a 
“substantial relationship,” and does not progress to rehabilitation.    
 
Chapter 940 offenses are crimes against life and bodily security.  Homicide offenses, sexual 
offenses, various forms of battery and other more general violent offenses are contained within 
Chapter 940.  Any offense in Chapter 940 is considered “exempt.”  While it is true that a licensing 
agency is statutorily much more restricted in how it may consider “exempt offenses,” those 
restrictions are reserved for a limited class of criminal offenses.  
 
 

Applicability to Crystal Williams 
 
According to the information gathered by the Appleton Police Department, Ms. Williams was 
convicted of Battery, a class A misdemeanor offense, contrary to §940.19.  This conviction 
occurred in Outagamie County case 19CM863 on 2/26/2020.  As a Chapter 940 offense, this 
offense is considered “exempt.”  It is not subject to the requirement that the applicant be 
permitted to demonstrate rehabilitation.  It is not subject to the requirement that a written 
explanation of the “substantial relationship” be provided.   
 

Conclusion 
 
The applicant has been convicted of an “exempt” misdemeanor criminal offense.  This 
conviction is for a misdemeanor with a substantial relationship to the licensed activity.  Denial 
on this basis does not constitute unlawful discrimination.  Ms. Williams does not meet the 
eligibility criteria required by §125.04(5), and therefore may not be granted any license under 
Chapter 125. 
 

 
1 It is the advice of Legal Services that a substantial relationship must still exist between the circumstances of the 
offense and licensed activity, even though the licensing agency is statutorily relieved from documenting its nature 
in writing. 





2025 RENEWALS 
 

SECONDHAND JEWELRY DEALER 

COMPANY     AGENT   ADDRESS 

Avenue Jewelers             Jason Druxman   303 E. College Ave 
 
Kay Jewelers              Dalton Booker   3845 E. Calumet St 
 
Krieger Jewelers             Jamie Boyce   934 W. Northland Ave 
 
Tennies Jewelry             Rebecca Juedes   208 E. College Ave 
 

SECONDHAND ARTICLE DEALER 

COMPANY     AGENT   ADDRESS 

The Attique Resale           James Boylan   415 N. Oneida St 
 
Beatnik Betty’s Resale Butik          Monica Austin   214 E. College Ave 
 
ecoATM LLC            Sean Flaherty   2700 N Ballard Rd 
 
ecoATM LLC            Sean Flaherty   3701 E Calumet St 
 
Eroding Winds LLC           Adam Bartlett   229 E. College Ave 
 
Left Behind LLC           Michael Day   205 W. Wisconsin Ave 
 
Replay Toys            Chris Freimuth   104 E. Wisconsin Ave 
 
Richmond Resale LLC           Dean Vandenhoy   204 N. Richmond St 
 
Tiffani’s Bridal            Tiffani Ebben   210 W. College Ave 
 
Warehouse Office Products          Jeffrey Lemery   1825 N. Richmond St 
 

PAWNBROKER 

COMPANY     AGENT   ADDRESS 

Mister Money            Gregory Baer   1933B N. Richmond St 

 



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



 
 

 

To: Alderperson Christopher Croatt – Chairperson Safety & Licensing Committee 

From: Captain Jack Taschner 

Date: November 13, 2024 

RE: Sole Source Memo for ARPA Funding of the APD Load Bearing Vests 

 

The Police Department has been allocated $66,000 from ARPA funds for the purpose of 
getting our officers into Load Bearing Vests with Ballistic Rifle Plate capabilities. The 
expiration of our current Ballistic Rifle Plate system and the changeover from the standard 
uniform has created the need for this system. 

Currently officers are issued Soft Body Armor (bulletproof vests) in a 5-year rotating cycle.  
We have used Armor Express brand vests for the last 8 years, with Nelson Tactical as our 
vender.  Due to the exact nature in which each individual vest is measured, and the 
copyrighted style that each brand works under, it is a necessity that we stay with Armor 
Express vests to allow this transition to work. 

The Armor Express Raven 2.0 is what we are transitioning to.  New officers in 2025 and 
those that are up in the rotation cycle will be put in this vest and issued a Ballistic Rifle 
Plate. The rest of the officers would be offered the “Bravo” cut version of the Raven 2.0, 
which would work in conjunction with their current soft body armor. 

 







 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  December 4, 2024 

To:  Safety and Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From:  Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Subject: Request Approval to Purchase Cardiac Monitors   

 

 
This past November, the City of Appleton Common Council ratified the 2025 Budget and Service 
Plan. The 2025 budget included capital funding for advanced life support (ALS) cardiac monitors. 
This critical life-saving equipment is the cornerstone of our medical service level upgrade to 
paramedic in 2025. 
 
The primary benefit of this project is the community will receive a significantly reduced time 
between incident dispatch and ALS intervention. The Appleton Fire Department (AFD) will be able 
to provide skills like advanced airways, medication administration for pain management, 
respiratory distress, and cardiac emergencies prior to the arrival of an ambulance. 
 
Members of the AFD Cardiac Monitor Committee participated in vendor presentations, product 
demonstrations, hands-on application, and extensive research to develop a specification that will 
meet the needs of our community. On October 22, 2024, a request for quotes (RFQ) was sent out.  
Vendor quotes were due November 20, 2024. We had three vendors submit a sealed quote. The 
sealed quotes were disseminated to the AFD Cardiac Monitor Committee to be independently 
scored.  After the scoring was complete, the committee unanimously selected the LIFEPAK 35 as 
the preferred cardiac monitor.  A copy of the complied scoring criteria is attached. 
 
The AFD is requesting approval to purchase the LIFEPAK 35 cardiac monitor through Stryker 
Sales, LLC after January 1, 2025. 
 
If you have questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 920-832-5810.  Thank 
you for your consideration. 
 
 
 



 
 

Criteria

Comments

Vendor

Evaluators
Eval #1 5 4 4 5 2 4 5 2 4 4 5 4 5 4 4 5 3 4 5 3 4
Eval #2 4 3 5 4 3 5 5 3 4 4 2 4 5 4 5 5 3 3 5 3 3
Eval #3 4 2 4 4 3 3 4 3 2 2 3 3 4 4 4 5 3 3 4 3 2
Eval #4 3 DNQ 4 2 DNQ 3 5 DNQ 3 3 DNQ 4 4 DNQ 4 4 DNQ 3 5 DNQ 3
Eval #5 3 3 5 3 3 4 5 4 1 3 2 4 4 4 4 5 2 3 5 4 4
Eval #6 5 1 2 5 1 2 5 1 2 5 1 2 5 1 2 5 1 2 5 1 2
Eval #7 4 3 5 4 3 5 5 4 3 3 4 5 5 3 3 5 2 3 5 4 4

Total 28 16 29 27 15 26 34 17 19 24 17 26 32 20 26 34 14 21 34 18 22
Criteria Weight 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.15 0.15 0.15
Weighed Score 8.4 4.8 8.7 2.7 1.5 2.6 3.4 1.7 1.9 2.4 1.7 2.6 4.8 3 3.9 3.4 1.4 2.1 5.1 2.7 3.3

Stryker 30.20
Tempus 16.80

Zoll 25.10

Stryker 
(1-5)

Tempus 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)

Functionality

How well do the features 
enhanse clinical care?  Is 
there an AED mode? CPR 
Feedback? Ventilation 
Feedback

Cardiac Monitor Evaluation Form

Stryker 
(1-5)

Tempus 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)

Stryker 
(1-5)

Tempus 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)

Stryker 
(1-5)

Portability

Consider size, weight, and 
ease of transportation.

Data Connectivity
Rate the ability to transmit 
data to hospitalsor other 
systems, including features 
like Bluetooth, Wi-Fi, or clod 
storage.  Also, consider 
Pulsara and Image Trend 
APIs.

Durability

Tempus 
(1-5)

Tempus 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)

Final Score

Stryker 
(1-5)

Evaluate how well the 
monitor withstands harsh 
conditions.  How sturdy are 
cables connections? How 
well are the cases built.

Interoperability

Assess how well the monitor 
integrates with Gold Cross 
Ambulance, transfer of care, 
data and equipment 
exchange.

Consider the initial purchase 
cost, as well as ongoing 
maintenance, accessories, 
and consumibles.

Cost Ease of Use

Evaluate how user friendly 
the monitor is,including 
setup, operation, and 
training.

Stryker 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)

Stryker 
(1-5)

Tempus 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)

Tempus 
(1-5)

Zoll         
(1-5)



RELOCATION ORDER 
RE1708     10/2018 

 
 

Project 
4984-24-74-4.01 

Road name 
North Lawe Street 

Highway 
Local Highway 

County 
Outagamie 

Right of way plat date 
November 19, 2024 

Plat sheet number(s) 
4.01, 4.02, and 4.03 

Previously approved Relocation Order date 
N/A 

Description of termini of project:  

 

THAT PART OF LOT 1 OF CSM 7338, PART OF LOTS 1, 4, 5, 8, 9, AND 12, BLOCK 4, PART OF LOTS 1 AND 8, 
BLOCK 17, PART OF LOTS 1 AND 8, BLOCK 31, PART OF LOTS 8 AND 9, BLOCK 30, PART OF LOTS 7-10, BLOCK 
18, PART OF LOTS 8-13, BLOCK 3, PART OF LOTS 8-12, BLOCK 6, OF LAWSBURGH PLAT, PART OF LOT 14, 
BLOCK 6, AND PART OF LOTS 8 AND 9, BLOCK 12, BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, BEING 
IN PART OF GOVERNMENT LOT 1, SECTION 26, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF 
APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 

To properly establish, lay out, widen, enlarge, extend, construct, reconstruct, improve, or maintain a portion of the highway 
designated above, it is necessary to relocate or change and acquire certain lands or interests in lands as shown on the 
right of way plat for the above project. 
 
To effect this change, pursuant to authority granted under Section 62.22, Wisconsin Statutes, the City of Appleton orders 
that: 
 
1. The said highway is laid out and established to the lines and widths as shown on the plat. 
2. The required lands or interests in lands as shown on the plat shall be acquired in the name of the City of Appleton, 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 62.22, Wisconsin Statutes. 
3. This order supersedes and amends any previous order issued by the: City of Appleton. 
 

Dated:  December _____, 2024 
 
City of Appleton 
 
 
 
By: ____________________________________   By: ____________________________________ 
       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor            Kami Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this ____ day of December 2024. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Jamie L. Griesbach 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission expires: 11/11/2025 
 
 
 
This instrument was drafted by: 
Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 
CityLaw A24‐0515 



S
U

M
M

E
R

 
S

T
S

U
M

M
E

R
 
S

T

V
E

R
B

R
I
C

K
 
S

T

V
E

R
B

R
I
C

K
 
S

T

V
E

R
B

R
I
C

K
 
S

T

V
E

R
B

R
I
C

K
 
S

T

S
E

Y
M

O
U

R
 
S

T

S
E

Y
M

O
U

R
 
S

T

A
L

I
C

I
A

1
8
0
0

1
8
0
0

F
O

S
T

E
R

 
S

T

F
O

S
T

E
R

 
S

T

S
H

A
W

 
S

T
S

H
A

W
 
S

T

C
E

D
A

R
 
S

T
C

E
D

A
R

 
S

T

O
A

K
C

R
E

S
T

 
D

R
O

A
K

C
R

E
S

T
 
D

R

R
I
V

E
R

 
R

D

R
I
V

E
R

 
R

D

1
5
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
7
0
0

1
5
0
0

M
A

P
L
E

 
S

T
G

O
O

D
A

L
L
 
S

T
M

A
P

L
E

 
S

T
G

O
O

D
A

L
L
 
S

T

1
6
0
0

1
7
0
0

D
E

N
N

I
S

O
N

 
S

T
D

E
N

N
I
S

O
N

 
S

T

R
E

I
D

 
G

O
L

F

C
O

U
R

S
E

B
L

U
E

B
I
R

D
 
L

A
B

L
U

E
B

I
R

D
 
L

A

P
I
N

E
 
S

T
P

I
N

E
 
S

T

V
E

T
E

R
A

N
S

R
I
V

E
R

V
I
E

W
 
D

R

R
I
V

E
R

V
I
E

W
 
D

R
R

I
V

E
R

V
I
E

W

G
A

R
D

E
N

S

1
3
0
0

1
3
0
0

H
A

R
R

I
S

O
N

 
S

T
H

A
R

R
I
S

O
N

 
S

T

1
4
0
0

1
4
0
0

G
R

I
S

H
A

B
E

R
 
C

T
G

R
I
S

H
A

B
E

R
 
C

T

E
M

M
E

R
S

 
D

R
E

M
M

E
R

S
 
D

R

1
2
0
0

1
2
0
0

R
O

G
E

R
S

 
A

V
R

O
G

E
R

S
 
A

V

P
I
E

R
C

E

F
O

U
R

T
H

 
S

T
F

O
U

R
T

H
 
S

T

T
H

I
R

D
 
S

T

F
O

U
R

T
H

 
S

T
F

O
U

R
T

H
 
S

T

T
H

I
R

D
 
S

T

P
R

O
S

P
E

C
T

 
A

V
P

R
O

S
P

E
C

T
 
A

V

F
R

O
N

T
 
S

T
F

R
O

N
T

 
S

T

R
O

C
K

Y
 
C

T
 
T

R
A

C
Y

 
S

T
R

O
C

K
Y

 
C

T
 
T

R
A

C
Y

 
S

T

1
1
0
0

1
1
0
0

O
R

A
N

G
E

 
S

T
O

R
A

N
G

E
 
S

T

M
C

K
I
N

L
E

Y
 
S

T
M

C
K

I
N

L
E

Y
 
S

T

J
A

Y
C

E
E

L
I
N

C
O

L
N

 
S

T
L
I
N

C
O

L
N

 
S

T

J
O

H
N

S
O

N

C
T

J
O

H
N

S
O

N

C
T

M
C

K
I
N

L
E

Y
 
S

T
M

C
K

I
N

L
E

Y
 
S

T

R
E

I
N

K
E

 
C

T
R

E
I
N

K
E

 
C

T

F
R

E
M

O
N

T
 
S

T
F

R
E

M
O

N
T

 
S

T

S
I
L

V
E

R
 
S

P
U

R
 
L

A
S

I
L

V
E

R
 
S

P
U

R
 
L

A

P
I
O

N
E

E
R

E
L

L
E

N
 
K

O
R

T

P
E

A
C

E
 
P

A
R

K

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

8
0
0

E
A

G
L
E

 
F

L
A

T
S

 
P

K
W

Y

E
A

G
L
E

 
F

L
A

T
S

 
P

K
W

Y

9
0
0

9
0
0

S
O

U
T

H
 
R

I
V

E
R

 
S

T
S

O
U

T
H

 
R

I
V

E
R

 
S

T

1
0
0
0

1
0
0
0

L
O

U
R

D
E

S
 
D

R
L

O
U

R
D

E
S

 
D

R

E
A

S
T

F
I
E

L
D

 
C

T

B
U

C
H

A
N

A
N

 
S

T

E
A

S
T

F
I
E

L
D

 
C

T

B
U

C
H

A
N

A
N

 
S

T

7
0
0

D
E

W
E

Y
 
S

T
D

E
W

E
Y

 
S

T

M
A

R
I
O

N
 
S

T
M

A
R

I
O

N
 
S

T

E
S

T
H

E
R

 
S

T
E

S
T

H
E

R
 
S

T

6
0
0

M
E

A
D

P
O

O
L

L
E

E
 
C

T
L
E

E
 
C

T

F
I
F

T
H

 
S

T
F

I
F

T
H

 
S

T

F
I
F

T
H

 
S

T
F

I
F

T
H

 
S

T

E
I
G

H
T

H
 
S

T
E

I
G

H
T

H
 
S

T

L
A

W
R

E
N

C
E

 
S

T
L

A
W

R
E

N
C

E
 
S

T

E
I
G

H
T

H
 
S

T

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 
S

T

E
I
G

H
T

H
 
S

T

S
E

V
E

N
T

H
 
S

T

J
O

N
E

S

S
I
X

T
H

 
S

T
S

I
X

T
H

 
S

T

5
0
0

5
0
0

4
0
0

4
0
0

N
O

R
T

H
 
I
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

T
N

O
R

T
H

 
I
S

L
A

N
D

 
S

T

H
E

N
R

Y
 
S

T
H

E
N

R
Y

 
S

T

H
E

N
R

Y
 
S

T
H

E
N

R
Y

 
S

T

W
A

S
H

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T

W
A

S
H

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T

H
A

R
R

I
S

 
S

T

P
A

C
K

A
R

D
 
S

T
P

A
C

K
A

R
D

 
S

T

H
A

R
R

I
S

 
S

T

S
H

E
R

M
A

N
 
P

L
S

H
E

R
M

A
N

 
P

L

F
R

A
N

K
L

I
N

 
S

T
F

R
A

N
K

L
I
N

 
S

T

W
A

S
H

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 
S

T
J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 
S

T

P
A

C
K

A
R

D
 
S

T
P

A
C

K
A

R
D

 
S

T

5
0
0

4
0
0

3
0
0

5
0
0

4
0
0

3
0
0

2
0
0

2
0
0

C
I
T

Y
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
S

T
C

I
T

Y
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
S

T

1
0
0

1
0
0

2
0
0

1
0
0

2
0
0

K
I
M

B
A

L
L

 
S

T
K

I
M

B
A

L
L

 
S

T

3
0
0

3
0
0

S
O

L
D

I
E

R
'
S

S
Q

U
A

R
E

S
O

L
D

I
E

R
'
S

S
Q

U
A

R
E

J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 
S

T
J
O

H
N

S
T

O
N

 
S

T

N
O

R
T

H
 
S

T
N

O
R

T
H

 
S

T

H
A

R
R

I
S

 
S

T
H

A
R

R
I
S

 
S

T

C
I
T

Y

E
L

D
O

R
A

D
O

 
S

T

F
R

A
N

K
L

I
N

 
S

T

E
L

D
O

R
A

D
O

 
S

T

F
R

A
N

K
L

I
N

 
S

T

T
E

L
U

L
A

H

W
A

S
H

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
S

T

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 
A

V
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 
A

V

B
O

L
D

T

W
A

Y

B
O

L
D

T

W
A

Y

J
O

H
N

 
S

T
J
O

H
N

 
S

T

S
O

U
T

H
 
S

T
S

O
U

T
H

 
S

T

C
O

L
L

E
G

E
 
A

V
C

O
L

L
E

G
E

 
A

V

A
L

T
O

N
 
S

T
A

L
T

O
N

 
S

T

N
E

W
B

E
R

R
Y

 
S

T
N

E
W

B
E

R
R

Y
 
S

T

L
U

C
I
L

L
E

 
S

T
L

U
C

I
L

L
E

 
S

T

L
U

C
I
L
L
E

 
S

T
L
U

C
I
L
L
E

 
S

T

S
T

S
T

E
L

D
O

R
A

D
O

 
S

T
E

L
D

O
R

A
D

O
 
S

T

O
K

L
A

H
O

M
A

 
S

T

E
L

S
I
E

 
S

T

L
O

R
A

I
N

 
S

T

O
K

L
A

H
O

M
A

 
S

T

A
T

L
A

N
T

I
C

 
S

T
A

T
L

A
N

T
I
C

 
S

T

E
L

S
I
E

 
S

T

L
O

R
A

I
N

 
S

T

M
I
N

O
R

 
S

T
M

I
N

O
R

 
S

T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
I
A

L
 
S

T
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

I
A

L
 
S

T

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
S

T
S

P
R

I
N

G
 
S

T

W
I
N

N
E

B
A

G
O

 
S

T
W

I
N

N
E

B
A

G
O

 
S

T

9
6

W
I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
A

V

W
I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
A

V

B
R

E
W

S
T

E
R

 
S

T
B

R
E

W
S

T
E

R
 
S

T

K
A

M
P

S
 
A

V
K

A
M

P
S

 
A

V

H
A

W
E

S
 
A

V
H

A
W

E
S

 
A

V

B
R

E
W

S
T

E
R

 
S

T

B
R

E
W

S
T

E
R

 
S

T

G
R

A
N

T
 
S

T
G

R
A

N
T

 
S

T

B
E

L
L
 
A

V
B

E
L
L
 
A

V
R

O
O

S
E

V
E

L
T

 
S

T
R

O
O

S
E

V
E

L
T

 
S

T

R
O

O
S

E
V

E
L

T
 
S

T
R

O
O

S
E

V
E

L
T

 
S

T

1
3
0
0

1
4
0
0

1
5
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
7
0
0

1
7
0
0

1
5
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
3
0
0

1
4
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
1
0
0

1
0
0
0

9
0
0

8
0
0

7
0
0

6
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
1
0
0

1
0
0
0

9
0
0

8
0
0

7
0
0

6
0
0

C
I
R

C
L

E
 
S

T
C

I
R

C
L

E
 
S

T

R
A

N
D

A
L

L
 
S

T

B
R

E
W

S
T

E
R

 
S

T
B

R
E

W
S

T
E

R
 
S

T

K
A

Y
 
S

T
K

A
Y

 
S

T

R
A

N
D

A
L

L
 
S

T

9
6

S
U

M
M

E
R

 
S

T
S

U
M

M
E

R
 
S

T

J
A

R
D

I
N

 
S

T
J
A

R
D

I
N

 
S

T

S
P

R
I
N

G
 
S

T
S

P
R

I
N

G
 
S

T

W
I
N

N
E

B
A

G
O

 
S

T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
I
A

L
 
S

T
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

I
A

L
 
S

T

W
I
N

N
E

B
A

G
O

 
S

T

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 
S

T
H

A
N

C
O

C
K

 
S

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
S

T
P

A
C

I
F

I
C

 
S

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
S

T
P

A
C

I
F

I
C

 
S

T

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
I
A

L
 
S

T
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

I
A

L
 
S

T

N
A

W
A

D
A

 
S

T
N

A
W

A
D

A
 
S

T

W
I
N

N
E

B
A

G
O

 
S

T
W

I
N

N
E

B
A

G
O

 
S

T

P
A

C
I
F

I
C

 
S

T
P

A
C

I
F

I
C

 
S

T

H
A

M
M

O
N

D
 
A

V
H

A
M

M
O

N
D

 
A

V

J
A

R
D

I
N

 
S

T
J
A

R
D

I
N

 
S

T

W
I
N

O
N

A
 
C

T
W

I
N

O
N

A
 
C

T

A
M

E
L

I
A

 
S

T
A

M
E

L
I
A

 
S

T

W
I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
A

V
W

I
S

C
O

N
S

I
N

 
A

V

E
R

B
 
P

A
R

K

&
 
P

O
O

L

G
R

A
N

T
 
S

T
G

R
A

N
T

 
S

T

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 
C

T
W

O
O

D
L

A
N

D
 
C

T

R
O

O
S

E
V

E
L

T
 
S

T
R

O
O

S
E

V
E

L
T

 
S

T

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

 
A

V
W

O
O

D
L

A
N

D
 
A

V

C
I
R

C
L

E
 
S

T
C

I
R

C
L

E
 
S

T

S
I
L

V
E

R
C

R
E

S
T

 
D

R
S

I
L

V
E

R
C

R
E

S
T

 
D

R

T
A

Y
L

O
R

 
S

T
T

A
Y

L
O

R
 
S

T

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 
B

L
V

D
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 
B

L
V

D
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 
B

L
V

D
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 
B

L
V

D

1
9
0
0

1
8
0
0

1
9
0
0

1
8
0
0

A
L

I
C

E
 
S

T
A

L
I
C

E
 
S

T

A
R

N
O

L
D

 
S

T
A

R
N

O
L

D
 
S

T

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
 
B

L
V

D
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 
B

L
V

D

M
O

O
R

P
A

R
K

 
A

V

M
E

L
R

O
S

E
 
A

V

M
O

O
R

P
A

R
K

 
A

V

M
E

L
R

O
S

E
 
A

V

P
A

U
L

I
N

E
 
S

T
P

A
U

L
I
N

E
 
S

T

M
E

L
R

O
S

E
 
A

V
M

E
L

R
O

S
E

 
A

V

F
R

A
N

C
E

S
 
S

T
F

R
A

N
C

E
S

 
S

T

G
L
E

N
D

A
L
E

 
A

V

R
O

B
E

R
T

S
 
A

V

G
L
E

N
D

A
L
E

 
A

V

G
L

E
N

D
A

L
E

 
A

V
G

L
E

N
D

A
L

E
 
A

V

R
O

B
E

R
T

S
 
A

V

2
0
0
0

2
1
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
1
0
0

F
R

A
N

C
E

S
 
S

T
F

R
A

N
C

E
S

 
S

T

G
L

E
N

D
A

L
E

 
A

V
G

L
E

N
D

A
L

E
 
A

V

M
A

R
Q

U
E

T
T

E
 
S

T
M

A
R

Q
U

E
T

T
E

 
S

T

F
R

A
N

C
E

S
 
S

T
F

R
A

N
C

E
S

 
S

T

G
L

E
N

D
A

L
E

 
A

V
G

L
E

N
D

A
L

E
 
A

V

LEHMANN LA LEHMANN LA

MUELLER ST MUELLER ST

SUMMIT ST SUMMIT ST

ALLEN ST ALLEN ST

CENTER ST CENTER ST

MEADE ST MEADE ST

LEONA ST LEONA ST

JOSEPH ST
JOSEPH ST

KERNAN AV KERNAN AV

PLATEAU ST PLATEAU ST

WARNER ST
WARNER ST

WALDEN AV WALDEN AV

1500 1500

TELULAH AV TELULAH AV

LEE ST
LEE ST

LEE ST LEE ST

WEIMAR ST
WEIMAR ST

WEIMAR ST WEIMAR ST

ARLINGTON ST
ARLINGTON ST REBECCA LA REBECCA LA

CHRISTINE ST

SCHAEFER ST SCHAEFER ST

CHRISTINE ST

KING CT
KING CT

1900

1800 1800

1900

BALLARD RD BALLARD RD

WEIMAR ST
WEIMAR ST

1700

1600 1600

1700

HELEN ST HELEN ST

WAYNE ST WAYNE ST

WILMER AV WILMER AV

ALEXANDER ST ALEXANDER ST

CHARLOTTE ST CHARLOTTE ST

1400 ULLMAN ST

ULLMAN ST ULLMAN ST

SOUTH MEADOWS DR

SOUTH MEADOWS DR

RR

WINONA WAY WINONA WAY

WOOD ST

MARY ST MARY ST

WOOD ST

CARPENTER ST CARPENTER ST

EAST ST EAST ST

SOUTH CT SOUTH CT

CATHERINE ST CATHERINE ST

TONKA ST TONKA ST

FOX ST FOX ST

RANKIN CT RANKIN CT

1000 1000

JARDIN CT

WISCONSIN CT

NAWADA CT

WISCONSIN CT

NAWADA CT

1100 1100

JARDIN CT

1200 1200

OWAISSA ST

LEMINWAH ST LEMINWAH ST

1300

OWAISSA ST OWAISSA ST

MCDONALD ST

HALL AV

MCDONALD ST

HALL AV

KENILWORTH AV KENILWORTH AV

RACINE ST RACINE ST

GRACELAND AV GRACELAND AV

RACINE ST RACINE ST

RACINE ST RACINE ST

RANKIN ST RANKIN ST

SAMPSON ST

RANKIN ST

SAMPSON ST

RANKIN ST

900 900

VIOLA ST VIOLA ST

RANKIN ST RANKIN ST

WILLOW CT WILLOW CT

MEADE ST MEADE ST

800 800

WESTWOOD CT WESTWOOD CT

JEFFERSON ST JEFFERSON ST

JACKSON ST
JACKSON ST

PARK AV PARK AV
BATEMAN ST BATEMAN ST

UNION ST UNION ST

LAWE ST

UNION ST UNION ST

LAWE ST

700

600 600

LAWE ST LAWE ST

700

MEADE ST MEADE ST

RANKIN ST

MEADE PL MEADE PL

RANKIN ST

MADISON ST
MADISON ST

IDA ST IDA ST

DREW ST DREW ST

500

400 400

500

UNION ST UNION ST

DREW ST DREW ST

MORRISON ST MORRISON ST

DURKEE ST DURKEE ST

300 300

MORRISON ST MORRISON ST

200 200

DURKEE ST DURKEE ST

MORRISON ST MORRISON ST

WILLKIE ST WILLKIE ST

LAWRENCE

CT

LAWRENCE

CT

SUPERIOR ST

KALATA PL

SUPERIOR ST

KALATA PL

APPLETON ST APPLETON STDUNLAP DUNLAP

ONEIDA ST ONEIDA ST

APPLETON ST

SUPERIOR ST

APPLETON ST

SUPERIOR ST

SANDERS ST

ADAMS ST

SANDERS ST

ADAMS ST

MAPLECREST DR MAPLECREST DR

WALNUT ST WALNUT ST

GARFIELD PL GARFIELD PL

DIVISION ST DIVISION ST

ELM ST ELM ST

CLARK ST CLARK ST

200

300 300

200

100 100

100 100

HARRIMAN ST HARRIMAN ST

400

500 500

400

LL

CHERRY CT CHERRY CT

RIVERVIEW LA

RIVERVIEW LA

FAIR ST FAIR ST

BOUTEN ST BOUTEN ST

STATE ST STATE ST

STATE ST STATE ST

FAIR ST FAIR ST

STATE ST STATE ST

600 600

ALVIN ST ALVIN ST

HARRIMAN ST HARRIMAN ST

CLARK ST

DIVISION ST DIVISION ST

CLARK ST

SUPERIOR ST SUPERIOR ST

ERB ST ERB ST

RIVER FRONT CT RIVER FRONT CT

MEMORIAL DR MEMORIAL DR

RICHMOND ST RICHMOND ST

LOCUST ST LOCUST ST
LOCUST ST LOCUST ST

700

800 800

700

LOCUST ST LOCUST ST

RICHMOND ST RICHMOND ST

PIERCE CT PIERCE CT

STORY ST

SUMMIT ST

STORY ST

SUMMIT ST

PIERCE AV PIERCE AV

BENNETT ST BENNETT ST

STORY ST STORY ST

SUMMIT ST SUMMIT ST

STORY ST STORY ST

MASON ST MASON ST

FAIRVIEW ST FAIRVIEW ST

SPRUCE ST SPRUCE ST

1300 1300

1100

1200 1200

1000

1100

900 900

SUMMIT ST SUMMIT ST

MASON ST MASON ST

BENNETT ST BENNETT ST

P

J
O

H

N

 
S

T

J
O

H

N

 
S

T

B

A

R

V

U

L
C

A

N

 
S

T

U

L
C

A

N

 
S

T

Y

L

U

T

Z

 

D

R

U

T

Z

 

D

R

G

R

E

E

N

R

E

E

N

B

R

H

E

A

T

H

H

E

A

T

H

E

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

W

E

S

T

 

A

V

E

S

T

 

A

V

J

A

C

K

M

A

N

 

S

T

A

C

K

M

A

N

 

S

T

R

I

V

E

R

 

D

R

I

V

E

R

 

D

R

N

W

O

O

D

M

E

R

E

 

C

T

W

O

O

D

M

E

R

E

 

C

T

W

A

T

E

R

 

S

T

W

A

T

E

R

 

S

T

R

PEABODY ST

PEABODY ST

FOSTER CT
FOSTER CT

LAWE STLAWE ST

LAWE STLAWE ST

RITGER ST
RITGER ST

FAIRWAY CT

FAIRWAY CT

HARMON ST
HARMON ST

RAMLEN CTRAMLEN CT

MONROE ST

MONROE ST

ESTHERBROOK CT
ESTHERBROOK CT

DD

TELULAH AVTELULAH AV

SCHAEFER ST
SCHAEFER ST

SILVERCREST DR
SILVERCREST DR

B

R

A

N

D

A

L

L

 
A

V

A

N

D

A

L

L

 
A

V

B

E

L

L

A

I
R

E

 
C

T

E

L

L

A

I
R

E

 
C

T

G

R

YY

J

O

H

N

 

S

T

J

O

H

N

 

S

T

C

E

D

A

R

W

O

O

D

 

D

R

C

E

D

A

R

W

O

O

D

 

D

R

T

R

A

C

Y

 

C

T

T

R

A

C

Y

 

C

T

B

A

D

G

E

R

 

A

V

B

A

D

G

E

R

 

A

V

P

R

O

S

P

E

C

T

 

A

V

P

R

O

S

P

E

C

T

 

A

V

H

I

D

D

E

N

 

A

C

R

E

S

 

C

T

I

D

D

E

N

 

A

C

R

E

S

 

C

T

l

N

E

W

E

W

V

I

N

E

 

S

T

V

I

N

E

 

S

T

RR

S

EE

F

O

X

 

R

I

V

E

R

R

R

R

C

T
T

R

I
C

H

A

R

D

 
S

T

I
C

H

A

R

D

 
S

T

S

O

U

T

H

 
I
S

L

A

N

D

 
S

T

O

U

T

H

 
I
S

L

A

N

D

 
S

T

L

A
A

E

D

I
S

O

N

 
A

V

O

B

A

N

T

A

 

C

T

A

N

T

A

 

C

T

C

A

N

A

D

I

A

N

 

N

A

T

I

O

N

A

L

 

R

R

A

N

A

D

I

A

N

 

N

A

T

I

O

N

A

L

 

R

R

R

A

N

K

I

N

 

S

T

V

I

N

E

 

S

T

E

E
E

R

D
D

Y

T

H

A

R

R

I

E

T

 

S

T

C

A

S

S

 

S

T
H

A

R

R

I

E

T

 

S

T

C

A

S

S

 

S

T

G

U

N

N

 

S

T

G

U

N

N

 

S

T

C

A

N

D

E

E

 

S

T

C

A

N

D

E

E

 

S

T

R

O

C

K

Y

B

L

E

I

E

R

R

U

N

R

O

C

K

Y

B

L

E

I

E

R

R

U

N

EE

W

E

I

M

A

R

 

C

T

W

E

I

M

A

R

 

C

T

L

A

W

R

E

N

C

E

A

T

H

L

E

T

I

C

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

B

S

O

U

T

H

 

R

I

V

E

R

 

S

T

R

O

U

T

H

 

R

I

V

E

R

 

S

T

W

E

S

T

 

C

T

E

S

T

 

C

T

B

R

O

K

A

W

 

P

L

O

P

E

C

H

E

E

 

S

T

P

E

C

H

E

E

 

S

T

A

B

A

N Y

V

I

U

L

U

T

Z

F

O

X

 

R

I

V

E

R

W

A

W

A

EE

W

A

L

T

E

R

 

A

V

A

L

T

E

R

 

A

V

G

R

E

E

N

 

B

A

Y

 

C

T

R

E

E

N

 

B

A

Y

 

C

T

B

A

T

E

S

 

S

T

B

A

T

E

S

 

S

T

O

L

D

E

 

O

N

E

I

D

A

 

S

T

O

L

D

E

 

O

N

E

I

D

A

 

S

T

D

R

E

W

 

S

T

D

R

E

W

 

S

T

A

L

T

O

N

 

C

T

A

L

T

O

N

 

C

T

R

A

V

I

N

I

A

O

A

K

C

R

E

S

T

 
C

T

O

A

K

C

R

E

S

T

 
C

T

AA

G

RR

T

U

E

S

K

Y

L

I
N

E

 
B

R

I
D

G

E

l

AC
CE

SS
 R

IG
H

TS
AR

AC
RE

S
AC

AH
EA

D
AH

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

AL
U

M
AN

D 
O

TH
ER

S
ET

 A
L

BA
CK

BK
BL

O
CK

BL
K

CE
N

TE
RL

IN
E

C/
L

CE
RT

IF
IE

D 
SU

RV
EY

 M
AP

CS
M

CO
N

CR
ET

E
CO

N
C

CO
U

N
TY

CO
CO

U
N

TY
 T

RU
N

K 
H

IG
H

W
AY

CT
H

DI
ST

AN
CE

DI
ST

CO
RN

ER
CO

R
DO

CU
M

EN
T 

N
U

M
BE

R
DO

C
EA

SE
M

EN
T 

EA
SE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
EX

G
AS

 V
AL

VE
G

V
G

RI
D 

N
O

RT
H

G
N

H
IG

H
W

AY
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

H
E

ID
EN

TI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

ID
LA

N
D 

CO
N

TR
AC

T
LC

LE
FT

LT
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T

M
O

N
N

AT
IO

N
AL

 G
EO

DE
TI

C 
SU

RV
EY

N
G

S
N

U
M

BE
R

N
O

O
U

TL
O

T
O

L
PA

G
E

P
PO

IN
T 

O
F 

TA
N

G
EN

CY
PT

PE
RM

AN
EN

T 
LI

M
IT

ED
 

PL
E

   
  E

AS
EM

EN
T

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
BE

G
IN

N
IN

G
PO

B
PO

IN
T 

O
F 

CU
RV

AT
U

RE
PC

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
CO

M
PO

U
N

D 
CU

RV
E

PC
C

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
IN

TE
RS

EC
TI

O
N

PI
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

LI
N

E
PL

RE
CO

RD
ED

 A
S

(1
00

')
RE

EL
 / 

IM
AG

E
R/

I
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

 L
IN

E
R/

L
RE

M
AI

N
IN

G
RE

M
RE

ST
RI

CT
IV

E 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T
RD

E
   

  E
AS

EM
EN

T
RI

G
H

T
RT

RI
G

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

R/
W

SE
CT

IO
N

SE
C

SE
PT

IC
 V

EN
T

SE
PV

SQ
U

AR
E 

FE
ET

SF
ST

AT
E 

TR
U

N
K 

H
IG

H
W

AY
ST

H
ST

AT
IO

N
ST

A
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
PE

DE
ST

AL
TP

TE
M

PO
RA

RY
 L

IM
IT

ED
 

TL
E

   
  E

AS
EM

EN
T

TR
AN

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 P
RO

JE
CT

 P
LA

T
TP

P
U

N
IT

ED
 S

TA
TE

S 
H

IG
H

W
AY

U
SH

VO
LU

M
E

V

CO
N

VE
N

TI
O

N
AL

 A
BB

RE
VI

AT
IO

N
S

CU
RV

E 
DA

TA
 A

BB
RE

VI
AT

IO
N

S

/D
EL

TA

LO
N

G
 C

H
O

RD
LC

H
LO

N
G

 C
H

O
RD

 B
EA

RI
N

G
LC

B
RA

DI
U

S
R

DE
G

RE
E 

O
F 

CU
RV

E
D

CE
N

TR
AL

 A
N

G
LE

LE
N

G
TH

 O
F 

CU
RV

E
L

TA
N

G
EN

T
T

DI
RE

CT
IO

N
 A

H
EA

D
DA

DI
RE

CT
IO

N
 B

AC
K

DB

G
N

LA
YO

U
T 

N
AM

E:
   

 0
40

0
I:\

45
\4

50
63

9 
LA

W
E 

ST
 A

PP
LE

TO
N

\C
3D

\R
W

\T
PP

_4
01

.D
W

G
FI

LE
 N

AM
E 

:
49

84
-2

4-
74

-4
.0

1

4
4

PR
OJ

EC
T N

UM
BE

R  
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
  - 

4.
SH

EE
T

TR
AN

SP
OR

TA
TI

ON
 P

RO
JE

CT
 P

LA
T 

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
PL

ET
ON

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 
11

/7
/2

02
4 

2:
26

 P
M

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
AY

RE
S 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.01
C 

AP
PL

ET
ON

, L
AW

E 
ST

RE
ET

CO
LL

EG
E 

AV
EN

UE
 T

O 
W

IS
CO

NS
IN

 A
VE

NU
E

OU
TA

GA
MI

E 
CO

UN
TY

49
84

-2
4-

74
-

01
2 

O
F 

3

CO
N

VE
N

TI
O

N
AL

 S
YM

BO
LS

W

SE
CT

IO
N

 L
IN

E

Q
U

AR
TE

R 
LI

N
E

SI
XT

EE
N

TH
 L

IN
E

N
EW

 R
EF

ER
EN

CE
 L

IN
E

N
EW

 R
/W

 L
IN

E

CO
RP

O
RA

TE
 L

IM
IT

S

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

FA
CI

LI
TY

N
EW

 R
/W

 (F
EE

 O
R 

H
E)

(H
AT

CH
IN

G
 V

AR
IE

S 
BY

 O
W

N
ER

)

(C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
AT

IO
N

S,
 E

LE
CT

RI
C,

 E
TC

)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

/W
 O

R 
H

E 
LI

N
E

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LI

N
E

R/
W

 M
O

N
U

M
EN

T
T R

N
O

N
-M

O
N

U
M

EN
TE

D
 R

/W
 P

O
IN

T

FO
U

N
D 

IR
O

N
 P

IN
IP

(T
YP

E)

P.
L.

SI
G

N
O

FF
-P

RE
M

IS
E

SI
G

N
SI

G
N

SI
G

N

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
AR

EA
 (P

ER
M

AN
EN

T 
LI

M
IT

ED
 O

R
 R

ES
TR

IC
TE

D 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T)

BU
IL

DI
N

G

TR
AN

SM
IS

SI
O

N
 S

TR
U

CT
U

RE
S

EL
EC

TR
IC

 P
O

LE
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
PO

LE
PE

DE
ST

AL
 (L

AB
EL

 T
YP

E)
 (T

V,
 T

EL
, E

LE
C,

 E
TC

.)

CO
M

PE
N

SA
BL

E 
   

 N
O

N
-C

O
M

PE
N

SA
BL

E

AC
CE

SS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TE

D 
BY

 A
CQ

U
IS

IT
IO

N

N
O

 A
CC

ES
S 

(B
Y 

ST
AT

U
TO

RY
 A

U
TH

O
RI

TY
)

AC
CE

SS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TE

D 
(B

Y 
PR

EV
IO

U
S

 P
RO

JE
CT

 O
R 

CO
N

TR
O

L)

BR
ID

G
E

PA
RC

EL
 N

U
M

BE
R

U
TI

LI
TY

 N
U

M
BE

R
25

40

SI
XT

EE
N

TH
 C

O
RN

ER
 M

O
N

U
M

EN
T

#1
-2

5

N W

TE
M

PO
RA

RY
 L

IM
IT

ED
   

EA
SE

M
EN

T 
AR

EA

LO
T,

 T
IE

 &
 O

TH
ER

   
M

IN
O

R 
LI

N
ES

G
EO

DE
TI

C 
SU

RV
EY

 M
O

N
U

M
EN

T

SE
CT

IO
N

CO
RN

ER
SY

M
BO

L

TO
 B

E 
RE

M
O

VE
D

SE
CT

IO
N

CO
RN

ER
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T

(T
O

 B
E 

SE
T)

(1
-IN

CH
 U

N
LE

SS
 N

O
TE

D)

SL
O

PE
 IN

TE
RC

EP
T

25
26

24
23

918

PA
RA

LL
EL

 O
FF

SE
TS

N
O

 A
CC

ES
S 

(N
EW

 H
IG

H
W

AY
)

CU
LV

ER
T

CO
N

VE
N

TI
O

N
AL

 U
TI

LI
TY

 S
YM

BO
LS

W G T O
H E TV FO SA
N SS

W
AT

ER
G

AS TE
LE

PH
O

N
E

O
VE

RH
EA

D 
TR

AN
SM

IS
SI

O
N

 L
IN

ES
EL

EC
TR

IC
CA

BL
E 

TE
LE

VI
SI

O
N

FI
BE

R 
O

PT
IC

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

ST
O

RM
 S

EW
ER

EL
EC

TR
IC

 T
O

W
ER

PO
SI

TI
O

N
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 P

LA
T 

AR
E 

W
IS

CO
N

SI
N

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

E 
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

 S
YS

TE
M

 C
O

O
RD

IN
AT

ES
 (W

IS
CR

S)
,

O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 C
O

U
N

TY
, N

AD
83

(2
01

1)
, I

N
 U

.S
. S

U
RV

EY
 F

EE
T.

 V
AL

U
ES

 S
H

O
W

N
 A

RE
 G

RI
D 

CO
O

RD
IN

AT
ES

, G
RI

D
BE

AR
IN

G
S,

 A
N

D 
G

RI
D 

DI
ST

AN
CE

S.
 G

RI
D 

DI
ST

AN
CE

S 
M

AY
 B

E 
U

SE
D 

AS
 G

RO
U

N
D 

DI
ST

AN
CE

S.

AL
L 

N
EW

 R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 M
O

N
U

M
EN

TS
 W

IL
L 

BE
 T

YP
E 

2 
(T

YP
IC

AL
LY

 3
4"

 X
 2

4"
 IR

O
N

 R
EB

AR
S)

, U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

N
O

TE
D,

 A
N

D 
W

IL
L 

BE
 P

LA
CE

D 
PR

IO
R 

TO
 T

H
E 

CO
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

PR
O

JE
CT

.

RI
G

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 B
O

U
N

DA
RI

ES
 A

RE
 D

EF
IN

ED
 W

IT
H

 C
O

U
RS

ES
 O

F 
TH

E 
PE

RI
M

ET
ER

 O
F 

TH
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 L

AN
DS

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
D 

TO
 T

H
E 

U
.S

. P
U

BL
IC

 L
AN

D 
SU

RV
EY

 S
YS

TE
M

 O
R 

O
TH

ER
 "S

U
RV

EY
S"

 O
F 

PU
BL

IC
 R

EC
O

RD
.

FO
U

N
D 

M
O

N
U

M
EN

T 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 S

H
O

W
N

 R
EP

RE
SE

N
TS

 T
YP

E 
AN

D 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 M

O
N

U
M

EN
TS

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

O
PI

N
IO

N
 A

S 
TO

 T
H

EI
R 

VA
LI

DI
TY

 A
N

D 
U

SE
 A

S 
A 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
CO

RN
ER

.

DI
M

EN
SI

O
N

IN
G

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
N

EW
 R

IG
H

T-
O

F-
W

AY
 IS

 M
EA

SU
RE

D 
AL

O
N

G
 A

N
D 

PE
RP

EN
DI

CU
LA

R 
TO

 T
H

E 
N

EW
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

 L
IN

ES
.

A 
TE

M
PO

RA
RY

 L
IM

IT
ED

 E
AS

EM
EN

T 
(T

LE
) I

S 
A 

RI
G

H
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 P

U
RP

O
SE

S,
 A

S 
DE

FI
N

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
,

IN
CL

U
DI

N
G

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
TO

 O
PE

RA
TE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TH
ER

EO
N

, T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
O

F 
IN

G
RE

SS
 A

N
D 

EG
RE

SS
,

AS
 L

O
N

G
 A

S 
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

 F
O

R 
SU

CH
 P

U
BL

IC
 P

U
RP

O
SE

, I
N

CL
U

DI
N

G
 T

H
E 

RI
G

H
T 

TO
 P

RE
SE

RV
E,

 P
RO

TE
CT

, R
EM

O
VE

,
O

R 
PL

AN
T 

TH
ER

EO
N

 A
N

Y 
VE

G
ET

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 A
U

TH
O

RI
TI

ES
 M

AY
 D

EE
M

 D
ES

IR
AB

LE
. A

LL
 (T

LE
S)

 O
N

TH
IS

 P
LA

T 
EX

PI
RE

 A
T 

TH
E 

CO
M

PL
ET

IO
N

 O
F 

TH
E 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 P

RO
JE

CT
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

IS
 IN

ST
RU

M
EN

T 
IS

G
IV

EN
.

A 
PE

RM
AN

EN
T 

LI
M

IT
ED

 E
AS

EM
EN

T 
(P

LE
) I

S 
A 

RI
G

H
T 

FO
R 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 A

N
D 

M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 P

U
RP

O
SE

S,
 A

S
DE

FI
N

ED
 H

ER
EI

N
, I

N
CL

U
DI

N
G

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
TO

 O
PE

RA
TE

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

TH
ER

EO
N

 A
N

D 
TH

E 
RI

G
H

T 
O

F
IN

G
RE

SS
 A

N
D 

EG
RE

SS
, A

S 
LO

N
G

 A
S 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
 F

O
R 

SU
CH

 P
U

BL
IC

 P
U

RP
O

SE
, I

N
CL

U
DI

N
G

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
TO

PR
ES

ER
VE

, P
RO

TE
CT

, R
EM

O
VE

, O
R 

PL
AN

 T
H

ER
EO

N
 A

N
Y 

VE
G

ET
AT

IO
N

 T
H

AT
 T

H
E 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 A

U
TH

O
RI

TI
ES

 M
AY

DE
EM

 D
ES

IR
AB

LE
, B

U
T 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

PR
EJ

U
DI

CE
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
W

N
ER

S'
S 

RI
G

H
TS

 T
O

 M
AK

E 
O

R 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 O

N
 S

AI
D 

LA
N

DS
 O

R 
TO

 F
LA

TT
EN

 T
H

E 
SL

O
PE

S,
 P

RO
VI

DI
N

G
 S

AI
D 

AC
TI

VI
TI

ES
 W

IL
L 

N
O

T 
IM

PA
IR

 O
R

O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

AD
VE

RS
EL

Y 
AF

FE
CT

 T
H

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 F
AC

IL
IT

IE
S.

  P
LE

'S
 A

RE
 F

O
R 

M
U

N
IC

IP
AL

 U
TI

LI
TY

 P
U

RP
O

SE
S 

AN
D

AR
E 

N
O

N
-M

O
N

U
M

EN
TE

D.

AN
 E

AS
EM

EN
T 

FO
R 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 P

U
RP

O
SE

S 
(H

E)
, A

S 
LO

N
G

 A
S 

SO
 U

SE
D,

 IN
CL

U
DI

N
G

 T
H

E 
RI

G
H

T 
TO

 P
RE

SE
RV

E,
PR

O
TE

CT
, R

EM
O

VE
, O

R 
PL

AN
T 

TH
ER

EO
N

 A
N

Y 
VE

G
ET

AT
IO

N
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
H

IG
H

W
AY

 A
U

TH
O

RI
TI

ES
 M

AY
 D

EE
M

DE
SI

RA
BL

E.

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
LI

N
ES

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 P
LA

T 
FO

R 
PR

O
PE

RT
IE

S 
BE

IN
G

 IM
PA

CT
ED

 A
RE

 D
RA

W
N

 F
RO

M
 D

AT
A 

DE
RI

VE
D

FR
O

M
 F

IL
ED

/R
EC

O
RD

ED
 M

AP
S 

AN
D 

DO
CU

M
EN

TS
 O

F 
PU

BL
IC

 R
EC

O
RD

 A
N

D/
O

R 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 O
CC

U
PA

TI
O

N
AL

 L
IN

ES
.

TH
IS

 P
LA

T 
M

AY
 N

O
T 

BE
 A

 T
RU

E 
RE

PR
ES

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

  P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LI

N
ES

, E
XC

LU
DI

N
G

 R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

,
AN

D 
SH

O
U

LD
 N

O
T 

BE
 U

SE
D 

AS
 A

 S
U

BS
TI

TU
TE

 F
O

R 
AN

 A
CC

U
RA

TE
 F

IE
LD

 S
U

RV
EY

.

AL
L 

RI
G

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 L
IN

ES
 D

EP
IC

TE
D 

IN
 T

H
E 

N
O

N
-A

CQ
U

IS
IT

IO
N

 A
RE

AS
 A

RE
 IN

TE
N

DE
D 

TO
 R

E-
ES

TA
BL

IS
H

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
RI

G
H

T-
O

F-
W

AY
 L

IN
ES

 A
S 

DE
TE

RM
IN

ED
 F

RO
M

 P
RE

VI
O

U
S 

PR
O

JE
CT

S,
 O

TH
ER

 R
EC

O
RD

ED
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS
,

CE
N

TE
RL

IN
E 

O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

AV
EM

EN
TS

 A
N

D/
O

R 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 O
CC

U
PA

TI
O

N
AL

 L
IN

ES
.

FO
R 

CU
RR

EN
T 

AC
CE

SS
/D

RI
VE

W
AY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

, C
O

N
TA

CT
 T

H
E 

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
PL

ET
O

N
.

PA
RC

EL
 A

N
D 

U
TI

LI
TY

 ID
EN

TI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

 N
U

M
BE

RS
 M

AY
 N

O
T 

PO
IN

T 
TO

 A
LL

 A
RE

AS
 O

F 
AC

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

, A
S 

N
O

TE
D 

O
N

TH
E 

TP
P 

DE
TA

IL
 P

AG
ES

.

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 F
O

R 
TH

E 
BA

SI
S 

O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

 P
O

IN
TS

 O
F 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
 A

N
D 

AC
CE

SS
CO

N
TR

O
L 

AR
E 

LI
ST

ED
 O

N
 T

H
E 

TP
P 

DE
TA

IL
 P

AG
ES

.

N
O

TE
S:

TH
E 

N
O

TE
S,

 C
O

N
VE

N
TI

O
N

AL
 S

IG
N

S,
 A

N
D 

AB
BR

EV
IA

TI
O

N
S 

AR
E 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ED
 W

IT
H

 E
AC

H
TR

AN
SP

O
RT

AT
IO

N
 P

RO
JE

CT
 P

LA
T 

FO
R 

PR
O

JE
CT

 4
98

4-
24

-7
4.

LA
YO

U
T

SC
AL

E
0

E
N

D
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

.5
 M

I.

B
E

G
I
N

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

R
 
1
7
 
E

T
 
2
1
 
N



100

TE
L

TE
L

LOT 1
CSM 7338

V. 44, P. 7338
DOC #2098112

LOT 12

LOT 9

LOT 8

LOT 5

LOT 4

LOT 1

LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 4

LOT 1

LOT 8

LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 1

7

LOT 1

LOT 8LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 3

1

LOT 14

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 6

LOT 11

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 8

LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 6

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 11

LOT 10

LOT 9

LOT 8

LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 3

LOT 9

LOT 8
LOT 7

LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 1

8

LOT 8

LOT 9 LA
W

SB
URGH PL

AT

BLO
CK 3

0

LOT 8

LOT 9

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

2

LOT 12

LOT 14

LOT 10

LOT 2

LOT 7

LOT 2

17.9'

10
2

10
4

10
6

10
8

11
0

11
2

11
4

11
6

PI: 100+62.94
Y: 562295.623
X: 829952.714

R/
L=

N
0°

03
'4

3"
W

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113 114 115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

T150
T151

T152

T153

T155

T156

T157

T158

T159
T160

T161

T162

T163

T164

T165
T166

T167

T168

T169
T170

T171T172

T173

T174

T175
T176

T177
T178

T179

T180

T181

T182

T183
T184

T185
T186

T187
T188

T189

T190
T191

T192

T193
T194

T195

T196

T197
T198

T199

T200

T201

T202

T203
T204

T205

IP1000

IP1001

IP1002

IP1003

IP1004

IP1005

IP1006

IP1007

IP1008

IP1009

IP1010

IP1011

IP1012

IP1013

IP1014

IP1015
T149

T148

T154

S85°53'14"W
2641.39'

S85°53'14"W
2211.30'

N85°53'14"E

369.94'

T206

AP
PR

AI
SA

L 
PL

AT
 D

AT
E 

: N
O

VE
M

BE
R 

7,
  2

02
4

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
1

4
4

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
AY

RE
S 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
11

/8
/2

02
4 

10
:5

6 
AM

I:\
45

\4
50

63
9 

LA
W

E 
ST

 A
PP

LE
TO

N
\C

3D
\R

W
\T

PP
_4

01
.D

W
G

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 

RESERVED FOR REGISTER OF DEEDS
PROJECT NUMBER  4984-24-74-4.01
SHEET 1 OF 3

TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT NO: 4984-24-74-4.01

FOUND 5"X10"
STONE

Y = 563833.03
X = 830349.91

RELOCATION ORDER - N LAWE STREET, COLLEGE AVE TO WISCONSIN AVENUE, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY

TO PROPERLY ESTABLISH, LAY OUT, WIDEN, ENLARGE, EXTEND, CONSTRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, IMPROVE, OR
MAINTAIN A PORTION OF THE HIGHWAY DESIGNATED ABOVE, THE CITY OF APPLETON DEEMS IT NECESSARY TO
RELOCATE OR CHANGE SAID HIGHWAY AND ACQUIRE CERTAIN LANDS AND INTERESTS OR RIGHTS IN LANDS FOR
THE ABOVE PROJECT.

TO EFFECT THIS CHANGE, PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY GRANTED UNDER SECTION 62.22, WISCONSIN STATUTES,
THE CITY OF APPLETON HEREBY ORDERS THAT:
1. THAT PORTION OF SAID HIGHWAY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS LAID OUT AND ESTABLISHED TO THE LINES

AND WIDTHS AS SO SHOWN FOR THE ABOVE PROJECT.
2. THE LANDS OR INTERESTS OR RIGHTS IN LANDS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE REQUIRED BY THE CITY FOR

THE ABOVE PROJECT AND SHALL BE ACQUIRED IN THE NAME OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 62.22, WISCONSIN STATUTES.

NOTES:

POSITIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFERENCE SYSTEM COORDINATES (WISCRS),
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, NAD83(2011 ), IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. VALUES ARE GRID COORDINATES, GRID BEARINGS, AND
GRID DISTANCES. GRID DISTANCES MAY BE USED AS GROUND DISTANCES.

ALL NEW RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENTS WILL BE TYPE 2 (TYPICALLY 34" X 24" IRON REBARS), UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED, AND WILL BE PLACED PRIOR TO THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

FOR CURRENT ACCESS/DRIVEWAY INFORMATION, CONTACT THE CITY OF APPLETON.

ALL FOUND MONUMENT INFORMATION SHOWN REPRESENTS TYPE AND LOCATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS
WITHOUT OPINION AS TO THEIR VALIDITY AND USE AS A PROPERTY CORNER.

EXISTING HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN HEREIN IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING POINTS OF REFERENCE:

N. LAWE STREET:  LAWSBURGH PLAT, BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, CSM 7338.

E. WASHINGTON STREET:  LAWSBURGH PLAT, CSM 7338.

E. FRANKLIN STREET:  LAWSBURGH PLAT.

E. ELDORADO STREET:  LAWSBURGH PLAT.

E. NORTH STREET:  LAWSBURGH PLAT, BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON.

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REFER TO THE TITLE SHEET, RECORDED AS SHEET 2 OF 3.

AT&T
NO EASEMENT OF RECORD - PARCEL 1100

SIGNATURE: 

PRINT NAME: JACOB S. JENSEN

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 

DATE: 

SIGNATURE: 

PRINT NAME: MARK A. LAHAY - ASSISTANT CITY ENGINEER

DATE: 

I, JACOB S. JENSEN, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 84.095 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE CITY OF APPLETON I HAVE SURVEYED AND MAPPED THIS
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT AND SUCH PLAT CORRECTLY REPRESENTS ALL EXTERIOR
BOUNDARIES OF THE SURVEYED LAND.

THIS PLAT AND RELOCATION ORDER ARE APPROVED FOR THE
CITY OF APPLETON

11/07/2024

S-2961

TLE 1

FEE 1

TLE 2

TLE 3

TLE 4

TLE 6

TLE 7

TLE 8

TLE 9

TLE 11

TLE 12

TLE 13

TLE 14

TLE 16

TLE 17

TLE 18

21 TLE

22 TLE

22 TLE

23 TLE

24 TLE

26 TLE

27 TLE

28 TLE

29 TLE

31 TLE

32 TLE

33 TLE

34 TLE

36 TLE

37 TLE

38 TLE

39 TLE

1 TLE
0.032 AC

0.051 AC

N
. L

A
W

E 
ST

R
EE

T

E FRANKLIN STREET

E ELDORADO STREET

E NORTH STREET

E WASHINGTON STREET

E COLLEGE AVENUE

FEE & TLE 0.0251 ---LAWRENCE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN 0.025

SCHEDULE OF LANDS & INTERESTS REQUIRED
PARCEL
NUMBER

OWNER(S) INTEREST(S)
REQUIRED NEW EXISTING TOTAL

R/W ACRES REQUIRED

TLE ---2 ------KC KAMPS & RUTHANN CRAGER

0.083
TLE

0.012

TLE ---3 ------MICHAEL D. BAZILE 0.010

TLE ---4 ------JOHN R. & HOPE M. ZIRBEL 0.009

TLE ---6 ------ROSS J. GALSHEEN & BECKY L. SIPIORSKI-GLASHEEN 0.012

TLE ---7 ------ROY EARL OLSON, III 0.016

TLE ---8 ------ANNA, THOMAS & KIM GOELZ 0.016

TLE ---9 ------PHYLLIS A. COLLAR 0.021

TLE ---11 ------SCOTT R. REINECK 0.038

TLE12 SAMUEL JAMES FARRELL & MARIAH STAELENS 0.018

TLE13 MARK T. & AYMEE L. ROVICK 0.020

TLE14 RONALD A. WAHL LIVING TRUST DATED
FEBRUAREY 14, 2024 0.027

TLE16 BOBBY L. & ALLISON M. FLESHMAN 0.022

TLE17 RICHARD A. SANERIB 0.017

TLE18 DANIEL JOHNSON & JENNIFER LE 0.011

TLE21 BRIAN L. SORENSEN & LISA A. NEREHAUSEN 0.025

TLE22 VILLA PHOENIX, INC 0.024

TLE23 PERRI A. DUCKLOW 0.015

TLE24 ET HOLDINGS LLC 0.012

TLE26
WESLEY W. FIETZER AND NANCY E. FIETZER

REVOCABLE TRUST DATED MAY 26, 1998 0.011

TLE27 MOONLIMIT LLC 0.012

TLE28 CAITLYN M. HILLS 0.011

TLE29 226 228 N LAWE, LLC 0.012

TLE31 224 N LAWE, LLC 0.007

TLE32 LJM2, LLC 0.014

TLE33 GARY L. & NANCY A. BURNS 0.010

TLE34 HRI GROUP LLC 0.010

TLE36 DRS INVESTMENTS LLC 0.012

TLE37 JOSEPH CARLTON CRAMER 0.014

TLE38 122 N LAWE LLC 0.014

TLE39 KARIN ANN MORTIER 0.011

THAT PART OF LOT 1 OF CSM 7338, PART OF LOTS 1, 4, 5, 8, 9, AND 12, BLOCK 4, PART OF
LOTS 1 AND 8, BLOCK 17, PART OF LOTS 1 AND 8, BLOCK 31, PART OF LOTS 8 AND 9,
BLOCK 30, PART OF LOTS 7-10, BLOCK 18, PART OF LOTS 8-13, BLOCK 3, PART OF LOTS
8-12, BLOCK 6, OF LAWSBURGH PLAT, PART OF LOT 14, BLOCK 6, AND PART OF LOTS 8
AND 9, BLOCK 12, BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, BEING IN PART OF
GOVERNMENT LOT 1, SECTION 26, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF
APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CITY

OF

APPLETON

GOVM'T
LOT 1

19 TLE

TLE19 JASON PAUL MARIER 0.004

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

60'
60'

60'

60'

30' 30'

30' R/L=N01°53'49"E

T T

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG
BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

T

R

26 25

21

N

17
E

T
R

26

21 N

17 E

SHEET LOCATION

T21N

R17E

24

26

23

SCALE
0 .5 MI

25

100

UTILITY INTERESTS REQUIRED
UTILITY NO. OWNER INTEREST REQUIRED

100 AT&T RELEASE OF RIGHTS

SEE TPP 4984-24-74-4.02

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IPIP

IP

IP

IP

IP
IP

IP

IP

IP
P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L. P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.

P.
L.P.
L.

0.015 AC

0.009 AC

DELTA: 1°57'33" LT

N85°53'14"E 2641.39'
MON. TO MON.

N85°53'14"E 2211.30'
MON. TO 113

N85°53'14"E 369.94'
115 TO MON.

QUARTER LINE

FOUND
CHISELED X
Y = 563643.59
X = 827715.32

GN

SCALE, FEET
0 50 100



R/
L=

N
0°

03
'4

3"
W

LOT 14

LOT 9

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

LOT 8

LOT 5

LOT 4

LOT 1

LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

2

LOT 13

LOT 14

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 6

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N
LOT 1

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 8

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

LOT 8

LOT 7

LOT 6

LOT 5

BATE
M

AN'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

1

LOT 8

LOT 1

BATE
M

AN'S 
SE

COND

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 7

LOT 1

LOT 15

HARRIM
AN'S

LA
W

SB
URG PL

AT

BLO
CK 6

6

LOT 1

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 11

HARRIM
AN'S

LA
W

SB
URG PL

AT

BLO
CK 6

7

BATE
M

AN'S 
SE

COND

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

0

LOT 9

LOT 5

LOT 8

LOT 2LOT 3

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207
208 209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223224

T250

T251

T252

T253

T254

T255
T256

T257

T258

T259
T260

T261
T262

T263

T264

T265 T266

T267
T268

T269

T270

T271 T272

T273 T274

T275

T276

T277

T278

T279
T280

T281

T282

T283T284

T285
T286

T287

T288

T289

IP2000

IP2001

IP2002

IP2003

IP2004
IP2005

IP2006

IP2007

IP2008

AP
PR

AI
SA

L 
PL

AT
 D

AT
E 

:  
N

O
VE

M
BE

R 
12

,  
20

24
49

84
-2

4-
74

-4
.0

2

4
4

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
AY

RE
S 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
11

/1
3/

20
24

 8
:2

8 
AM

I:\
45

\4
50

63
9 

LA
W

E 
ST

 A
PP

LE
TO

N
\C

3D
\R

W
\T

PP
_4

02
.D

W
G

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 

RESERVED FOR REGISTER OF DEEDS
PROJECT NUMBER  4984-24-74-4.02
SHEET 1 OF 2

TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT NO: 4984-24-74-4.02

FOUND 5"X10" STONE
Y = 563833.03
X = 830349.91

RELOCATION ORDER - N LAWE STREET, COLLEGE AVE TO WISCONSIN AVENUE, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY

TO PROPERLY ESTABLISH, LAY OUT, WIDEN, ENLARGE, EXTEND, CONSTRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, IMPROVE, OR
MAINTAIN A PORTION OF THE HIGHWAY DESIGNATED ABOVE, THE CITY OF APPLETON DEEMS IT NECESSARY TO
RELOCATE OR CHANGE SAID HIGHWAY AND ACQUIRE CERTAIN LANDS AND INTERESTS OR RIGHTS IN LANDS FOR
THE ABOVE PROJECT.

TO EFFECT THIS CHANGE, PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY GRANTED UNDER SECTION 62.22, WISCONSIN STATUTES,
THE CITY OF APPLETON HEREBY ORDERS THAT:
1. THAT PORTION OF SAID HIGHWAY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS LAID OUT AND ESTABLISHED TO THE LINES

AND WIDTHS AS SO SHOWN FOR THE ABOVE PROJECT.
2. THE LANDS OR INTERESTS OR RIGHTS IN LANDS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE REQUIRED BY THE CITY FOR

THE ABOVE PROJECT AND SHALL BE ACQUIRED IN THE NAME OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 62.22, WISCONSIN STATUTES.

SIGNATURE: 

PRINT NAME: JACOB S. JENSEN

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 

DATE: 

SIGNATURE: 

PRINT NAME: MARK A. LAHAY - ASSISTANT CITY ENGINEER

DATE: _________ 

I, JACOB S. JENSEN, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 84.095 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE CITY OF APPLETON I HAVE SURVEYED AND MAPPED THIS
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT AND SUCH PLAT CORRECTLY REPRESENTS ALL EXTERIOR
BOUNDARIES OF THE SURVEYED LAND.

THIS PLAT AND RELOCATION ORDER ARE APPROVED FOR THE
CITY OF APPLETON

11/12/2024

S-2961

TLE ---19 ---JASON PAUL MARIER ---

SCHEDULE OF LANDS & INTERESTS REQUIRED
PARCEL
NUMBER

OWNER(S) INTEREST(S)
REQUIRED NEW EXISTING TOTAL

R/W ACRES REQUIRED

TLE ---41 ------SUSAN K. BURROUGHS

0.007
TLE

0.013

TLE ---42 ------SCOTT J. VANDENBOOGARD 0.017

TLE ---43 ------JEFFREY C. BABLER & LAURA J. IDOL 0.011

TLE ---44 ------ANDREAS PETANITIS & SARA ATHENS 0.011

TLE ---46 ------RAYMOND L. & JANE K. FORLER 0.019

TLE ---47 ------DERECK JORDAN 0.017

TLE ---48 ------COCO VIE LLC 0.017

TLE ---49 ------WALTER E. BROWN 0.009

TLE51 ZACHARY SNELL & NICOLE MOLZAHN 0.012

TLE52 RICHARD L. REETZ REVOCABLE TRUST
DATED MARCH 2, 1989 0.014

TLE53 PILLARS, INC. 0.034

TLE54  MACH IV HOLDINGS, LLC 0.011

TLE56  VALLEYCAST, INC 0.029

FEE & TLE57 WOOD BROWN, LLC 0.023

TLE59  SHANE VERSTEGEN 0.009

TLE61 PENNTEX PROPERTIES 0.016

TLE62 DUAINE M. & KIM J. SEIDLER 0.014

TLE63 MATTHEW S. KRICKEBERG & MARGARET D. ALFREY 0.012

TLE66 LUKE J. JACOBS 0.011

TLE67 DAVID L. & JULIE A. NEELY 0.011

TLE68 JAMES P. & PATRICIA J. PUTMAN 0.013

TLE69 CORY A. LOOMIS & MIRANDA A. OTTE 0.012

TLE71  AMANDA J. BANGART 0.008

JACOB S.
JENSEN

S-2961
ASHWAUBENON,

WI

 
 W

I S C ON S I N
 

 

LAND SURVE
YO

R

THAT PART OF LOTS 1, 4-5, 8-9, BLOCK 6, PART OF LOTS 1, 4-5, AND 8, BLOCK 1, PART OF LOTS 5-8, BLOCK 11, AND PART OF LOTS 9-14, BLOCK 12, ALL IN BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO
THE CITY OF APPLETON, PART OF LOTS 1 AND 8, BLOCK 7, AND PART OF LOTS 1, 6-7, BLOCK 10, ALL IN BATEMAN'S SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, PART OF LOTS 1
AND 15, BLOCK 66, AND PART OF LOTS 1-2, AND 11, BLOCK 67, HARRIMAN'S LAWSBURG PLAT, IN PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 26, IN
TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CITY

OF

APPLETON

19 TLE

TLE58 MELANIE A. MALM 0.011

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

0.011---0.011

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

25'

BLDG

T
R

26 25

21
N

17
ET

R

26

21 N

17 E

TLE 41

TLE 42

TLE 43

TLE 44

TLE 46

TLE 47

TLE 49

TLE 48

TLE 51

TLE 52

TLE 53

56

57 FEE

57 FEE

57 TLE

57 TLE

58 TLE

59 TLE

61 TLE

62 TLE

63 TLE

64 TLE

64 TLE

66 TLE

67 TLE

68 TLE

69 TLE

71 TLE

TLE

TLE 54

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

E PACIFIC STREET

E ATLANTIC STREET

E HANCOCK STREET

N
. L

A
W

E 
ST

R
EE

T

TLE64 NEIGHBORHOOD INVESTMENT LLC 0.026---------

.003 AC

.008 AC

30'
30'

30'
30'

25'

30' 30'

N85°53'14"E 2641.39'
MON. TO MON.

N85°53'14"E 2211.30'
MON. TO 200

N85°53'14"E 369.94'
223 TO MON.

.012 AC

.014 ACSHEET LOCATION

T21N

R17E

24

26

23

SCALE
0 .5 MI

25

FOUND
CHISELED X
Y = 563643.59
X = 827715.32

QUARTER LINE

QUARTER LINE

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

R
/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

SIXTEENTH LINE

SIXTEENTH LINE

P.L.

NOTES:

POSITIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFERENCE SYSTEM COORDINATES (WISCRS),
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, NAD83(2011 ), IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. VALUES ARE GRID COORDINATES, GRID BEARINGS, AND
GRID DISTANCES. GRID DISTANCES MAY BE USED AS GROUND DISTANCES.

ALL NEW RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENTS WILL BE TYPE 2 (TYPICALLY 34" X 24" IRON REBARS), UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED, AND WILL BE PLACED PRIOR TO THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

FOR CURRENT ACCESS/DRIVEWAY INFORMATION, CONTACT THE CITY OF APPLETON.

ALL FOUND MONUMENT INFORMATION SHOWN REPRESENTS TYPE AND LOCATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS
WITHOUT OPINION AS TO THEIR VALIDITY AND USE AS A PROPERTY CORNER.

EXISTING HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN HEREIN IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING POINTS OF REFERENCE:

N. LAWE STREET:  BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, BATEMAN'S SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF
APPLETON AND HARRIMAN'S LAWSBURG PLAT.

E. PACIFIC STREET:  BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON.

E. ATLANTIC STREET:  BATEMAN'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, BATEMAN'S SECOND ADDITION TO THE
CITY OF APPLETON  AND HARRIMAN'S LAWSBURG PLAT.

E. HANCOCK STREET:  BATEMAN'S SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON  AND HARRIMAN'S LAWSBURG
PLAT.

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REFER TO THE TITLE SHEET, RECORDED AS SHEET 2 OF 3 OF DOCUMENT NUMBER
2325979.

SE-NE

SEE TPP 4984-24-74-4.01

SEE TPP 4984-24-74-4.03

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

.006 AC

.005 AC

57 TLE
.012 AC

GN

SCALE, FEET
0 50 100

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP



LOT 7

LOT 11

HARRIM
AN'S

LA
W

SB
URG PL

AT

BLO
CK 6

7

BATE
M

AN'S 
SE

COND

ADDITI
ON TO

 TH
E

CITY
 O

F A
PP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

0

LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 13

LOT 9

LOT 8

LOT 10

LOT 4

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1 LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 7 LOT 8

JO
HNSO

NS A
DDITI

ON

TO
 APP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 3

LOT 1

LOT 2

LOT 3 LOT 4

LOT 5 LOT 6

LOT 7LOT 8LOT 9LOT 10

LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 1

LOT 3

LOT 3

LOT 4

HER
M

AN ER
B'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 APP
LE

TO
N

BLO
CK 3

LOT 4

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

HER
M

AN ER
B'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 APP
LE

TO
N

BLO
CK 1

5

LOT 4

LOT 3
LOT 11

LOT 12

LOT 10 LOT 9 LOT 8

LOT 7

JO
HNSO

NS A
DDITI

ON

TO
 APP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 2

JO
HNSO

NS A
DDITI

ON

TO
 APP

LE
TO

N

BLO
CK 1

HER
M

AN ER
B'S

ADDITI
ON TO

 APP
LE

TO
N

BLO
CK 5

R/L=S89°46'44"E

R/
L=

N
0°

09
'2

1"
E

R/
L=

N
0°

03
'4

3"
W

LOT 6LOT 5LOT 4LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

58.3'

60
'

66'

PI STA = 137+57.07
Y = 565989.745
X = 829948.713

D = 30°09'20"
T = 190.94'
L = 299.39'
R = 190.00'
PC STA = 135+66.13
Y = 565798.804
X = 829948.919
PT STA = 138+65.52
Y = 565989.008
X = 830139.652
DB = N00°03'43"W
DA = S89°46'44"E

RTDELTA = 90°16'59"

PI STA = 140+86.78
Y = 565988.154
X = 830360.917

D = 31°49'52"
T = 180.20'
L = 282.95'
R = 180.00'
PC STA = 139+06.58
Y = 565988.850
X = 830180.713
PT STA = 141+89.53
Y = 566168.359
X = 830361.407
DB = S89°46'44"E
DA = N00°09'21"E

LTDELTA = 90°03'55"

IP3000
IP3001

IP3002

IP3003

IP3004

IP3005

IP3006

IP3007

IP3008

IP3009

303
C1

C3

C2

12
8

12
9

13
0

13
1

13
2

13
3

13
4

13
5

13
6

13
7

138
139

140

14
1

14
2

14
3

66'

CURVE 1
CURVE 2

300

301302

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

314

315

316

317 318

319

321

322

323

T350

T351

T352

T353

T354
T355

T356

T357

T358
T359
T360

T361

T362

T363

T364
T365

T366

T367

T368

T369

T370
T371

T372
T373

T374

T375

T376T377

T378

T379

T380

T381

T382

T383

P325

P326

PC: 135+66.13

PT
: 1

38
+6

5.
52

PC
: 1

39
+0

6.
58

PT: 141+89.53

P327

P324

LOT 5

VACATED SPRING STREET

AP
PR

AI
SA

L 
PL

AT
 D

AT
E 

: N
O

VE
M

BE
R 

12
,  

20
24

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
3

4
4

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
AY

RE
S 

AS
SO

CI
AT

ES
11

/1
3/

20
24

 8
:5

3 
AM

I:\
45

\4
50

63
9 

LA
W

E 
ST

 A
PP

LE
TO

N
\C

3D
\R

W
\T

PP
_4

03
.D

W
G

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 

RESERVED FOR REGISTER OF DEEDS
PROJECT NUMBER  4984-24-74-4.03
SHEET 1 OF 2

TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT NO: 4984-24-74-4.03

T
R

23
26

21

N

17

E

SHEET LOCATION

RELOCATION ORDER - N LAWE STREET, COLLEGE AVE TO WISCONSIN AVENUE, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY

TO PROPERLY ESTABLISH, LAY OUT, WIDEN, ENLARGE, EXTEND, CONSTRUCT, RECONSTRUCT, IMPROVE, OR
MAINTAIN A PORTION OF THE HIGHWAY DESIGNATED ABOVE, THE CITY OF APPLETON DEEMS IT NECESSARY TO
RELOCATE OR CHANGE SAID HIGHWAY AND ACQUIRE CERTAIN LANDS AND INTERESTS OR RIGHTS IN LANDS FOR
THE ABOVE PROJECT.

TO EFFECT THIS CHANGE, PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY GRANTED UNDER SECTION 62.22, WISCONSIN STATUTES,
THE CITY OF APPLETON HEREBY ORDERS THAT:
1. THAT PORTION OF SAID HIGHWAY AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT IS LAID OUT AND ESTABLISHED TO THE LINES

AND WIDTHS AS SO SHOWN FOR THE ABOVE PROJECT.
2. THE LANDS OR INTERESTS OR RIGHTS IN LANDS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE REQUIRED BY THE

DEPARTMENT FOR THE ABOVE PROJECT AND SHALL BE ACQUIRED IN THE NAME OF THE CITY OF APPLETON,
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 62.22, WISCONSIN STATUTES.

T21N

R17E

24

26

23

SCALE
0 .5 MI

SIGNATURE: 

PRINT NAME: JACOB S. JENSEN

REGISTRATION NUMBER: 

DATE: 

SIGNATURE: 

PRINT NAME: MARK A. LAHAY - ASSISTANT CITY ENGINEER 

DATE: _________ 

I, JACOB S. JENSEN, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 84.095 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND
UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE CITY OF APPLETON I HAVE SURVEYED AND MAPPED THIS
TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT AND SUCH PLAT CORRECTLY REPRESENTS ALL EXTERIOR
BOUNDARIES OF THE SURVEYED LAND.

THIS PLAT AND RELOCATION ORDER ARE APPROVED FOR THE
CITY OF APPLETON

11/12/2024

S-2961

SUMMER STREET

THAT PART OF LOTS 7, 10-12, BLOCK 10 OF BATEMEN'S SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, PART OF LOTS 3-5, BLOCK 15, PART OF LOTS 1 AND 3,
BLOCK 5, PART OF LOT 4, BLOCK 3, ALL OF HERMAN ERB'S ADDITION TO APPLETON, PART OF LOTS 10 AND 11, BLOCK 67 OF HARRIMAN'S LAWSBURG PLAT, PART
OF LOTS 1-4, BLOCK 3, PART OF LOT 12, BLOCK 2, AND PART OF VACATED SPRING STREET OF JOHNSONS ADDITION TO APPLETON, ALL BEING PART OF THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 26, IN TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CITY

APPLETON

56 TLE

54

0.010 AC

SCHEDULE OF LANDS & INTERESTS REQUIRED
PARCEL
NUMBER

OWNER(S) INTEREST(S)
REQUIRED NEW EXISTING TOTAL

R/W ACRES REQUIRED

PLE

TLE54  MACH IV HOLDINGS, LLC ---

TLE56  VALLEYCAST, INC ---

PLE & TLE72 MARK A. WILSON 0.009

TLE74 SARAH S. VANCLEVE ---

TLE76 GUILLERMO TORRES OCHOA & ADRIANA MONCADA ---

TLE77 FNLR FUJI LLC ---

TLE73 SOCORRO AVELLA-LEON ---

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

---------

OF

56 TLE
0.003 AC

56 TLE
0.011 AC

TLE 720.015 AC

TLE 720.013 AC

TLE

TLE 73

TLE 74

TLE 76

77 TLE
0.062 AC

77 TLE
0.003 AC

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

BLDG

FOUND BRASS
CAP MONUMENT

Y = 566295.030
X = 827669.270

SPRING STREET

WISCONSIN CENTRAL LTD

N
. L

A
W

E 
ST

R
EE

T

30'30'

T
R

23 24
26 25

21

N

17

E

FOUND
BRASS CAP
MONUMENT
Y = 566277.42
X = 830372.98

M
EA

D
E 

ST
R

EE
T

25

SEE TPP 4984-24-74-4.02

TLE

0.034

0.024

0.028

0.042

0.013

0.065

0.014

PLE 72

SECTION LINE

N89°37'37"W 2630.03' 322 TO MON.

FOUND
BRASS CAP
MONUMENT

Y = 566308.46
X = 833103.79

T

R

24
25

21

N

17
E

N89°20'56"E 2730.98'
MON. TO MON.

N89°37'37"W 2703.77' MON. TO MON.

SECTION LINE

SE
C

TI
O

N
 L

IN
E

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

R/W

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.L.

P.
L. P.
L.

P.L.

R/W

R/W R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

R
/W

NOTES:

POSITIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE WISCONSIN COORDINATE REFERENCE
SYSTEM COORDINATES (WISCRS), OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, NAD83(2011 ), IN U.S.
SURVEY FEET. VALUES ARE GRID COORDINATES, GRID BEARINGS, AND GRID
DISTANCES. GRID DISTANCES MAY BE USED AS GROUND DISTANCES.

ALL NEW RIGHT-OF-WAY MONUMENTS WILL BE TYPE 2 (TYPICALLY 34" X 24" IRON
REBARS), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, AND WILL BE PLACED PRIOR TO THE
COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

FOR CURRENT ACCESS/DRIVEWAY INFORMATION, CONTACT THE CITY OF
APPLETON.

ALL FOUND MONUMENT INFORMATION SHOWN REPRESENTS TYPE AND
LOCATION OF EXISTING MONUMENTS WITHOUT OPINION AS TO THEIR VALIDITY
AND USE AS A PROPERTY CORNER.

EXISTING HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN HEREIN IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING
POINTS OF REFERENCE:

N. LAWE STREET:  BATEMAN'S SECOND ADDITION TO THE CITY OF APPLETON,
HARRIMANS'S LAWSBURG PLAT, HERMAN ERB'S ADDITION TO APPLETON, AND
JOHNSONS ADDITION TO APPLETON.

SPRING STREET:  HERMAN ERB'S ADDITION TO APPLETON.

SUMMER STREET:  HERMAN ERB'S ADDITION TO APPLETON, AND JOHNSONS
ADDITION TO APPLETON.

MEADE STREET:  JOHNSONS ADDITION TO APPLETON.

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REFER TO THE TITLE SHEET, RECORDED AS SHEET
2 OF 3 IN DOCUMENT NUMBER 2325979.

60'

CURVE 1

CURVE 2

SIXTEENTH LINE
SIXTEENTH LINE

JACOB S.
JENSEN

S-2961
ASHWAUBENON,

WI

 
 W

I S C ON S I N
 

 

LAND SURVE
YO

R

GN

SCALE, FEET
0 50 100

IP IP
IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP

IP IP



R/
W

 C
O

U
RS

E 
TA

BL
E

CO
U

RS
E

20
0-

20
1

20
1-

20
2

20
2-

20
3

20
3-

20
4

20
4-

20
5

20
5-

20
6

20
6-

20
7

20
7-

20
8

20
8-

20
9

20
9-

21
0

21
0-

21
1

21
1-

21
2

BE
AR

IN
G

N
00

°0
2'

50
"W

N
00

°2
3'

28
"E

N
00

°0
8'

55
"W

N
00

°2
8'

30
"E

N
00

°0
4'

36
"W

N
00

°0
4'

36
"W

N
00

°0
4'

36
"W

N
88

°0
9'

23
"E

N
88

°0
9'

23
"E

S0
0°

04
'3

6"
E

S4
5°

12
'5

0"
E

N
89

°3
8'

57
"E

DI
ST

AN
CE

34
1.

13
'

60
.0

0'

25
5.

40
'

60
.0

0'

24
3.

79
'

58
.0

0'

22
0.

52
'

29
.5

7'

30
.4

6'

21
0.

66
'

25
.4

0'

5.
96

'

R/
W

 C
O

U
RS

E 
TA

BL
E

CO
U

RS
E

21
2-

21
3

21
3-

21
4

21
4-

21
5

21
5-

21
6

21
7-

21
8

21
8-

21
9

21
9-

22
0

22
0-

22
1

22
1-

22
2

22
2-

22
3

22
3-

22
4

22
4-

20
0

BE
AR

IN
G

S4
5°

00
'0

0"
E

N
89

°3
8'

57
"E

S0
0°

21
'0

3"
E

S4
5°

00
'0

0"
W

S4
4°

47
'1

0"
W

S0
0°

04
'3

6"
E

S0
0°

28
'3

1"
W

S0
0°

08
'5

5"
E

S0
0°

23
'2

8"
W

S0
0°

02
'5

0"
E

S8
5°

53
'1

4"
W

S8
5°

53
'1

4"
W

DI
ST

AN
CE

2.
81

'

16
.2

1'

50
.0

0'

2.
85

'

25
.5

2'

22
3.

22
'

60
.0

0'

25
5.

70
'

60
.0

0'

33
6.

88
'

29
.9

2'

30
.2

3'

R/
W

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 &

 O
FF

SE
T 

TA
BL

E

PO
IN

T

20
0

20
1

20
2

20
3

20
4

20
5

20
6

20
7

20
8

20
9

21
0

21
1

21
2

ST
AT

IO
N

11
5+

69
.5

4

11
9+

10
.6

7

11
9+

70
.6

7

12
2+

26
.0

7

12
2+

86
.0

7

12
5+

29
.8

6

12
5+

87
.8

6

12
8+

08
.3

8

12
8+

09
.3

0

12
8+

10
.2

4

12
5+

99
.5

9

12
5+

81
.6

8

12
5+

81
.7

1

O
FF

SE
T

30
.1

6'
  L

T

30
.0

7'
  L

T

29
.6

0'
  L

T

29
.9

8'
  L

T

29
.4

2'
  L

T

29
.4

8'
  L

T

29
.5

0'
  L

T

29
.5

5'
  L

T

0.
00

'

30
.4

5'
  R

T

30
.5

0'
  R

T

48
.5

0'
  R

T

54
.4

7'
  R

T

R/
W

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 &

 O
FF

SE
T 

TA
BL

E

PO
IN

T

21
3

21
4

21
5

21
6

21
7

21
8

21
9

22
0

22
1

22
2

22
3

22
4

ST
AT

IO
N

12
5+

79
.7

2

12
5+

79
.8

0

12
5+

29
.8

0

12
5+

27
.7

9

12
5+

27
.6

8

12
5+

09
.5

8

12
2+

86
.3

6

12
2+

26
.3

6

11
9+

70
.6

7

11
9+

10
.6

7

11
5+

73
.7

9

11
5+

71
.6

7

O
FF

SE
T

56
.4

5'
  R

T

72
.6

6'
  R

T

72
.9

1'
  R

T

70
.9

0'
  R

T

48
.5

2'
  R

T

30
.5

2'
  R

T

30
.5

8'
  R

T

30
.0

2'
  R

T

30
.4

0'
  R

T

29
.9

3'
  R

T

29
.8

4'
  R

T

0.
00

'

TL
E 

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

25
0

25
1

25
2

25
3

25
4

25
5

25
6

25
7

25
8

25
9

26
0

26
1

26
2

26
3

26
4

26
5

26
6

26
7

26
8

26
9

ST
AT

IO
N

11
5+

68
.9

7

11
6+

40
.6

7

11
6+

40
.6

7

11
8+

50
.6

7

11
8+

50
.6

7

11
9+

05
.6

7

11
9+

05
.6

8

11
9+

10
.6

7

11
9+

70
.6

7

11
9+

75
.6

7

11
9+

75
.6

7

12
2+

21
.0

9

12
2+

21
.1

5

12
2+

26
.1

5

12
2+

86
.1

4

12
2+

91
.1

4

12
2+

91
.0

8

12
5+

24
.8

6

12
5+

24
.9

1

12
5+

29
.9

1

O
FF

SE
T

38
.1

6'
  L

T

38
.1

4'
  L

T

42
.1

4'
  L

T

42
.0

9'
  L

T

40
.0

9'
  L

T

40
.0

7'
  L

T

65
.0

7'
  L

T

65
.0

7'
  L

T

59
.6

0'
  L

T

59
.6

0'
  L

T

37
.6

0'
  L

T

37
.9

7'
  L

T

59
.9

7'
  L

T

59
.9

8'
  L

T

59
.4

2'
  L

T

59
.4

2'
  L

T

34
.4

2'
  L

T

34
.4

8'
  L

T

59
.4

8'
  L

T

59
.4

8'
  L

T

TL
E 

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

27
0

27
1

27
2

27
3

27
4

27
5

27
6

27
7

27
8

27
9

28
0

28
1

28
2

28
3

28
4

28
5

28
6

28
7

28
8

28
9

ST
AT

IO
N

12
5+

87
.9

1

12
5+

89
.9

1

12
5+

89
.8

6

12
8+

08
.3

1

12
8+

10
.4

9

12
5+

97
.7

1

12
5+

21
.7

6

12
5+

21
.6

5

12
5+

17
.6

3

12
2+

91
.3

6

12
2+

91
.3

5

12
2+

86
.3

5

12
2+

26
.3

5

12
2+

21
.3

5

12
2+

21
.3

6

11
9+

75
.6

7

11
9+

75
.6

7

11
9+

70
.6

7

11
9+

10
.6

7

11
5+

74
.3

5

O
FF

SE
T

59
.5

0'
  L

T

59
.5

0'
  L

T

31
.5

0'
  L

T

31
.5

5'
  L

T

38
.4

5'
  R

T

38
.5

0'
  R

T

64
.9

5'
  R

T

42
.5

2'
  R

T

38
.5

2'
  R

T

38
.5

8'
  R

T

60
.5

8'
  R

T

60
.5

8'
  R

T

60
.0

2'
  R

T

60
.0

3'
  R

T

38
.0

3'
  R

T

38
.4

0'
  R

T

60
.4

0'
  R

T

60
.4

0'
  R

T

37
.9

3'
  R

T

37
.8

4'
  R

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 IR

O
N

 P
O

IN
T 

TA
BL

E

PO
IN

T 
N

AM
E

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

Y 
 C

O
O

RD
S

56
43

30
.9

65

56
43

98
.7

94

56
44

58
.7

14

56
42

67
.1

58

56
42

03
.3

81

56
42

03
.8

01

56
40

23
.6

18

56
38

47
.1

01

56
37

85
.1

88

X 
CO

O
RD

S

82
99

20
.8

79

82
99

20
.5

87

82
99

20
.3

89

82
99

80
.1

43

82
99

81
.0

51

83
01

93
.8

91

82
99

80
.6

88

82
99

81
.3

71

82
99

81
.4

37

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

FD
 1

"I
RO

N
 P

IP
E

21
6-

21
7

S8
9°

38
'5

7"
W

22
.3

8'

TR
AN

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 P
RO

JE
CT

 P
LA

T 
N

O
:

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 S
HE

ET

I:\
45

\4
50

63
9 

LA
W

E 
ST

 A
PP

LE
TO

N
\C

3D
\R

W
\T

PP
_4

02
.D

W
G

AP
PR

AI
SA

L 
PL

AT
 D

AT
E 

:  
N

O
VE

M
BE

R 
12

, 2
02

4
__

__
__

__
__

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
2

4
4

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
TA

CK
M

IE
R,

 JI
LL

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 
11

/1
2/

20
24

 7
:3

9 
AM

PR
OJ

EC
T N

UM
BE

R  
49

84
-2

4-
74

-4
.02

SH
EE

T 2
 O

F 2

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
2

RE
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 O
RD

ER
 - 

N
 L

AW
E 

ST
RE

ET
, C

O
LL

EG
E 

AV
E 

TO
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 C
O

U
N

TY



SPNOIRNETRTT5 0T5 0T7M0T7S0T7G0T7F0T7S0---0-00-0------------SPNOIRNETRTT5 0T5 0T7M0T7S0T7G0T7F0T7S0---0-00-0------------

X 
= 

83
01

39
.6

52
DB

 =
 N

00
°0

3'
43

"W
DA

 =
 S

89
°4

6'
44

"E

X 
= 

83
03

61
.4

07
DB

 =
 S

89
°4

6'
44

"E
DA

 =
 N

00
°0

9'
21

"E

313-314

30
8

30
9

31
0

31
1

31
2

31
3

31
4

31
5

31
6

31
7

31
8

31
9

32
1

32
2

32
3

12
8+

10
.2

4

12
8+

09
.3

0

12
8+

08
.3

8

13
0+

34
.9

6

13
1+

11
.3

4

13
4+

30
.5

5

13
4+

90
.5

5

13
6+

88
.6

0

13
7+

17
.2

6

13
7+

47
.4

2

13
8+

97
.1

3

14
1+

39
.9

3

14
2+

65
.8

9

14
2+

98
.9

0

14
2+

98
.6

6

30
.4

5 
' R

T

0.
00

 '

29
.5

5 
' L

T

29
.6

1 
' L

T

29
.9

7 
' L

T

29
.4

5 
' L

T

29
.4

4 
' L

T

84
.5

1 
' L

T

12
2.

59
 ' 

LT

84
.6

1 
' L

T

33
.1

6 
' L

T

28
.3

4 
' L

T

62
.5

9 
' L

T

62
.4

6 
' L

T

0.
00

 '

35
7

35
8

35
9

36
0

36
1

36
2

36
3

36
4

36
5

36
6

12
9+

45
.8

8

12
9+

27
.8

9

12
9+

27
.9

0

12
8+

63
.7

9

12
8+

63
.8

0

12
8+

10
.4

9

12
8+

08
.3

1

12
9+

56
.7

0

12
9+

56
.6

9

12
9+

99
.7

5

38
.4

1 
' R

T

38
.4

2 
' R

T

30
.4

2 
' R

T

30
.4

3 
' R

T

38
.4

3 
' R

T

38
.4

5 
' R

T

31
.5

5 
' L

T

31
.5

9 
' L

T

49
.5

9 
' L

T

49
.6

0 
' L

T

37
4

37
5

37
6

37
7

37
8

37
9

38
0

38
1

38
2

38
3

13
3+

22
.9

1

13
3+

22
.9

1

13
4+

25
.5

7

13
4+

25
.6

5

13
4+

30
.6

5

13
4+

90
.6

3

13
4+

98
.6

3

13
4+

98
.5

6

13
5+

20
.5

6

13
5+

20
.5

5

39
.6

0 
' L

T

44
.6

0 
' L

T

44
.4

5 
' L

T

90
.1

9 
' L

T

90
.1

8 
' L

T

79
.4

4 
' L

T

79
.4

4 
' L

T

37
.4

4 
' L

T

37
.4

4 
' L

T

29
.4

4 
' L

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

IP
ES

 P
O

IN
T 

TA
BL

E

PO
IN

T 
N

U
M

BE
R

30
00

30
01

30
02

30
03

30
04

30
05

30
06

30
07

30
08

30
09

Y 
 C

O
O

RD
S

56
59

63
.3

63

56
59

55
.8

34

56
59

55
.8

82

56
56

63
.2

31

56
56

63
.2

69

56
57

23
.2

09

56
57

93
.5

62

56
61

25
.5

21

56
62

02
.7

80

56
62

45
.0

59

X 
CO

O
RD

S

83
03

38
.1

67

83
01

74
.3

08

83
01

45
.4

08

82
98

59
.0

49

82
97

98
.2

45

82
97

98
.1

44

82
99

18
.8

72

83
02

93
.4

76

83
03

27
.2

95

83
02

98
.9

21

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E 
FO

U
N

D

CO
U

RS
E 

TA
BL

E

CO
U

RS
E

30
0-

30
1

30
1-

30
2

30
2-

30
3

30
01

-3
00

2

30
5-

30
6

30
6-

30
7

30
7-

30
8

30
8-

30
9

30
9-

31
0

31
0-

31
1

31
1-

31
2

31
2-

32
4

32
4-

32
7

BE
AR

IN
G

S0
0°

32
'2

7"
W

N
89

°5
2'

01
"W

N
89

°5
2'

01
"W

N
89

°5
4'

21
"W

S0
0°

00
'0

4"
E

S0
0°

17
'0

2"
E

S0
0°

04
'3

6"
E

S8
8°

09
'2

3"
W

S8
8°

09
'2

3"
W

N
00

°0
4'

36
"W

N
00

°1
9'

59
"W

N
00

°0
2'

19
"E

N
00

°0
2'

19
"E

DI
ST

AN
CE

31
4.

46
'

32
.0

2'

10
5.

96
'

28
.9

0'

44
9.

18
'

75
.6

3'

25
9.

47
'

30
.4

6'

29
.5

7'

22
6.

58
'

76
.3

8'

3.
97

'

20
.0

0'

CO
U

RS
E 

TA
BL

E

CO
U

RS
E

32
7-

31
3

31
4-

31
5

31
5-

31
6

31
6-

31
7

31
7-

31
8

31
9-

30
08

30
08

-3
21

32
1-

32
2

32
2-

32
3

32
3-

30
0

BE
AR

IN
G

N
00

°0
1'

54
"E

N
00

°0
3'

28
"W

N
00

°0
3'

28
"W

N
00

°3
3'

06
"E

N
89

°1
1'

16
"E

S8
9°

45
'1

1"
E

N
00

°0
2'

47
"E

N
33

°5
1'

58
"W

N
00

°2
2'

23
"E

S8
9°

37
'3

7"
E

S8
9°

37
'3

7"
E

DI
ST

AN
CE

29
5.

24
'

60
.0

0'

24
0.

53
'

58
.3

0'

60
.0

0'

19
1.

52
'

75
.5

8'

50
.7

2'

33
.0

0'

62
.4

6'

11
.2

8'

30
3-

30
01

SE
E 

CU
RV

E 
TA

BL
E 

C1

30
02

-3
05

SE
E 

CU
RV

E 
TA

BL
E 

C2

31
8-

31
9

SE
E 

CU
RV

E 
TA

BL
E 

C3

PA
RC

EL
 7

2 
PL

E 
TA

BL
E

CO
U

RS
E

P3
24

-P
32

5

P3
25

-P
32

6

P3
26

-P
32

7

P3
27

-P
32

4

BE
AR

IN
G

N
89

°5
7'

41
"W

N
00

°0
2'

19
"E

S8
9°

57
'4

1"
E

S0
0°

02
'1

9"
W

DI
ST

AN
CE

20
.0

0'

20
.0

0'

20
.0

0'

20
.0

0'

R/
W

 S
TA

TI
O

N
 &

 O
FF

SE
T 

TA
BL

E

PO
IN

T

30
0

30
1

30
2

30
3

30
5

30
6

30
7

30
8

30
9

31
0

31
1

31
2

31
3

31
4

31
5

31
6

31
7

31
8

31
9

32
1

32
2

32
3

ST
AT

IO
N

14
2+

98
.6

2

14
0+

40
.7

7

14
0+

24
.3

4

13
9+

50
.7

3

13
5+

99
.6

1

13
1+

45
.3

4

13
0+

69
.7

1

12
8+

10
.2

4

12
8+

09
.3

0

12
8+

08
.3

8

13
0+

34
.9

6

13
1+

11
.3

4

13
4+

30
.5

5

13
4+

90
.5

5

13
6+

88
.6

0

13
7+

17
.2

6

13
7+

47
.4

2

13
8+

97
.1

3

14
1+

39
.9

3

14
2+

65
.8

9

14
2+

98
.9

0

14
2+

98
.6

6

O
FF

SE
T

11
.2

8 
' R

T

99
.2

1 
' R

T

78
.6

0 
' R

T

31
.7

0 
' R

T

28
.0

6 
' R

T

30
.0

9 
' R

T

30
.3

8 
' R

T

30
.4

5 
' R

T

0.
00

 '

29
.5

5 
' L

T

29
.6

1 
' L

T

29
.9

7 
' L

T

29
.4

5 
' L

T

29
.4

4 
' L

T

84
.5

1 
' L

T

12
2.

59
 ' 

LT

84
.6

1 
' L

T

33
.1

6 
' L

T

28
.3

4 
' L

T

62
.5

9 
' L

T

62
.4

6 
' L

T

0.
00

 '

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

35
0

35
1

35
2

35
3

35
4

35
5

35
6

35
7

35
8

35
9

36
0

36
1

36
2

36
3

36
4

36
5

36
6

ST
AT

IO
N

13
5+

04
.9

7

13
5+

04
.9

7

13
1+

49
.8

6

13
0+

83
.8

3

13
0+

63
.8

3

13
0+

49
.7

1

12
9+

45
.7

8

12
9+

45
.8

8

12
9+

27
.8

9

12
9+

27
.9

0

12
8+

63
.7

9

12
8+

63
.8

0

12
8+

10
.4

9

12
8+

08
.3

1

12
9+

56
.7

0

12
9+

56
.6

9

12
9+

99
.7

5

O
FF

SE
T

30
.5

6 
' R

T

38
.5

6 
' R

T

38
.0

9 
' R

T

55
.3

8 
' R

T

55
.3

8 
' R

T

30
.3

9 
' R

T

30
.4

1 
' R

T

38
.4

1 
' R

T

38
.4

2 
' R

T

30
.4

2 
' R

T

30
.4

3 
' R

T

38
.4

3 
' R

T

38
.4

5 
' R

T

31
.5

5 
' L

T

31
.5

9 
' L

T

49
.5

9 
' L

T

49
.6

0 
' L

T

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

36
7

36
8

36
9

37
0

37
1

37
2

37
3

37
4

37
5

37
6

37
7

37
8

37
9

38
0

38
1

38
2

38
3

ST
AT

IO
N

12
9+

99
.7

5

13
0+

29
.0

7

13
0+

96
.6

0

13
1+

45
.3

5

13
1+

45
.3

1

13
2+

05
.9

6

13
2+

05
.9

5

13
3+

22
.9

1

13
3+

22
.9

1

13
4+

25
.5

7

13
4+

25
.6

5

13
4+

30
.6

5

13
4+

90
.6

3

13
4+

98
.6

3

13
4+

98
.5

6

13
5+

20
.5

6

13
5+

20
.5

5

O
FF

SE
T

39
.6

0 
' L

T

39
.6

1 
' L

T

55
.0

0 
' L

T

54
.9

1 
' L

T

29
.9

1 
' L

T

29
.8

1 
' L

T

39
.8

1 
' L

T

39
.6

0 
' L

T

44
.6

0 
' L

T

44
.4

5 
' L

T

90
.1

9 
' L

T

90
.1

8 
' L

T

79
.4

4 
' L

T

79
.4

4 
' L

T

37
.4

4 
' L

T

37
.4

4 
' L

T

29
.4

4 
' L

T

31
3-

31
4

TR
AN

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 P
RO

JE
CT

 P
LA

T 
N

O
:

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 S
H

EE
T

PR
OJ

EC
T N

UM
BE

R  
24

98
4-

24
-7

4-
4.0

3
SH

EE
T 2

 O
F 2

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
3

RE
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 O
RD

ER
 - 

N
 L

AW
E 

ST
RE

ET
, C

O
LL

EG
E 

AV
E 

TO
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 C
O

U
N

TY

I:\
45

\4
50

63
9 

LA
W

E 
ST

 A
PP

LE
TO

N
\C

3D
\R

W
\T

PP
_4

03
.D

W
G

AP
PR

AI
SA

L 
PL

AT
 D

AT
E 

:  
N

O
VE

M
BE

R 
12

, 2
02

4
__

__
__

__
__

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
3

4
4

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
TA

CK
M

IE
R,

 JI
LL

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 
7/

11
/2

02
4 

3:
55

 P
M

R/
W

 C
U

RV
E 

TA
BL

E

CU
RV

E

C1

LE
N

G
TH

58
.3

6'

RA
DI

U
S

22
4.

20
'

LO
N

G
 C

H
O

RD

58
.2

0'

LO
N

G
 C

H
O

RD
 B

EA
RI

N
G

S8
2°

38
'1

1"
W

C2
22

6.
09

'
17

1.
00

'
20

9.
98

'
S5

2°
12

'5
9"

W

C3
19

9.
69

'
16

7.
00

'
18

8.
00

'
N

55
°5

9'
32

"E



ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

10
0

10
1

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
5

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

11
0

11
1

11
2

11
3

11
4

ST
AT

IO
N

10
0+

52
.3

0

10
0+

51
.7

2

10
0+

68
.5

4

10
2+

78
.2

2

10
3+

28
.2

1

10
3+

78
.2

1

10
4+

38
.2

1

10
7+

70
.1

8

10
8+

30
.1

8

11
0+

71
.4

2

11
1+

31
.4

3

11
3+

72
.9

0

11
4+

32
.9

0

11
5+

69
.5

4

11
5+

71
.6

7

O
FF

SE
T

29
.3

7'
 L

T

47
.0

0'
 L

T

33
.7

3'
 L

T

33
.9

6'
 L

T

30
.0

1'
 L

T

30
.0

7'
 L

T

30
.2

6'
 L

T

29
.9

5'
 L

T

30
.1

5'
 L

T

29
.8

5'
 L

T

30
.6

8'
 L

T

29
.9

7'
 L

T

30
.1

9'
 L

T

30
.1

6'
 L

T

0.
00

'

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

11
5

11
6

11
7

11
8

11
9

12
0

12
1

12
2

12
3

12
4

12
5

12
6

12
7

12
8

ST
AT

IO
N

11
5+

73
.7

9

11
4+

32
.3

0

11
3+

72
.3

0

11
1+

31
.5

3

11
0+

71
.5

3

10
8+

30
.0

3

10
7+

70
.0

3

10
4+

38
.2

5

10
3+

78
.2

5

10
1+

11
.9

0

10
0+

81
.0

7

10
0+

63
.5

7

10
0+

55
.3

9

10
0+

53
.4

7

O
FF

SE
T

29
.8

4'
 R

T

29
.8

1'
 R

T

30
.0

3'
 R

T

29
.3

2'
 R

T

30
.1

5'
 R

T

29
.8

5'
 R

T

30
.0

5'
 R

T

29
.7

4'
 R

T

29
.9

3'
 R

T

30
.2

2'
 R

T

32
.7

2'
 R

T

38
.4

4'
 R

T

48
.5

6'
 R

T

0.
00

'

TL
E 

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

14
8

14
9

15
0

15
1

15
2

15
3

15
4

15
5

15
6

15
7

15
8

15
9

16
0

16
1

16
2

16
3

16
4

16
5

16
6

16
7

16
8

16
9

17
0

17
1

17
2

17
3

17
4

17
5

17
6

17
7

ST
AT

IO
N

10
0+

60
.4

9

10
3+

73
.2

3

10
3+

73
.2

5

10
3+

78
.2

5

10
4+

38
.2

5

10
4+

43
.2

5

10
4+

43
.2

3

10
5+

48
.8

2

10
5+

48
.8

2

10
5+

86
.8

2

10
5+

86
.8

3

10
7+

65
.1

8

10
7+

65
.1

8

10
7+

70
.1

8

10
8+

30
.1

8

10
8+

35
.1

8

10
8+

35
.1

8

11
0+

66
.4

8

11
0+

66
.5

5

11
0+

71
.5

5

11
1+

31
.5

1

11
1+

36
.5

1

11
1+

36
.4

6

11
3+

67
.8

9

11
3+

67
.8

5

11
3+

72
.8

5

11
4+

32
.8

5

11
4+

37
.8

5

11
4+

37
.8

9

11
5+

68
.9

7

O
FF

SE
T

39
.6

7'
 L

T

40
.0

6'
 L

T

50
.0

6'
 L

T

50
.0

7'
 L

T

50
.2

6'
 L

T

50
.2

6'
 L

T

38
.2

6'
 L

T

38
.1

6'
 L

T

40
.1

6'
 L

T

40
.1

2'
 L

T

45
.1

2'
 L

T

44
.9

6'
 L

T

59
.9

6'
 L

T

59
.9

5'
 L

T

60
.1

5'
 L

T

60
.1

5'
 L

T

43
.1

5'
 L

T

42
.8

6'
 L

T

59
.8

6'
 L

T

59
.8

5'
 L

T

50
.6

8'
 L

T

50
.6

6'
 L

T

38
.6

6'
 L

T

37
.9

8'
 L

T

59
.9

8'
 L

T

59
.9

7'
 L

T

60
.1

9'
 L

T

60
.1

9'
 L

T

38
.1

9'
 L

T

38
.1

6'
 L

T

TL
E 

ST
AT

IO
N

 &
 O

FF
SE

T 
TA

BL
E

PO
IN

T

17
8

17
9

18
0

18
1

18
2

18
3

18
4

18
5

18
6

18
7

18
8

18
9

19
0

19
1

19
2

19
3

19
4

19
5

19
6

19
7

19
8

19
9

20
0

20
1

20
2

20
3

20
4

20
5

20
6

ST
AT

IO
N

11
5+

74
.3

5

11
4+

37
.3

4

11
4+

37
.4

5

11
4+

32
.4

5

11
3+

72
.4

0

11
3+

70
.4

0

11
3+

70
.3

3

11
2+

51
.5

5

11
2+

51
.5

4

11
1+

36
.4

9

11
1+

36
.3

9

11
1+

31
.3

9

11
0+

71
.4

3

11
0+

66
.4

3

11
0+

66
.4

9

10
8+

35
.0

3

10
8+

35
.0

2

10
8+

30
.0

2

10
7+

70
.0

2

10
7+

65
.0

2

10
7+

65
.0

3

10
4+

43
.2

4

10
4+

43
.2

3

10
4+

38
.2

3

10
3+

78
.2

3

10
3+

73
.2

3

10
3+

73
.2

4

10
0+

63
.5

7

10
0+

55
.3

9

O
FF

SE
T

37
.8

4'
 R

T

37
.8

1'
 R

T

59
.8

1'
 R

T

59
.8

1'
 R

T

50
.0

3'
 R

T

50
.0

3'
 R

T

35
.0

3'
 R

T

34
.7

3'
 R

T

37
.6

8'
 R

T

37
.3

4'
 R

T

59
.3

4'
 R

T

59
.3

2'
 R

T

50
.1

5'
 R

T

50
.1

4'
 R

T

38
.1

4'
 R

T

37
.8

5'
 R

T

49
.8

5'
 R

T

49
.8

5'
 R

T

50
.0

5'
 R

T

50
.0

4'
 R

T

38
.0

4'
 R

T

37
.7

4'
 R

T

49
.7

4'
 R

T

49
.7

4'
 R

T

49
.9

3'
 R

T

49
.9

4'
 R

T

39
.9

4'
 R

T

40
.2

7'
 R

T

48
.5

6'
 R

T

TR
AN

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 P
RO

JE
CT

 P
LA

T 
N

O
:

EX
TE

N
SI

O
N

 S
HE

ET

I:\
45

\4
50

63
9 

LA
W

E 
ST

 A
PP

LE
TO

N
\C

3D
\R

W
\T

PP
_4

01
.D

W
G

AP
PR

AI
SA

L 
PL

AT
 D

AT
E 

:  
N

O
VE

M
BE

R 
7,

 2
02

4
__

__
__

__
__

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
1

4
4

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E 
:

PL
O

T 
DA

TE
 :

PL
O

T 
BY

 :
TA

CK
M

IE
R,

 JI
LL

PL
O

T 
N

AM
E 

: 
11

/7
/2

02
4 

2:
26

 P
M

PR
OJ

EC
T N

UM
BE

R  
24

98
4-

24
-7

4-
4.0

1
SH

EE
T 3

 O
F 3

49
84

-2
4-

74
-4

.0
1

RE
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 O
RD

ER
 - 

N
 L

AW
E 

ST
RE

ET
, C

O
LL

EG
E 

AV
E 

TO
 W

IS
CO

N
SI

N
 A

VE
N

U
E,

 O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 C
O

U
N

TY

R/
W

 C
O

U
RS

E 
TA

BL
E

CO
U

RS
E

10
0-

10
1

10
1-

10
2

10
2-

10
3

10
3-

10
4

10
4-

10
5

10
5-

10
6

10
6-

10
7

10
7-

10
8

10
8-

10
9

10
9-

11
0

11
0-

11
1

11
1-

11
2

11
2-

11
3

11
3-

11
4

11
4-

11
5

11
5-

11
6

11
6-

11
7

11
7-

11
8

11
8-

11
9

11
9-

12
0

12
0-

12
1

12
1-

12
2

12
2-

12
3

12
3-

12
4

12
4-

12
5

12
5-

12
6

12
6-

12
7

12
7-

12
8

12
8-

10
0

BE
AR

IN
G

S8
9°

 5
9'

 3
9"

W

N
41

° 4
7'

 1
6"

E

N
00

° 0
7'

 2
3"

W

N
04

° 2
7'

 0
7"

E

N
00

° 0
7'

 2
3"

W

N
00

° 1
4'

 5
8"

W

N
00

° 0
0'

 3
2"

W

N
00

° 1
5'

 1
1"

W

N
00

° 0
0'

 3
3"

E

N
00

° 5
0'

 5
3"

W

N
00

° 0
6'

 2
4"

E

N
00

° 1
6'

 5
3"

W

N
00

° 0
2'

 5
0"

W

N
85

° 5
3'

 1
4"

E

N
85

° 5
3'

 1
4"

E

S0
0°

 0
2'

 5
0"

E

S0
0°

 1
6'

 4
8"

E

S0
0°

 0
6'

 2
4"

W

S0
0°

 5
0'

 5
1"

E

S0
0°

 0
0'

 3
3"

W

S0
0°

 1
5'

 1
1"

E

S0
0°

 0
0'

 3
2"

E

S0
0°

 1
4'

 5
8"

E

S0
0°

 0
7'

 2
3"

E

S0
4°

 4
1'

 3
5"

E

S1
8°

 1
0'

 1
1"

E

S4
5°

 0
4'

 4
5"

E

S8
9°

 3
7'

 4
5"

W

S8
9°

 3
7'

 4
5"

W

DI
ST

AN
CE

17
.6

4'

20
.4

2'

20
9.

68
'

50
.1

5'

50
.0

0'

60
.0

0'

33
1.

96
'

60
.0

0'

24
1.

25
'

60
.0

1'

24
1.

47
'

60
.0

0'

13
6.

64
'

30
.2

3'

29
.9

2'

14
1.

49
'

60
.0

0'

24
0.

77
'

60
.0

1'

24
1.

50
'

60
.0

0'

33
1.

78
'

60
.0

0'

26
6.

35
'

30
.9

3'

18
.4

1'

13
.9

1'

48
.6

0'

29
.4

0'

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

IP
ES

 P
O

IN
T 

TA
BL

E

PO
IN

T 
N

AM
E

10
00

10
01

10
02

10
03

10
04

10
05

10
06

10
07

10
08

10
09

10
10

10
11

10
12

10
13

10
14

10
15

Y

56
22

90
.0

72

56
29

01
.3

11

56
30

62
.5

57

56
31

83
.2

56

56
32

43
.0

50

56
33

04
.2

06

56
33

03
.3

84

56
33

64
.0

19

56
37

85
.1

88

56
36

65
.5

80

56
36

05
.6

71

56
34

35
.1

15

56
29

10
.8

30

56
28

36
.8

86

56
26

71
.3

16

56
26

10
.9

63

X

82
99

18
.9

17

82
99

22
.3

86

82
98

00
.5

17

82
99

21
.7

84

82
99

21
.7

50

82
99

21
.6

96

82
98

00
.1

89

82
98

53
.4

58

82
99

81
.4

37

83
00

43
.9

17

83
01

02
.8

02

82
99

81
.3

64

82
99

82
.0

55

82
99

82
.1

03

83
01

03
.7

68

83
01

03
.3

44

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E

1"
 IR

O
N

 P
IP

E



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  December 4, 2024 

To:  Finance Committee 

From: Kara Homan, AICP, Director of Community Development 

Jeri Ohman, Director of Finance 

Subject: Request to approve contract extension for BMC ARPA Grant Administration 

Contract 

 

 

Background 

In August 2022, the Common Council approved awarding a contract to Booth Management 

Consulting, LLC (BMC) to provide ARPA Grant Administration services for an amount not to 

exceed $150,000 – as part of action item 22-1083.  BMC has been advising the City and 

assisting with compliance, program reporting and grants administration ever since.  City staff 

has found their services to be of value and advises they be continued to ensure compliance 

with federal regulations and continuity of services for our subrecipient grantees. 

The current agreement has an expiration date of December 31, 2024.  We have been working 

with BMC staff to scope out a contract extension.  Based on their estimate of work remaining, 

we will continue to remain under the “not to exceed” amount of $150K and merely need a 

contract modification extending the performance period to align with ARPA US Treasury 

expenditure and reporting timelines. 

Recommendation  

Staff requests that an extension to the Booth Management Consulting, LLC ARPA Grant 

Administration contract’s performance period be extended through December 31, 2026, BE 

APPROVED.     

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5762385&GUID=0CF11FAD-58A6-436C-8F10-5B12196C0105&Options=&Search=


LUMBINI ESTATES 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made by and between the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin, a body politic and municipal corporation by its Common Council (“City”) and Saket, 
LLC, the owner and developer (“Developer”) of property lying within the city of Appleton: 

WHEREAS, Section 17-3 of the Appleton Municipal Code provides for the installation of required 
improvements in new subdivisions; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has proposed to develop Lumbini Estates, a residential subdivision 
on property within the corporate limits of the City (“Proposed Subdivision”) described in Exhibit 1 
attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, a final plat of Lumbini Estates, shown in Exhibit 2 attached hereto, has been 
conditionally approved by the City with conditions remaining to be satisfied; and  

WHEREAS, a series of meetings and negotiations have taken place between the City and the 
Developer to determine various development and financial responsibilities as between the City and 
the Developer for on-site and off-site public improvements and fees in connection with the 
Proposed Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Developer, for their mutual benefit, have mutually agreed as to 
development and financial responsibilities for public improvements and fees in connection with the 
Proposed Subdivision;  

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. The Developer shall be responsible for the installation of the following:

a. Sanitary sewer mains, manholes and laterals;
b. Water mains, valves, hydrants, hydrant leads, fittings and services;
c. Storm sewer mains, manholes, catch basins, inlet leads, overland flow paths, yard drains

and associated piping and laterals;
d. Erosion control measures necessary to meet erosion control requirements for the

development;
e. Street excavation and graveling, and terrace seeding, lot filling and grading and seeding;
f. Street lights (provided by WE Energies, billed directly to the Developer); and
g. All other infrastructure required for development not specifically set forth in this
 agreement.

2. The Developer shall provide an estimate for items 1a – 1g, subject to the City’s review and
approval, prior to the installation of the items for the Proposed Subdivision.  The Developer
shall provide the City a financial guarantee in an amount of 125% of the above referenced
estimate.  Said guarantee shall be in the form of a performance bond, irrevocable letter of
credit, cash held in escrow, or similar guarantee as determined to be equivalent by the City.

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 1 of 15



The guarantee will be released after the City determines all requirements of the development 
have been met. 

3. The Developer shall provide a fully executed and signed Waivers of Special Assessment Notices
and Hearing (shown in Exhibit 3) for the development, acknowledging consent to pay Special
Assessment levied by the City for the following items that may be furnished and/or installed
by the City:

a. City Administrative Fees;
b. Temporary Asphalt;
c. Sanitary Sewer Area Assessment
d. Sewer Televising
e. Street Name/ Traffic Control Signs
f. Concrete Pavement abutting lots owned by the Developer at the time of concrete paving
g. Sidewalks installed on lots owned by the Developer at the time of concrete paving

Estimate of up-front City costs and associated special assessments to be paid by the 
Developer for items 3a-3g for the development are attached hereto as Exhibit 4.  The actual 
final costs for items 3a-3g will be used as the basis for the amount of the special assessments 
billed to the Development and following the City’s Special Assessment Policy at the time of 
billing.  

Concrete paving and sidewalks will be assessed to the abutting property owners and the 
Developer will be assessed for only the cost of those lots owned by the Developer.  
Concrete streets shall be installed, no sooner than, seventy-five (75%) of the lots in the 
Proposed Development have been issued building permits or after a five (5) year period.  

4. The Developer shall provide the City with copies of all final costs, invoices, labor costs, the
contract documents and specifications, design documentation, all contract administration
supporting documentation, an itemized list of all expenses for the installation of sanitary
sewer, storm sewer, water main, street excavation and graveling, and street lights for the
Proposed Subdivision. Said information provided by Developer shall be provided within 60
days of installation and shall meet City’s Infrastructure Adjustment Form requirements.  The
Developer shall perform the construction staking and the City shall inspect the same.

5. The Developer shall perform the testing of the water main, sanitary sewer and storm sewer
under the supervision of the City of Appleton inspectors.

6. The Developer shall provide lien waivers to the City from prime contractor, subcontractors,
suppliers and consultants within 60 days of the installation of the items in Paragraph 1.

7. The Developer agrees to convey, by deed or dedication, to the City all the streets, roads, courts,
avenues drives, public ways, sanitary sewer, water main, storm sewer and storm water facilities
in the Proposed Subdivision.  Developer further agrees to convey any public access ways by
dedication or easement to the City.  All public improvements contemplated in the final plat
shall be constructed within areas to be dedicated to the City either by deed, dedication or

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 2 of 15



easement as contemplated in the Proposed Subdivision and this Agreement.  

8. Upon completion of construction, and prior to acceptance of streets, the Developer shall
provide a certification from a professional land surveyor licensed in the State of Wisconsin
that all monumentation within the development is properly installed within three inches (3”)
of finished grade.

9. The Developer shall establish a level loop on the hydrants in the plat and a copy of those
benchmarks shall be provided to the City.

10. The City agrees to accept the dedication of all the Public Improvements in the plat, whether
by deed, dedication or easement subject to the City’s acceptance of the Public Improvements
in accordance with and subject to the terms of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance.

11. The City agrees to defer the Plank Road West Regional Stormwater Pond Assessment and
place a $860 per lot charge on the 27 lots in the plat, payable prior to issuing a building
permit for each lot, as depicted in Exhibit 4. These assessments shall be included in the
Waivers of Special Assessment Notices and Hearing (shown in Exhibit 3) for the development.

12. The Developer shall repair or replace, as directed by the City and to the City’s satisfaction, at
its own cost, any damage caused to City property by the installation of the improvements made
by Developer in the Proposed Subdivision.  Repairs shall be completed within six (6) months
of notification from the City to the Developer of the need to repair or replace such damage.

13. The estimate of costs paid by the Developer for items 3a – 3g is attached hereto as Exhibit 4
and shows the items and amounts projected to be paid by the Developer.  The actual final
costs for these items will be used as the basis for the special assessments billed to the
developer.

14. The Developer shall pay the cost of all items listed within Paragraph 1, subject to the
following related to sidewalks: the owner of each lot shall be responsible for the lot’s
sidewalk construction and related expense. Sidewalks shall be installed by the respective
property owner within 6 months of the issuance of a building permit. Any frontage where
the sidewalk has not been installed by the time the City installs the permanent concrete
pavements (typically 5 to 10 years from the recording of the plat) will be installed by the City
and the cost assessed against the respective lot per the Assessment Policy in place at the time
of concrete paving.

15. The schedule for the Proposed Subdivision shall be as follows:

 Infrastructure installation may commence after City approval of Final Plat, Drainage
Plan, Established Grades, Storm Water Management Plan, Plans and Specifications;

 Building permits may be issued upon City approval and acceptance of all
infrastructure. Streets must be officially opened to the public by the City Engineer
prior to the issuance of building permits.

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 3 of 15



16. The City represents that this Agreement and the terms and conditions contained herein are
consistent with adopted ordinances and resolutions on the subject matter.

17. The Developer shall pay the entire cost associated with installation of underground gas,
electric, telephone, internet, and cable TV utilities and streetlights in the Proposed
Subdivision.  The City shall review the proposed locations and have approval authority over
any utilities proposed within the public right-of-way, prior to installation.  The City standard
for street lights shall be wooden poles.  The street lighting plan shall be designed by We
Energies and approved by the City.  The City shall pay We Energies the monthly electrical
charge for street lighting.  If the Developer desires decorative streetlights, then the
Developer will be responsible for all costs associated with the decorative streetlights.  The
Developer will be responsible for requesting said decorative lights from We Energies.  The
Developer must also sign a Waiver of Special Assessments document for the annual
assessments associated with decorative lighting.

18. The City represents and warrants to Developer that it has the power, authority and legal
right to enter into all of the transactions and to perform all of the covenants and obligations
required to be entered into or performed by the City under this Agreement.

• The City represents and warrants to Developer that it is empowered and authorized to
execute and deliver this Agreement and other agreements and documents, if any,
required hereunder to be executed and delivered by the City.  This Agreement has been,
and each such document at the time it is executed and delivered, will be duly executed
and delivered on behalf of the City.

• When executed and delivered to Developer, all such agreements shall constitute a legal,
valid and binding obligation of the City, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

19. The Developer represents and warrants to the City that Developer is a Limited Liability
Company duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and that all
proceedings of Developer necessary to authorize the negotiation and execution of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transaction contemplated by this Agreement have
been taken in accordance with applicable law.

20. The Developer represents and warrants to the City that the execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Agreement and the
execution and delivery of the documents required to be executed, delivered or acknowledged
by Developer at the closing will not violate any provision of Developer's partnership
agreement or any applicable statute, rule, regulation, judgment, order or decree of the State
of Wisconsin or a court having jurisdiction over Developer or its properties.

21. The Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution thereof and remain in effect until
the earliest of: (a) the Developer notifies the City that the Proposed Subdivision has been
terminated, (b) upon the mutual agreement of the Parties to terminate the Agreement, or (c)

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 4 of 15



if one (1) year after the date of execution the Developer has not taken any further action on 
the Proposed Subdivision. 

22. This Agreement, along with Exhibits 1, 2, 3 and 4, sets forth the entire understanding of the
parties relative to its subject matter and supersedes and merges any and all prior
communications, negotiations and agreements, oral or written.

23. It is understood and agreed that the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable
and the invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more of the provisions contained herein
shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the other provisions contained herein.

24. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, except in writing, with the written
consent of both the City and the Developer.

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 5 of 15



SAKET, LLC 

By: _________________________________ By: ________________________________ 

Printed Name: ________________________ Printed Name: _______________________ 

Title: ________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
_______________ COUNTY ) 

Personally came before me on this ____ day of ______________________, 20_____, the 
above-named _____________________________ and ____________________________, to me 
known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledge the same. 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission is/expires: _______________ 

CITY OF APPLETON 

By: _______________________________ By: _________________________________ 
       Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor       Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 

Personally came before me on this ____ day of ______________________, 20_____, the 
above-named Jacob A. Woodford and Kami L. Lynch, to me known to be the persons who executed 
the foregoing instrument and acknowledge the same. 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: ________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission expires: _________________ 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 6 of 15



Provision has been made to pay the liability  
that will accrue under this contract.  Approved as to Form: 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Jeri Ohman, Director of Finance Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 

This instrument was drafted by: 
Christopher R. Behrens, Appleton City Attorney 
A24‐0288 | aka 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 7 of 15



EXHIBIT 1: Legal Description 

  More fully described as follows: 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 8 of 15



Exhibit 2: Final Plat 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 9 of 15



City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 10 of 15

simedrcxj
Rectangle

simedrcxj
final cert sticker don

simedrcxj
Typewritten Text
July 26, 2024



City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 11 of 15

simedrcxj
Rectangle

simedrcxj
final cert sticker don

simedrcxj
Typewritten Text
July 26, 2024



Exhibit 3: Waiver of Special Assessment Notices & Hearing 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 12 of 15



C:\Users\GriesbJL\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\QWLOBQGT\Exhibit3_WAIVER OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT NOTICES AND 
HEARING.docx 

 

 

WAIVER OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT NOTICES AND HEARING 

UNDER S.66.0703 WISCONSIN STATUTES 

 

The undersigned owner(s) of property benefited by the following proposed public improvement to be 
made by the City of Appleton, Outagamie-Calumet- Winnebago County, Wisconsin, to wit: 

               

               

               

The undersigned owner(s) of property benefited by the above proposed public improvement to be made 
by the City of Appleton, Outagamie-Calumet-Winnebago County, Wisconsin, in consideration of the 
construction of said improvement will benefit our property and consent to the levying of special 
assessments against our premises under S.66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes, for the cost of such 
improvement. 

In accordance with S.66.0703 (7) of the Wisconsin Statutes, I/we hereby waive all special assessment 
notices and hearings required by S.66.0703 (7), and I /we hereby further agree and admit that my (our) 
property is specially benefited by the above described municipal work or improvement as contemplated 
by Sec.66.0703 (7) Wisconsin Statutes.   

Property Address     Signature of Owner(s)  Date   

               

               

 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
Notes: 
               

               

               

               

Project Unit No.    Authorized City Representative:       

Final Cost of Assessable Improvements:       

Date work completed:     

Date billed to Property Owner:     

Billed by:        

 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 13 of 15



Exhibit 4: Cost Estimates 

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 14 of 15



C
o

n
ce

p
t 

P
la

t 
E

as
t 

o
f 

P
la

n
k 

- 
M

id
w

ay
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

E
xh

ib
it

  4
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

L
o

ts
: 

27
G

ro
ss

 A
re

a:
 5

59
,7

47
S

F
 (

12
.8

5 
ac

)

L
o

t 
A

re
a:

 4
45

,7
46

 S
q

u
ar

e 
F

ee
t

D
ev

el
o

p
er

: 
S

ak
et

, L
L

C

T
o

ta
l C

/L
 F

o
o

ta
g

e:
 1

,9
00

W
o

rk
 O

rd
er

: 
T

B
D

T
o

ta
l P

av
em

en
t 

A
re

a 
(t

o
 b

/c
u

rb
):

 6
,2

47
.5

6 
S

Y
 

C
ity

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

F
ee

s 
(e

st
im

at
ed

 c
os

t)
$1

5,
20

0.
00

$0
.0

0
$1

5,
20

0.
00

$1
5,

20
0.

00
$0

.0
0

T
em

po
ra

ry
 A

sp
ha

lt 
(e

st
im

at
ed

 c
os

t)
$9

3,
71

3.
40

$0
.0

0
$9

3,
71

3.
40

$9
3,

71
3.

40
$0

.0
0

S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

A
re

a 
7E

16
)

$3
,0

84
.5

8
$0

.0
0

$3
,0

84
.5

8
$3

,0
84

.5
8

$0
.0

0
54

31

S
ew

er
 T

el
ev

is
in

g 
(e

st
im

at
ed

 c
os

t)
$2

,6
60

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$2

,6
60

.0
0

$2
,6

60
.0

0
$0

.0
0

54
27

   
   

   
 

52
22

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e 

/ T
ra

ffi
c 

C
on

tr
ol

 S
ig

ns
 (

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t)
$3

,8
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$3

,8
00

.0
0

$3
,8

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

40
10

C
on

cr
et

e 
P

av
em

en
t (

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t)
$3

80
,0

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$3
80

,0
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$3

80
,0

00
.0

0
40

10

S
id

ew
al

ks
 -

 w
ith

 C
on

cr
et

e 
P

av
em

en
t (

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t)
$1

33
,0

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$1
33

,0
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

33
,0

00
.0

0
40

10

P
la

nk
 R

oa
d 

W
es

t R
eg

io
na

l S
to

rm
w

at
er

 P
on

d 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$2

3,
22

0.
00

$2
3,

22
0.

00
$0

.0
0

40
10

S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
$1

94
,6

46
.0

0
$1

94
,6

46
.0

0
$0

.0
0

n/
a

n/
a

54
31

S
to

rm
 S

ew
er

 / 
E

ro
si

on
 C

on
tr

ol
$3

84
,3

80
.1

4
$3

84
,3

80
.1

4
$0

.0
0

n/
a

n/
a

52
30

W
at

er
 M

ai
n

$2
01

,9
32

.0
0

$2
01

,9
32

.0
0

$0
.0

0
n/

a
n/

a
53

71

G
ra

di
ng

 &
 G

ra
ve

lin
g

$1
43

,0
92

.2
4

$1
43

,0
92

.2
4

$0
.0

0
n/

a
n/

a
-

G
en

er
al

/T
op

so
il 

S
tr

ip
$2

6,
40

3.
70

$2
6,

40
3.

70
$0

.0
0

n/
a

n/
a

-

S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

s/
U

til
iti

es
$9

3,
78

2.
99

$9
3,

78
2.

99
$0

.0
0

n/
a

n/
a

40
10

D
es

ig
n 

E
ng

in
ee

r 
F

ee
s 

an
d 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s 
$1

02
,0

50
.0

0
$1

02
,0

50
.0

0
$0

.0
0

n/
a

n/
a

40
10

T
O

T
A

L
S

$1
,7

77
,7

45
.0

5
$1

,1
46

,2
87

.0
7

$6
54

,6
77

.9
8

$1
41

,6
77

.9
8

$5
13

,0
00

.0
0

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er
   

   
   

(3
,8

00
Li

n 
F

t.)
 x

 (
$0

.7
0 

/ L
in

. F
t.)

(1
,9

00
 L

F
) 

x 
($

20
0.

00
/L

F
) 

 

$8
60

 p
er

 lo
t *

 2
7 

Lo
ts

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er

(1
,9

00
 C

/L
 F

t.)
 x

 (
$2

.0
0 

/ C
/L

. F
t.)

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er

re
v 

12
/2

/2
02

4

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er

P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tr
ac

to
r 

hi
re

d 
by

 D
ev

el
op

er

($
6.

92
/1

00
0 

s.
f.)

*(
44

5,
74

8 
s.

f.)

(6
24

7.
56

.1
1 

s.
y.

) 
x 

($
15

.0
0/

s.
y.

)

(1
9,

00
0 

s.
f.)

 x
 (

$7
.0

0/
s.

f.)

A
cc

o
u

n
t 

   
   

to
 b

e 
   

   
   

C
re

d
it

ed
N

O
T

E
S

 / 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

S
   

   
   

   
 

(1
90

0 
C

/L
 F

t.)
 x

 (
$8

.0
0 

/ C
/L

. F
t.)

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

T
O

T
A

L
   

   
  

P
R

O
JE

C
T

   
  

C
O

S
T

S

D
ev

el
o

p
er

 
F

in
an

ce
d

 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
   

  
(P

riv
at

e 
C

on
tr

ac
ts

)

U
p

-F
ro

n
t 

   
   

 
C

it
y 

C
o

st
s 

   
   

S
p

ec
ia

l 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
   

  
(2

02
4 

E
S
TI
M
A
TE
D
)

S
p

ec
ia

l 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
   

  
(2

03
1 

E
S
TI
M
A
TE
D
)

C
op

y 
of

 L
um

bi
ni

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
gr

ee
m

en
t E

xh
ib

it 
- 

F
un

di
ng

 E
st

im
at

e 
20

24
_1

1_
25

.x
ls

x

City of Appleton | Saket, LLC 
Lumbini Estates Development Agreement 

Page 15 of 15



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  December 5, 2024 

To:  Finance Committee 

From: Kara Homan, AICP, Director of Community Development 

Laura Jungwirth, PE, Director of Public Works 

Subject: Request to approve Development Agreement for Lumbini Estates (Saket, LLC) 

 

Background 

The Final Plat for Lumbini Estates was approved by the Appleton Common Council on July 17, 

2024 (Action Item 24-0851). As a condition of that approval, the staff report (condition #6, pg 7) 

outlined that a Development Agreement is required prior to city signatures being placed on the 

Final Plat.  This is needed prior to recording the final plat / sale of lots. 

 

This development agreement used the Attorney’s office template for Development Agreements as 

a basis, which ensures the development agreement does not provide any fiscal/administrative 

contribution beyond standard policy from the City and aligns with the City’s debt reduction 

strategy and as was done with the last Plat the city approved (Clearwater Creek 4). It also 

includes a provision related to financial guarantees to ensure public infrastructure to be completed 

by the developer is installed and in a satisfactory manner.  The developer has confirmed they are 

agreeable to the agreement’s language as drafted. 

 

Recommendation: 

The Directors of Community Development and Public Works recommend the attached 

Development Agreement for Lumbini Estates (Saket, LLC) BE APPROVED. 

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=6735700&GUID=4FE6D804-D4B6-4DAA-9A30-5BB5B22B0064&Options=&Search=


INV or Parcel 

Type Invoice Date Number Name ADDRESS Amout Due Description

A/R 08/02/21 7176 MILLENNIAL HOLDINGS  911 E COUNTY LINE RD STE 206LAKEWOOD NJ 08701 $2,215.50 Red Ramp ‐ Parking Permits Taxable

A/R 09/03/21 7548 TLR CONSULTING INC  9938 STATE HWY 55 NWANNANDALE MN 55302 $100.00 Street Excavation Permit

A/R 09/10/21 7567 OUTREACH HEALTH SERVICES PO BOX 945 OSCEOLA, WI 54020 USA $600.00 Agency Basic Tickets

A/R 01/24/22 8574 MARIE A BUSHMAN 200 W PACKARD ST APT 234 APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $40.00 NSF Bill 

A/R 01/25/22 8566 DEAN ALIX 318 N ONEIDA ST #4 APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $80.88 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 1/25/2022 8581 BRIANNA MOSS 1021 PROVINCE TERRACE MENASHA, WI 54952 USA $144.65 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 02/18/22 8724 TIFFANY BESAW‐BENZ 1640 HOLLAND RD APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $76.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 02/18/22 8727 JEFFREY DRETTWAN N2883 GAIGG LANE HORTONVILLE, WI 54944 USA $500.00 Vehicle Extrication Fee

A/R 02/25/22 8749 CAZEEM COLE 125 E ATLANTIC ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $734.14 Damage to City Property ‐ Street

A/R 03/15/22 8878 JONATHAN FISCHER N1924 CHRISTY LN GREENVILLE, WI 54942 USA $108.69 MISSED PAYROLL PREMIUM DEDUCTIONS

A/R 03/15/22 8888 JUAN CARLOS FELIX GARCIA 831 E BREWSTER ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $601.14 damage to City Propery ‐ traffic

A/R 03/15/22 8891 JENNIFER BRANDT 1432 N ULLMAN ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $255.59 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 03/15/22 8908 ALVIN MOLITOR 3121 N LAWE ST #2 APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $184.69 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 03/18/22 8918 SHANE VERSTEGEN 708 N LAWE ST APPLETON, WI 54911 $52.00 NSF Bill/ Dog License

A/R 03/18/22 8922 CHRISTOPHER HERMAN 1720 14TH ST PORT HURON, MI 48060 USA $146.98 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 03/18/22 8923 CHRISTOPHER HERMAN 1720 14TH ST PORT HURON, MI 48060 USA $660.00 Forestry‐ Damage to City Property

A/R 03/31/22 8982 BRITTNEY HILL 2009 DEER HAVEN DR MENASHA, WI 54952 USA $187.89 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 03/31/22 8983 DAMIEN ALBRECHT 230 E TAFT AVE APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $209.75 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 03/31/22 8987 RICHARD YAHR N1657 KAS DR GREENVILLE, WI 54942 USA $603.41 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 04/25/22 9149 JORDAN STAHL 926 W COMMERCIAL ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA  $201.56 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 04/25/22 9151 AIMEE WILSON 725 N CLARK ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $185.16 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 05/04/22 9237 STEVE TESSEN 344 N KENSINGTON DR #1 APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $218.69 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 05/04/22 9241 WILLIAM GRUETZMACHER 2503 PHEASANT RIDGE TRL #3 MADISON, WI 53713‐2637 USA $76.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 05/09/22 9303 NICOLE WERNER 2836 BLYTHSWOOD SQUARE HENDERSON, NV 89044 USA $184.69 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 05/09/22 9304 DEVON RAMIREZ 1819 W COMMERCIAL ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $76.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 05/09/22 9308 CARLOS MACHUCA 1324 KIRKMAN ST GREENSBORO, NC 27406 USA $57.41 Bulk Water Service Charge/Volume from MSB Bulk Meter

A/R 05/09/22 9317 BRIAN SCHICKER 913 SW AVEUNE APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $3,410.31 Damage to City Property ‐ Street

A/R 05/23/22 9400 GIFTY BERKO 2924 E APPLE HILL BLVD APPLETON, WI 54913 USA $912.68 Hydrant Repair

A/R 05/23/22 9416 JONATHAN MINCH 6011 NILES RD VALDERS, WI 54245 USA $127.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 06/10/22 9535 OUTREACH HEALTH SERVICES PO BOX 945 OSCEOLA, WI 54020 USA $40.00 NSF Bill/ Dog License

A/R 06/10/22 9537 RACHEL NEUMANN 2919 W GLENPARK DR APT 101 APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $204.57 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 06/10/22 9539 JENNA KNUTSON 501 W VETERANS ST APT 2 TOMAH, WI 54660 USA $11,283.46 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 06/10/22 9541 ERIC SIMONS 1816 HENRY ST NEENAH, WI 54956 USA $3,343.17 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 06/10/22 9542 RAUL SALAZAR VILLAPANDO 1407 N NICHOLAS ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $9,307.30 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 06/14/22 9547 COLTON FONTECCHIO 1937 SIMPSON ST OSHKOSH, WI 54902‐6844 USA $190.35 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 06/14/22 9549 ALIVIA MEYER 431 E ALICE ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $164.80 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 06/14/22 9550 QUARAN STEWART 723 W HAWES AVE APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $76.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 06/14/22 9564 EDWARD SPANGLER 111 S JOHN ST NEENAH, WI 54956 USA $147.80 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 06/14/22 9565 ERIC SCHMITZ 1018 W PACKARD ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $93.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 06/14/22 9566 CLINT COOPER 614 1/2 W COLLEGE AVE APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $76.90 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 06/28/22 9631 RUIGUI MARADIAGA 634 JACKSON ST NEENAH, WI 54956 USA $74.17 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 07/22/22 9795 CAISHA GOODRICH‐SAMPSON 2630 KERRY LANE #1 APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $74.17 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 07/22/22 9798 JUSTIN JAMES 1414 W WINNEBAGO ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $127.69 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 08/05/22 9865 THOMAS ALMENDAREZ 418 BROAD ST MENASHA, WI 54952 USA $107.00 NSF Bill / POLICE INVESTIGATION FEE & OPERATORS LICENSE

A/R 08/05/22 9889 AMANDA STUCK 1404 N HARRIMAN ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $105.67 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 08/09/22 9911 JUSTIN JAMES 2503 N ELINOR ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $239.38 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 08/11/22 9916 RYAN BARTELL 1136 W GRANT ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $160.19 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 08/31/22 10075 JADE MEISELWITZ 3606 S 254TH ST KENT, WA 98030 USA $151.17 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 08/31/22 10024 KELLY KNIGHT 1401 S DRISCOL ST APT #3 APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $105.67 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 08/31/22 10046 DEZIRAE PARISH 1742 N OUTAGAMIE ST APPLETON, WI 54914 $91.17 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 09/08/22 10107 YULISSA FERNANDEZ 1315 W COMMERCIAL ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $464.69 Work Comp Billed

A/R 09/16/22 10196 ALEXIS WILLEY W6088 GOLDEN CT APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $40.00 NSF Bill

A/R 09/20/22 10216 MARIAH WITTNIK 182 SULLIVAN ST OSHKOSH, WI 54902 USA $500.00 Vehical Fire Fee

A/R 09/27/22 10244 TSA ATTN: JOAN HOLYFIELD 13271 CRAIL CT BRISTOW, VA 20136 USA $94.00 Red Ramp ‐ Parking Permits Taxable

A/R 09/28/22 10282 LITTLE CHUTE HEALTH SERVICES1201 GARFIELD AVE LITTLE CHUTE, WI 54140 USA $80.00 VTII Basic Ticket Sheet

A/R 09/29/22 10304 OLIVIA GONZALEZ 1201 N BAY RIDGE RD APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $174.69 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 09/29/22 10315 CRISTINA AGUIRRE 159 W CALUMET ST #6 APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $1,321.13 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 09/29/22 10316 CRISTINA AGUIRRE 159 W CALUMET ST #6 APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $417.63 Damage to City Property ‐ Forestry/ Street Sweep

A/R 10/17/22 10350 CHRISTOPHER A DUNCAN 808 W HAWES AVEAPPLETON, WI 54914 $250.00 Non‐Compliant Refuse Collection

A/R 10/17/22 10352 SALINAS VILLANUEVA 315 TYLER CT #1 MENASHA, WI 54952 USA $105.67 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 11/07/22 10490 PRIMORIS ELECTRIC ATTN: TOM PETERS 116 KLOMPEN CT NEENAH, WI 54956 USA $61.81 Bulk Water Service Charge/Volume from MSB Bulk Meter

A/R 10/28/22 10455 TOMMY CONCRETE LLC N59 W13449 MANDARDT DR MENOMONEE FALLS, WI 53051 US $100.00 Street Excavation Permit

A/R 11/07/22 10528 SAMUEL MALAGA 225 1/2 N MASON ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $2,797.07 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 11/23/22 10572 EMILY STRENSKI PO Box 13 IOLA, WI 54945 USA $500.00 vehicle Fire Fee

A/R 11/23/22 10574 KATELYN FULLER N9376 CHEYANNE DR APPLETON, WI 54915 USA $138.92 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 11/30/22 10612 LEWIS ZERPEL 1035 W HARRIS ST APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $91.17 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 12/09/22 10661 LITTLE CHUTE HEALTH SERVICES551 N BLUEMOUND DR APT 20 APPLETON, WI 54914 USA $80.00 VTII Basic Ticket Sheet

A/R 12/09/22 10651 DEMERRIUS MCDANIEL 1201 GARFIELD AVE LITTLE CHUTE, WI 54140 USA $91.17 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 12/13/22 10669 MICHAEL HOBART 108 STATE ST NEENAH, WI 54956 USA $500.00 Vehical Fire Fee

A/R 01/09/23 10834 RAQUEL DENN 1718 E AMELIA ST # 4 APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $174.69 Haz Mat Clean‐up

A/R 01/16/23 10869 EDUARDO SANCHEZ MARTINEZ 116 W WISCONSIN AVE APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $2,092.65 Damage to City Property ‐ PD

A/R 01/23/23 10891 MICHAEL WOOD 622 N SUPERIOR ST APPLETON, WI 54911 USA $164.55 Damage to City Property ‐ Traffic

A/R 02/01/23 10999 SAO LO 15 NEWBERRY CT APPLETON, WI 54915 $250.00 Non‐Compliant Refuse Collection

ACCOUNT RECIEVABLE TOTAL $49,609.68

City of Appleton 2023 Write‐Off List
The following accounts will be posted on the City’s website and published in The Post Crescent unless they filed for bankruptcy or are confirmed deceased

Addresses shown are the last known location of the individual or business.



Bill Year Prop Code Customer Name Unpaid Balance Category
PP 2022 313151000 NIKOS HOME IMPROVEMENT LLC  1341 W SECOND STAPPLETON WI 54911 $10.94 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315389780 SIMPLY INSPIRED HAIR DESIGNS C/O LAURIE KURTH 1731 W WASHINGTON ST #E APPLETON WI 54914 $37.19 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316245780 CHAIR INSIDE THE CORNER BARBER SHOP C/O MARIAH KNOX  123 W GLENDALE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $37.19 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316271730 THREE OTTERS PHOTOGRAPHY C/O MARY BAIRD  408 W WISCONSIN AVE APPLETON WI 54911 $118.11 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315275180 BRAIDS UNLIMITED SALON/BARBER SHOP C/O JOHNNITTA SCOTT  405 W WISCONSIN AVE APPLETON WI 54911 $118.11 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314105300 SUNFLOWER SPA LLC  N10878 ARTESIA BEACH MALONE WI 53049 $627.78 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315197400 SUBWAY SUBS & SALADS : MOR-SUBS INC  833 W WISCONSIN AVE APPLETON WI 54914 $883.70 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315077020 INSPIRATIONS DANCE AND FITNESS LLC  400 N RICHMOND ST #E APPLETON WI 54911 $404.66 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311181893 LORE LLC  1421 N KENILWORTH AVE APPLETON WI 54911 $689.01 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314071610 MICHAEL GEHRMAN FILMWORKS : MICHAEL GEHRMAN PHOTOGRAPHY LLC  3410 CHERRYVALE AVE #59APPLETON WI 54913-8795 $56.86 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 313163010 WHIMSICAL CHARM LLC  107 S LINWOOD AVEAPPLETON WI 54914-4924 $205.60 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316252840 MELISSA ALDERTON PHOTOGRAPHY C/O MELISSA ALDERTON  208 W ATLANTIC STAPPLETON WI 54911 $107.18 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316146970 CHAIR INSIDE THE CORNER BARBER SHOP C/O BOBBIE JO SIEBERS  123 W GLENDALE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $37.19 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315342570 KALM, DUANE ACCOUNTING : DJ ACCOUNTING INC  2619 N LAURIE STAPPLETON WI 54914 $10.94 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315401620 SIMPLY INSPIRED HAIR DESIGNS C/O JAMIE RICHESON  1731 W WASHINGTON ST #E APPLETON WI 54914 $209.99 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315402000 MANCAVE BARBERSHOP  1208 N RICHMOND STAPPLETON WI 54911 $118.11 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311100000 APPLE CREEK PLACE : WIRC LLC  208 35TH ST DR SE #500CEDAR RAPIDS IA 52403 $2,342.64 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311154759 APPLE CREEK PLACE : WIRC LLC  208 35TH ST DR SE #500CEDAR RAPIDS IA 52403 $2,342.64 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311154760 APPLE CREEK PLACE : WIRC LLC  208 35TH ST DR SE #500CEDAR RAPIDS IA 52403 $2,342.64 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316245800 KOREANA RESTAURANT : MANGO TREE INC  525 INVERARY CT ONEIDA WI 54155 $448.40 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316241110 HMONG WISCONSIN RADIO LLC  536 E LAYTON AVEAPPLETON WI 54915-2125 $380.61 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312342400 RICK BRETL INDUSTRIES LLC  524 N CLARK ST #5APPLETON WI 54911 $45.94 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314024860 EAZYER.COM : ROCKIN REWARDS LLC  101 W EDISON AVE #234APPLETON WI 54915-1390 $61.25 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 317182000 FOX VALLEY FIREARMS LLC  2310 W COLLEGE AVE #E APPLETON WI 54914 $100.61 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 317270200 ADRIANA'S BEAUTY SALON C/O ADRIANA SAUCEDO  2438 W COLLEGE AVE APPLETON WI 54914 $76.56 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316269805 88 EVENTS LLC  506 E LONGVIEW DR #B APPLETON WI 54911-2105 $629.96 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312093425 COMMERCIAL HORIZONS INC  100 W LAWRENCE ST #214 APPLETON WI 54911 $63.44 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319043780 NU CO2 SUPPLY LLC  10 RIVERVIEW DR DANBURY CT 06810 $119.50 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316246590 LETI Y DAYI STETSON C/O MARIA AND ROBERTO MARTINEZ  131 E WISCONSIN AVE APPLETON WI 54911-4817 $48.12 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314072800 MOBILE HELPDESK LLC  206 S FIDELIS ST APPLETON WI 54915 $52.50 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 313162810 WILDE WEB MARKETING LLC  2330 W CHARLES STAPPLETON WI 54914 $179.37 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314024300 FEATHER AND BONE LLC  800 S LAWE STAPPLETON WI 54915 $205.60 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314032030 EYE PHOTOGRAPH LLC  203 E MCKINLEY STAPPLETON WI 54915 $135.61 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 313156610 VAL U BEAUTY SUPPLY LLC  609 W COLLEGE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $28.45 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 313162720 WIATER ROOFING C/O SCOTT WIATER  810 W PROSPECT AVEAPPLETON WI 54914 $30.62 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319038608 MASSAGE CONNECTION : WEIX LLC  2400 S KENSINGTON DRAPPLETON WI 54915 $46.28 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319016825 FLYAWAYS A BOUTIQUE SALON LLC  2400 S KENSINGTON DR #400APPLETON WI 54915 $29.46 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314042100 VALPAK CORP  ONE VAL-PAK AVENUE N SAINT PETERSBURG FL 33716 $39.37 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316245740 KINGDOM KUTS C/O JESSICA NETZEL  132 E WISCONSIN AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $91.87 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315253800 APPLETON PET SPA LLC   C/O TARA ANN CAREW-PUETZ400 N RICHMOND ST #DAPPLETON WI 54911$236.24 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316245745 KKY POOL HALL C/O YER XIONG AND KEETEEKUNE THAO  339 W WISCONSIN AVE #1APPLETON WI 54911 $231.86 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316249825 MASTER'S TOUCH DENTAL CERAMICS LLC   C/O WILLA EMERICK420 E LONGVIEW DR #DAPPLETON WI 54911 $347.79 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311283060 XPERIENCE FITNESS : VERTICAL FITNESS GROUP LLC  101 E EDISON AVE STE 226APPLETON WI 54915 $306.22 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316263625 REVEAL FITNESS INC   C/O WALTER JENSEN2828 N RICHMOND STAPPLETON WI 54911 $179.37 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311219427 RECOVERY INN (EQUIPMENT) : FOX VALLEY TRANSNTL CARE LLC   C/O BRIAN RAMOS1376 E 3300 SSALT LAKE CITY UT 84106-3069 $319.35 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315347200 LIBERTY TAX SERVICES C/O JASON ANDERSON  1033 W NORTHLAND AVE #AAPPLETON WI 54914 $30.62 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316271910 TNT RENOVATIONS LLC  1925 N UNION STAPPLETON WI 54911 $30.62 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315334460 INTRIGUE FASHIONS LLC   C/O RENADA MC GRAW613 N RICHMOND STAPPLETON WI 54911 $34.99 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 310358750 H30 C/O JAMES S PARK  2806 S SUMMERSET DRAPPLETON WI 54915-2162 $6.89 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316198720 BLOY, TIM CONSTRUCTION CO  1726 N RICHMOND STAPPLETON WI 54911 $262.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316210700 EASTMAN, EMILY  2001 N APPLETON STAPPLETON WI 54911 $17.51 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312276500 RX LINK UNIVERSITY PHARMACY : UNIVERSITY RX LLC  133 E COLLEGE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $282.17 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312378010 SIMPLY LOVE FILMS LLC  338 W COLLEGE AVE #203APPLETON WI 54911 $413.41 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312159870 GREEN GECKO GROCER & DELI : GREEN GECKO ENTERPRISES LLC  222 E COLLEGE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $194.67 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314016016 BEYOND THE ROOTS LLC  3020 E COLLEGE AVE #JAPPLETON WI 54915 $50.32 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311203030 OASIS NUTRITION LLC  3226 N BALLARD RD #2APPLETON WI 54911-8721 $100.61 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315347250 LIFE COUNSELING & CONSULTING LLC  500 W FRANKLIN ST #FAPPLETON WI 54911 $282.17 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315328580 HYPNOSIS INSTITUTE OF WISCONSIN C/O RONALD L LINDBERG  508 W COLLEGE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $28.45 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311150390 JUAN'S GARAGE : FOX VALLEY CHOP SHOP LLC  1211 E WISCONSIN AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $61.25 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316256620 METRICS MARTIAL ARTS LLC   C/O ERIC WEDEKIND132 W 12TH AVEOSHKOSH WI 54902 $65.62 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314086930 POPPY AVENUE BOUTIQUE & CLEAN BEAUTY BAR LLC  161 S RIVERHEATH WAY #2600APPLETON WI 54915 $100.61 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315298530 EVERGREEN FLORIST OF APPLETON LLC   C/O JOE W, SPENCER S, JILL S, MARY W1124 N MASON STAPPLETON WI 54914$203.42 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311160695 HAPPY CAR LLC   C/O BRIAN EDWARD MC CANLESS1239 E WISCONSIN AVEAPPLETON WI 54911-3907$52.50 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 317461920 POPEYES LOUISIANA KITCHEN : SMIT CO EATERIES INC  155 E FANTINEL BLVD #DSPRINGDALE AR 72762-9256 $2,314.22 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314067380 LETTER CREATE STUDIO : THE CRAFT NINJA LLC   C/O TRACY T KLEMENS1706 S SEMINOLE RDAPPLETON WI 54914-4703 $76.56 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311038510 GOSIA'S PHOTOGRAPHY LLC   C/O MALGORZATA FUEHRER315 W FRANKLIN ST #353APPLETON WI 54911-4722$188.12 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311133020 DOCK SYSTEMS USA LLC  2805 E GREENLEAF DRAPPLETON WI 54913-2486 $24.06 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312063000 BOLD SALONS LLC   C/O CARLA MANNS207 W COLLEGE AVE UNIT #2APPLETON WI 54911 $277.79 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319036110 HUNTINGTON TECHNOLOGY FINANCE INC  2258 FRANKLIN RDBLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48302 $144.78 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319059995 SLASH BEAUTY & BARBERING LLC   C/O ASHLEY DAVIS1621 E TRACIA LAAPPLETON WI 54911 $84.15 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319072550 STUDIO TLC C/O ASHLEY ZAHRINGER  2400 S KENSINGTON DR #400APPLETON WI 54915 $84.15 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 319015600 FALLEN GRAFIX LLC   C/O JOANNA & ZACHARY THOMPSON2705 S LAKE PARK RDAPPLETON WI 54915$91.92 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 315007750 APPLETON AUTO STYLING : AUTO STYLING LLC   C/O TONY XIONG117 N DOUGLAS ST #AAPPLETON WI 54914 $52.50 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314104370 SOUL ASCENSION MASSAGE AND SHAMANICS C/O LINDSAY MILLER  1707 S ONEIDA STAPPLETON WI 54915 $87.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311243300 SNAPTASTIC PHOTOGRAPHY C/O ERIKA PARKER   PO BOX 25233115 N ROEMER RDAPPLETON WI 54912 $87.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 311211547 POWERS PAPER LLC   C/O BRIAN POWERS2210 E EVERGREEN DRAPPLETON WI 54913 $87.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 313056135 SLACKERS RESTAURANT & BAR : DVV ENTERPRISES LLC  C/O JAMES VERHOEVEN & STEVE VAN FOSSEN511 W COLLEGE AVE $389.35 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314071027 M.NATURALS SPA & GIFTS : M.NATURALS LLC   C/O MINDI J WIEDOFF1620 S LAWE ST #4APPLETON WI 54915 $59.06 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314109095 TOPVU MEDIA LLC   C/O GARRETT MARCUS KAMARK2415 WISCONSIN STOSHKOSH WI 54901-0757$118.11 2022 Personal Property Taxes

City of Appleton 2023 Write-Off List
The following accounts will be posted on the City’s website and published in The Post Crescent unless they filed for bankruptcy or are confirmed deceased

Addresses shown are the last known location of the individual or business.



PP 2022 315412220 TINO BAKERY LLC   C/O MARIA ESTRADA2017 N RICHMOND STAPPLETON WI 54914 $201.24 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314017650 BURN BOOT CAMP : QUELLA CAKES & PIES LLC   C/O SARAH QUELLAN9030 PAPERMAKER PASSMENASHA WI 54952 $697.77 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 313146260 STATEMENT PIECE LLC THE   C/O LENA SARA MARIE GUSTMANW6695 GREENVILLE DRGREENVILLE WI 54942$10.94 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 318570220 SHE HAIR BOUTIQUE C/O ADDEY CRONKRITE  2110 S MEMORIAL DRAPPLETON WI 54915 $110.51 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 314103670 STANGLER COUNSELING SERVICES LLC   C/O TARA STANGLER101 W EDISON AVE #260APPLETON WI 54915 $100.61 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312443221 WILSON FINANCIAL LLC C/O TIMOTHY WILSON  100 W LAWRENCE ST #223APPLETON WI 54911 $89.68 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312238501 LA BELLE MAISON LLC   C/O SANDRA J PUFAHL229 E COLLEGE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $87.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316243300 JAELEI BEAUTY C/O JAELEI YANG  2001 N APPLETON STAPPLETON WI 54911 $87.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 316254650 NOVA SALON C/O LEAH MILLER  2001 N APPLETON STAPPLETON WI 54911 $87.49 2022 Personal Property Taxes
PP 2022 312094960 FIKA COFFEE AND TEA LLC   C/O CONNER STILP207 W COLLEGE AVEAPPLETON WI 54911 $413.41 2022 Personal Property Taxes

2022 PP TAX TOTAL $23,407.02



 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.”  

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

TO:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee  

   

FROM: Environmental Programs Coordinator Brian Kreski 

 

DATE: December 2, 2024 

 

RE: Award Organic Recycling Contractor Services to Hsu Growing Supply for an extended 

one (1) year term ending December 31, 2025. 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) has been operating a biosolids compost facility since 

the fall of 2010. Since its inception, the AWWTP has successfully contracted Hsu Growing Supply (Hsu) 

for compost processing services. The year-end of 2024 will mark the conclusion of the fifth consecutive 

contract term with Hsu. 

 

The last request for quotes (RFQ) for Organic Recycling Contractor Services was completed on March 1, 

2017. At that time, Hsu was the only responsive firm out of six that submitted proposals. The non-responsive 

firms cited various reasons, including an inability to meet necessary qualifications, lack of competitiveness 

regarding process frequency and equipment mobilization distance, and that the requested services fell 

outside their corporate business model. 

 

In recognition of the unique nature of the requested services and the limited pool of capable firms, the 2022-

2024 contract with Hsu includes language that allows for an extension by mutual agreement from both 

parties. The Hsu extension quote tabulation is summarized in Table 1. The budget for the Compost Program 

and the contract award amount, which spans four years, is based on the annual processing of three "batches" 

of material. This totals 16,000 cubic yards, with each batch comprising 5,333 cubic yards. 

 

Table 1: Organic Recycling Contractor Services Quote for 2025 

Note: Fuel surcharges would apply. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I recommend a contract extension for organic recycling services for one additional year be awarded to Hsu 

for the term ending December 31, 2025. If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact 

Brian Kreski at 920-832-2316. 

 Required Quote (per unit / per batch) Alternate Quotes 

 Compost Processing Stockpiling Screening 

Company 2,500 YD 5,000 YD 10,000 YD 3,500 YD 1,000 YD 

Hsu Growing Supply 

$8.00 

per/YD 

$5.50 

per/YD 

$4.50 

per/YD 

$3.45 

per/YD 

- 

$20,000 $27,500 $45,000 $12,075 - 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   December 10, 2025  
To:  Utilities Committee 
From:  Laura Jungwirth, Director of Public Works 
   Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
Subject:  Award 2025A Stormwater Management Plan review contract to Brown and 

Caldwell in an amount not to exceed $80,000. 

 

The Department of Public Works (DPW) requests awarding the 2025A Stormwater 
Management Plan Review contract to Brown and Caldwell (BC) in an amount not to 
exceed $80,000.  In 2023, a Request for Proposals was issued for stormwater 
management plan review.  Two proposals from qualified consultants were received and 
each consultant was awarded a portion of the work. DPW is proposing the same 
approach for 2025.   

Work under this contract includes working with City staff, developers and their 
consultants, and other regulatory agencies to review stormwater management plans and 
erosion control plans and develop these plans for City projects.   

The number of plans submitted or needed during the year is unknown.  This contract is 
billed on an hourly basis as projects occur.  A contract amendment will be brought to the 
Utilities Committee if more projects are submitted than estimated for the available funds.  
The 2025A contract award is requested for a larger amount than 2025B due to the large 
Thrivent project, on which BC has been working in 2024, and on which they will continue 
working throughout 2025.  

BC has performed exceptionally in 2024, providing technical expertise, timely review of 
projects and communication with both City staff and developers.   

The 2023 Request for Proposals stated: “With satisfactory performance by the selected 
consultant(s) and consistent staffing, the selected consultant(s) may be contracted for this 
same work in 2025-2028 (five year maximum) without an RFP process.”  Therefore, if 
approved, and with satisfactory performance by the consultants, DPW staff anticipate 
negotiating contracts without an RFP process with BC and/or raSmith for 2025-2028 
Stormwater Management Plan Reviews, subject to Utilities Committee and Common 
Council approval at the appropriate times.  



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   December 10, 2025  
To:  Utilities Committee 
From:  Laura Jungwirth, Director of Public Works 
   Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
Subject:  Award 2025B Stormwater Management Plan review contract to raSmith in 

an amount not to exceed $30,000. 

 

The Department of Public Works (DPW) requests awarding the 2025B Stormwater 
Management Plan Review contract to raSmith in an amount not to exceed $30,000.  In 
2023, a Request for Proposals was issued for stormwater management plan review.  Two 
proposals from qualified consultants were received and each consultant was awarded a 
portion of the work. DPW is proposing the same approach for 2025.   

Work under this contract includes working with City staff, developers and their 
consultants, and other regulatory agencies to review stormwater management plans and 
erosion control plans and develop these plans for City projects.  In 2025 raSmith will also 
assist City staff with updating skills for the stormwater review software approved in the 
2025 adopted budget.  

The number of plans submitted or needed during the year is unknown.  This contract is 
billed on an hourly basis as projects occur.  A contract amendment will be brought to the 
Utilities Committee if more projects are submitted than estimated for the available funds.   

raSmith performed well in 2024, developing stormwater and erosion control plans for 
expansion of the Municipal Services Building into 3001 Glendale Avenue, as well as 
providing technical expertise, timely response to projects submitted for review and 
communication with both City staff and developer’s engineers.   

The 2023 Request for Proposals stated: “With satisfactory performance by the selected 
consultant(s) and consistent staffing, the selected consultant(s) may be contracted for this 
same work in 2025-2028 (five year maximum) without an RFP process.”  Therefore, if 
approved, and with satisfactory performance by the consultants, DPW staff anticipate 
negotiating contracts without an RFP process with raSmith and/or Brown and Caldwell for 
2025-2028 Stormwater Management Plan Reviews, subject to Utilities Committee and 
Common Council approval at the appropriate times.  



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

cc: City Clerk

Contract File

ANTICIPATED AWARD

The Department of Public Works is planning to award

Committee Date:

Council Date:

******************************* AND / OR ************************************

AWARD OF CONTRACT

The Department of Public Works recommends that Unit N-24, Spot Repairs, Protruding Tap &

Mineral Deposit Removal

Be awarded to: Name: New Restoration and Recovery Services, LLC dba Aqualis

Address: 2094 County Rd. QQ

Green Bay, WI 54311

In the amount of with a contingency of $0.00

    ** OR **     in the amount Not To Exceed

Budget: $129,512.50

Estimate: $150,000.00

Committee Date: 12/10/24

Council Date: 12/18/24

$129,512.50

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N
Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

SUBJECT: Anticipated Award and/or Award of Contract

12/2/2024
J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Weyenberg C\Projects\2024\N-24 Spot Repairs\N-24Rev Anticipated Contract Award Form.xlsx



N-24 Sewer spot repairs, protruding tap and mineral deposit removal (#9404096)
Owner: Appleton WI, City of
Solicitor: Appleton WI, City of
11/25/2024 01:45 PM CST

Engineer Estimate AQUALIS Speedy Clean Drain & Sewer Musson Bros. Inc.
Section Title Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
N-24 BASE BID $0.00 $172,575.55 $175,475.00 $318,900.00

1 1 Brewster St each 1 $3,260.00 $3,260.00 $3,925.00 $3,925.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
2 2 Drew St each 1 $2,987.50 $2,987.50 $6,690.00 $6,690.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00
3 3 Durkee St each 1 $7,820.40 $7,820.40 $13,200.00 $13,200.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00
4 4 Alton St each 1 $4,935.00 $4,935.00 $4,470.00 $4,470.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00
5 5 Kamps Av each 1 $3,512.25 $3,512.25 $2,640.00 $2,640.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
6 6 Ravina Pl each 1 $4,935.00 $4,935.00 $5,215.00 $5,215.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00
7 7 Viola St each 1 $3,407.25 $3,407.25 $4,150.00 $4,150.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
8 8 Superior St each 1 $6,342.50 $6,342.50 $3,880.00 $3,880.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
9 9 Erb St each 1 $6,288.75 $6,288.75 $4,510.00 $4,510.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00

10 10 Walden Av each 1 $6,342.50 $6,342.50 $4,510.00 $4,510.00 $5,900.00 $5,900.00
11 11 Grant St each 1 $6,342.50 $6,342.50 $4,510.00 $4,510.00 $5,900.00 $5,900.00
12 12 Marquette St each 1 $7,333.50 $7,333.50 $5,095.00 $5,095.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00
13 13 Oneida St each 1 $7,123.50 $7,123.50 $5,140.00 $5,140.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00
14 14 Lincoln St each 1 $7,350.00 $7,350.00 $4,250.00 $4,250.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00
15 15 Newberry St each 1 $1,015.00 $1,015.00 $3,880.00 $3,880.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
16 16 Appleton St each 1 $1,015.00 $1,015.00 $3,880.00 $3,880.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
17 17 Greenfield St each 1 $1,015.00 $1,015.00 $3,880.00 $3,880.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
18 18 Eighth St each 1 $1,015.00 $1,015.00 $3,880.00 $3,880.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
19 19 Wilson Av each 1 $1,015.00 $1,015.00 $3,880.00 $3,880.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
20 20 Robinscrest Ct each 1 $900.00 $900.00 $870.00 $870.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
21 21 Division St each 1 $1,015.00 $1,015.00 $2,640.00 $2,640.00 $6,200.00 $6,200.00
22 22 Erb St each 1 $1,849.75 $1,849.75 $4,880.00 $4,880.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
23 23 Linnwood Av each 1 $2,059.75 $2,059.75 $4,680.00 $4,680.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
24 24 Byrd St each 1 $1,044.75 $1,044.75 $810.00 $810.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
25 25 Lawrence St each 1 $1,044.75 $1,044.75 $810.00 $810.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
26 26 Summer St each 1 $2,275.00 $2,275.00 $630.00 $630.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00
27 27 Fritz Ct each 1 $2,275.00 $2,275.00 $630.00 $630.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00
28 28 Linnwood Av each 1 $2,275.00 $2,275.00 $630.00 $630.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00
29 29 Linnwood Av each 1 $4,425.00 $4,425.00 $1,260.00 $1,260.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00
30 30 Linnwood Av each 1 $923.50 $923.50 $315.00 $315.00 $1,300.00 $1,300.00
31 31 Kernan Av each 1 $923.50 $923.50 $630.00 $630.00 $4,800.00 $4,800.00
32 32 South River St each 1 $923.50 $923.50 $630.00 $630.00 $3,800.00 $3,800.00
33 33 Eisenhower Dr each 1 $1,180.00 $1,180.00 $1,260.00 $1,260.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00
34 34 Providence Av each 1 $3,025.00 $3,025.00 $3,345.00 $3,345.00 $7,300.00 $7,300.00
35 35 Providence Av each 1 $5,365.00 $5,365.00 $8,920.00 $8,920.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00
36 36 Providence Av each 1 $5,365.00 $5,365.00 $6,690.00 $6,690.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00
37 37 Walden Av each 1 $7,406.90 $7,406.90 $9,675.00 $9,675.00 $19,500.00 $19,500.00
38 38 Greenleaf Dr each 1 $5,065.00 $5,065.00 $8,920.00 $8,920.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00
39 39 Highland Av each 1 $3,025.00 $3,025.00 $3,345.00 $3,345.00 $5,300.00 $5,300.00
40 40 Bluetopaz Dr each 1 $7,226.00 $7,226.00 $1,890.00 $1,890.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00
41 41 Newberry St each 1 $2,687.50 $2,687.50 $630.00 $630.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00
42 42 Newberry St each 1 $1,180.00 $1,180.00 $810.00 $810.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00
43 43 Linnwood Av each 1 $1,327.50 $1,327.50 $1,620.00 $1,620.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
44 44 Linnwood Av each 1 $1,475.00 $1,475.00 $1,620.00 $1,620.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00
45 45 Linnwood Av each 1 $1,180.00 $1,180.00 $1,260.00 $1,260.00 $8,400.00 $8,400.00
46 46 Pintail Pl each 1 $2,625.00 $2,625.00 $315.00 $315.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00
47 47 Fuji Ct each 1 $2,687.50 $2,687.50 $630.00 $630.00 $3,200.00 $3,200.00
48 48 Braeburn Dr each 1 $3,190.00 $3,190.00 $4,095.00 $4,095.00 $6,400.00 $6,400.00
49 49 Joint Sealing Grout gallons 300 $15.50 $4,650.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25.00 $7,500.00
50 50 Extra Hours each 30 $297.50 $8,925.00 $315.00 $9,450.00 $650.00 $19,500.00

Base Bid Total: $0.00 $172,575.55 $175,475.00 $318,900.00



 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:   December 10, 2024 
 
To:   Utility Committee 
 
From:  Laura Jungwirth, Director of Public Works 
   Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
    
Subject:  Amend K-24 Native Vegetation Contract (K-24) with Robert E. Lee & 

Associates, Inc. dba NES Ecological Services by an increase of 
$15,000, from $192,345.12 to a new amount not to exceed $207,345.12. 

 

 
The Department of Public Works requests amending the K-24 Native Vegetation Contract 
(K-24) with Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. dba NES Ecological Services by an increase 
of $15,000, from $192,345.12 to a new amount not to exceed $207,345.12. Funding for 
work under this contract is provided by remaining 2024 funds in the 5230 account 
Stormwater Capital Construction budget. 
 
The Department of Public Works is requesting $15,000 of additional funding for the 2024 
Native Vegetation Contract to provide additional expertise, review, and support for the 
proposed Thrivent Development and related proposed changes to the City of Appleton 
owned Ballard Pond. 

To keep this development project moving forward in a timely manner, staff recommends 
amending the 2024 Native Vegetation contract to allow for the additional services. 

 



Department of Utilities 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 East Newberry Street 

Appleton, WI 54915 

p: 920-832-5945 

f: 920-832-5949 

www.appleton.org/government/utilities 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: November 20, 2024 

To: Chairperson Vered Meltzer and Members of the Utilities Committee 

From: Chris Stempa, Utilities Director 

CC: Ryan Rice, Utilities Deputy Director 
 Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Fund Accounting Manager  

Subject: Action: Approve Contract Amendment #2 to McMahon as part of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Grit Removal, Blended Sludge Piping and 
Heat Exchanger Replacement Project for additional design and 
construction management services in the amount of $18,900 

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

On April 5, 2023, Common Council approved a professional engineering service contract 
for the Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant (AWWTP) Grit Removal, Blended Sludge 
Piping, and Heat Exchanger Replacement Project to McMahon in the amount of $85,300 
with 15% contingency of $12,795 for a project total not to exceed $98,095.    

Amendment #1, fully executed in May 2023, included costs for field measuring the Raw 
Sludge Pump room and provide record drawings.  These drawings did not previously exist 
dating back to 1990’s upgrade project.   

McMahon was asked to provide a proposal for additional services not identified within the 
current contract scope following equipment failures within process operations enveloped 
by the current project.  The scope of services outlined as Amendment #2 is outlined in 
the below. 

 
PROPOSAL  

The proposed scope of services provided by McMahon outlined as Amendment #2 is 
summarized below. 
 

1. Provide engineering drawings for the demolition of unused sludge transfer pump 
and associated piping at entrance to MK Tunnel. 

2. Provide engineering drawings for the digester feed pumps. Develop specifications 
for new digester feed pump AC motors and variable frequency drives (VFD’s) at new 
location in MK Tunnel. 

a. Provide one-line and electrical elementary diagrams for the new VFD’s. 

b. Coordinate control requirements and installation with Owner specified 

http://www.appleton.org/government/utilities


Utilities Committee Memo 
Grit Removal, Blended Sludge Piping, and Heat Exchanger Replacement Project Contract Amendment #2  
Page 2 of 2 

 

Integrator. 

c. Specify new drive pulleys/sheaves so the new drive maintains the same 
maximum pump speed. 

3. Specify electrical disconnects for the two (2) raw sludge blend tank recirculation 
pumps in MK Tunnel 

4. Depict the demolition of existing pneumatic hot water blend valves and provide new 
electric actuated hot water blend valves for the MK Tunnel pre-heat heat exchanger 
and the lower-level primary digester heat exchangers. 

a. Demolition to include demolition of pneumatic tubing to existing blend valves. 

b. Provide elementary drawing for the new blend valves. 

c. Coordinate control requirements and installation with Owner specified 
Integrator. 

5. Design booster pump and pneumatic tank to boost the pressure of the seal water 
for the digester recirculation pump in the lower level of K Building. 

a. Develop specifications for the pump and expansion tank. 

b. Provide mechanical layout drawing, develop P&ID, and produce field 
connection diagrams for the system. 

c. Develop one-line diagram (or other means) to source power for the new 
pump. 

d. Coordinate control requirements and installation with Owner specified 
Integrator.  

 
SUMMARY 

The cost of additional engineering design and construction management services outlined 
Contract Amendment #2 totals $18,900.  This amendment would result in the decrease 
to contingency from $12,795 to $0.  The $6,100 balance would be funded by remaining 
CIP project funds ($305,153) resulting in the overall contract being increased from 
$87,300 to $106,200 

If you have any questions regarding Amendment #2, please contact Chris Stempa at ph: 
832-5945. 



 

Department of Utilities  
Water Treatment Facility 

2281 Manitowoc Road. 
Menasha, WI 54952 

p:920-997-4200 
www.appleton.org/government/utilities 

 

MEMORANDUM  

Date:  December 13, 2024  

To:  Chairperson Vered Meltzer 

CC:  Ryan Rice, Deputy Director of Utilities 
John Pogrant, Water Treatment Facility Operations Supervisor 

   Kelli Rindt, Enterprise Accounting Fund Manager 

From:  Chris Stempa, Director of Utilities 

Subject: Utilities Committee Action: Approval of an Engineering Services 
contract for the North and Ridgeway Tower Coating Projects to Dixon 
Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $129,390 plus a 7.5% contingency of 
$9,704 for a total cost of $139,094 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Appleton Water Utility includes seven elevated storage structures (towers, standpipes, 

and reservoirs) within the City of Appleton distribution system.  These structures are 

required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to be cleaned and inspected 

at least every five years.  The interior and exterior paint coatings must be repaired or 

wholesale repainted as necessary to maintain structural integrity.  Typically, the lifespan of 

a coating system is 15 years without requiring some level of maintenance.  The inspections 

completed at the North Tower and Ridgway Tower in 2020 revealed evidence of coating 

system failure.  At that time, only spot repairs were made given the overall coating system 

condition.  However, the recommendation was given to plan for a complete interior and/or 

exterior recoating project in 2025.   

The Appleton Water Utility allocated a total of $1.75 million dollars in the 2025 budget for 

the repainting of these tower sites (engineering services and coating contractor). 

PROPOSAL EVALUATION 

Invitations for professional services proposals were sent to three qualified engineering 

firms, Dixon Engineering, Inc., McMahon Associates, Inc., and Strand Associates, Inc.  

These firms were selected for their project familiarity and project team members that have 

a history of similar water industry project work and a history with the Appleton Water Utility 

elevated storage sites.  

  

http://www.appleton.org/government/utilities


Utilities Committee Memorandum 
Engineering Services contract for the North and Ridgeway Tower Coating Project  
Page 2 of 2 
 

An evaluation team completed their review of proposals and scored according to the results 

in the table below.  

COMPANY QUOTE SCORE VALUE ($/Pt) 
Dixon Engineering, Inc. $129,390 176 735 
McMahon Associates, Inc. $99,600 95 1,048 
Strand Associates $156,900 179 877 
Note: The lowest price per point is considered the best value proposal 

 

The proposal review team evaluation process occurs first and is independent of costs being 

disclosed.  The sealed fees are opened after the team members scores are consolidated.  

The intent is to identify the best value proposal by analyzing the qualitative aspects of 

proposals in relation to price, without establishing price as a stand-alone, weighted criterion.  

This method simply divides each proposer’s price by the qualitative score they earned to 

arrive at a “price per point.”  The lowest price per point is considered the best value 

proposal.   

Of the submitted proposals, the evaluation team had scored Strand Associates the highest 

but only a three-point delta existed between them in the next firm, Dixon.  Dixon’s proposal 

was determined to provide the services required to deliver a successful project at the best 

overall best value based on the criteria previously outlined.  Dixon has provided coating 

inspection services in the past at the Ridgeway and North Tower sites including within the 

Appleton Water Treatment Facility as part of the steel structure recoating work on the 

Accelerator Solid Contact Clarifier/Softeners.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of an Engineering Services contract for the North and Ridgeway Tower Coating 

Projects to Dixon Engineering, Inc. in the amount of $129,390 plus a 7.5% contingency of 

$9,704 for a total cost of $139,094. 

If you have any questions regarding this project, please contact Chris Stempa at ph: 832-

5945. 

 

 



 

MEMORANDUM  

 

Date:   December 4, 2024 

 

To:  Chairperson Jones, Members of the Human Resources/Information Technology 

Committee, and Appleton Common Council Members 

 

From:   Jay Ratchman, Human Resources Director 

 

Subject:  Deputy Director Human Resources Over Hire Request 

 

Our current Deputy Director Human Resources, Kim Kamp, has announced her planned 
retirement, effective March 10, 2025. This position is critical to our department in the areas of 
supervision, compliance, compensation administration, and employee relations. 

I am requesting your authorization to over hire the position of Deputy Director Human Resources 
for up to four weeks. This proactive approach will ensure a seamless transition of responsibilities 
and continued operational efficiency. 

To address this upcoming vacancy effectively, I propose hiring a replacement before the 
incumbent departs. This over hire would allow for: 

1. Knowledge Transfer and Training: 
A transitional overlap will provide the incoming hire sufficient time to shadow the outgoing 
employee, ensuring the transfer of institutional knowledge, skills, and processes critical to 
the role. 

2. Continuity of Operations: 
Avoiding a staffing gap in this role will help maintain uninterrupted service delivery and 
ensure ongoing projects or responsibilities are not delayed. 

3. Recruitment and Onboarding Efficiencies: 
Securing a new hire in advance will enable proper onboarding, minimizing potential 
disruptions caused by a rushed hiring process. 

We posted this upcoming vacancy starting on December 2, 2024, with an application deadline 
date of December 15, 2024. Our anticipated start date for the new Deputy Director Human 
Resources is February 10, 2025. Costs associated with this over hire are anticipated to be 
$11,254 (this includes salary and fringe benefits). This additional cost will be taken from vacant 
salary dollars that have been budgeted for. 

Thank you for considering this important request. 



 

MEMORANDUM  

 

Date:   December 4, 2024 

 

To:  Chairperson Jones, Members of the Human Resources/Information Technology 
Committee, and Appleton Common Council Members 

 

From:   Jay Ratchman, Human Resources Director 

 

Subject:  City of Appleton Strategic Guide Facilitation Services 

 

Following the completion of the Request for Proposal (RFP) process, we have carefully evaluated 
the submissions from several qualified firms to lead the strategic planning process for City of 
Appleton. Based on a thorough review, we are recommending CP2 Consulting to facilitate this 
critical initiative. 

The RFP process was conducted in accordance with established guidelines, ensuring 
transparency and fairness. Proposals were assessed against the following criteria: 

1. Experience and Qualifications: Demonstrated success in strategic planning for 
organizations similar to ours. 

2. Proposed Approach: A clear, customized methodology that aligned with our goals and 
challenges. 

3. Cost and Value: Alignment with budgetary constraints while offering maximum value. 
4. References: Strong endorsements from previous clients. 

The selection committee reviewed proposals and interviews were held with finalist. 

The cost bid from CP2 is $44,200, with a travel allowance of up to $5,000 (the average cost for 
bids received were $63,300, with an average travel allowance up to $6,250). Funding of $45,000 
from existing ARPA funds were designated and approved for this project by the Common Council 
on August 21, 2024. We believe the total costs, with travel, for this project can be managed within 
the total funded amount approved by the Common Council. If not, we will used existing funds from 
the organizational development budget. 
 
If approved, we look to engage CP2 right away. The timeline and additional details can be found 
in the enclosed proposal. 

Thank you for your consideration for this request. 



!!

Strategic!Guide Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI

1

November 2024

Prepared!by:!CP2 Consulting

City of Appleton

Proposal!for!Comprehensive!

Strategic!Guide Services!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

2!

!

November!1,!2024!!

Melody!Lewis,!Staff!Development!&!Training!Coordinator!

Vanessa!Calder!

City!of!Appleton,!WI!

!

RE:!Comprehensive!Strategic!Guide!Proposal!!

!

Dear!Melody!Lewis!and!Vanessa!Calder,!!

!

CP2!Consulting!is!pleased!to!submit!our!proposal!to!assist!the!City!with!Strategic!Guide!Facilitation!services.!The!

following!approach/framework!specifically!addresses!the!organization�s!desired!outcomes!as!we!understand!them.!

The!following!proposal!outlines!how!CP2!Consulting!can!address!the!following!needs:!!

!

· Review!internal!and!external!data!sources!and!supplement!data!with!additional!information!including!

interviews!and!focus!groups!to!develop!a!comprehensive!understanding!of!the!operating!environment;!!

· Facilitate!the!development!of!the!organization�s!persona,!mission,!vision,!and!values!to!set!organizational!

priorities!and!the!City�s!overall!strategic!direction!with!the!City!Leadership!Team;!!

· Facilitate!a!strategic!guide!workshop,!including!SWOT!analysis,!with!the!City�s!Leadership!Team!to!develop!

short-term!and!long-term!organizational!goals!that!can!be!monitored;!

· Facilitate!an!implementation!strategy!to!deliver!progress!reports!on!organizational!goals!and!initiatives;!!

· Provide!a!final!summary!report!of!the!strategic!guide!process!and!outcomes.!!

!

As! the! attached! proposal! reflects,! we! have! considerable! experience! facilitating! strategic! guide/planning! and!

implementation!process!like!the!one!envisioned!for!City!of!Appleton.!CP2!Consulting!specializes!in!serving!public!

sector!clients.!I!will!be!the!one!of!two!consultants!for!this!project,!and!my!career!has!been!focused!on!roles!either!

in! local! government! or! nonprofits,! including! as! the! former! Executive! Director! of! the! Wisconsin! City! County!

Management!Association.!!My!Master!of!Public!Administration!(MPA)!degree!includes!a!specialization!in!public!

leadership! and! strategic! management,! and! I! hold! a! certification! in! Strategic! Planning! endorsed! by! George!

Washington!University!and!the!Baldridge!Foundation.!!Winnie!Frankel,!who!will!also!be!working!on!this!project,!

has! a! Master! of! Social! Work! (MSW)! degree,! a! Clinical! License! (LCSW,)! as! well! as! a! bachelor�s! degree! in!

organizational! communication! and!political! science.! !Her! career! has! focused!on! facilitating! understanding! and!

organizational! consensus! in! public,! professional,! and! academic! settings.! The! CP2! Consulting! team! has! a! long-

standing!commitment!to!strategic!thinking,!cultivating!leadership,!transparent!practices,!and!measurable!results.!

!

Thank!you!for!the!opportunity!to!provide!these!services!to!the!City!of!Appleton.!

!

Sincerely,!

!

Cory!Poris!Plasch,!President/CEO!!!!!!!!

CP2!Consulting,!Inc.!!!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

3!

!

!

Project Approach 
Strategic!planning,!at!its!core,!is!establishing!a!clear!direction!forward!for!the!organization!in!alignment!with!its!

mission!and!core!values.!!

The!CP2Consulting!strategic!planning!methodology!is!based!upon!leading!practices!in!strategic!planning,!refined!

and! continually! updated! based! upon! industry! trends! and! knowledge! gained! through! client! engagements.!

Organizational!culture!is!a!key!component!in!meeting!strategic!goals,!and!we!employ!and!promote!strategies!to!

create!a!Learning!Culture,!where!growth,!curiosity!and!authenticity!prevail.!!Our!methodology!is!comprehensive!

and!thorough,!while!remaining!flexible!enough!to!meet!the!specific!needs!of!our!clients.!!

In! the! following! proposal,! CP2!Consulting! recommends! a!multi-phased,! participative! format! to! engage! City!

leadership!and!staff!to!shape!the!desired!future!direction!of!the!City.!

Phase!1:!!Strategic!Guide!Development!

Phase 1A: Project Launch

This!phase!involves!project!start-up!activities,!including:!!

1. Project!review!meetings!with!key!City!project!staff!to!confirm!the!scope!of!work!and!expected!outcomes;!!

2. Provide!an!overview!of!the!strategic!planning/strategic!guide!process;!

3. Review!history!and!current!fit!of!mission,!vision!and!values!of!the!organization!and!determine!the!

extent!of!needed!adjustments;!

4. Identify!and!confirm!internal!stakeholder!involvement!and!the!overall!environmental!scanning!process!

elements;!and,!!!

5. Discuss!current!organizational!culture.!!

!

The!purpose!of!this!phase!is!to!confirm!the!overall!project!scope!and!intended!outcomes!and!make!any!necessary!

refinement!to!the!project!guide!and!budget.!

!

Phase 1B: Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder!engagement!is!a!key!component!of!the!strategic!planning!effort!as!it!allows!you!to!understand!your!

organization!from!a!variety!of!perspectives.!!!

!

Ø Internal!stakeholders�refers!to!individuals!or!groups!who!are!within!the!organization!by!virtue!of!being!

elected! to! or! employed/appointed! by! the! organization,! including! employees! at! all! levels.! ! Internal!

stakeholders!are!essential!to!successful!implementation!of!the!strategic!plan!and!their!input!should!be!

considered!and!incorporated!into!the!strategic!planning!process.!

Ø External! stakeholders�refers! to! individuals! or! groups! who! are! outside! the! organization! but! are!

impacted!by!the!actions!of!the!organization!and!the!quality!of!life!in!the!community.!These!include,!but!

are! not! limited! to,! businesses,! neighborhoods,! residents! of! all! ages,! historically! underrepresented!

populations,!special!interest!groups,!and!other!taxing!jurisdictions.!!

 
There!are!two!avenues!proposed!for!collecting!original!stakeholder!feedback!specific!to!this!project,!including:!!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

4!

!

Ø Invitational!Focus!groups.!These!groups!are!facilitated!by!the!consulting!team!with!groups!

identified!and!invited!by!the!client.!The!sessions!run!approximately!90!minutes!and!consist!of!ten!

to!12!individuals!from!each!of!the!selected!stakeholder!groups.!Groups!can!be!either!internal!or!

external!stakeholders.!While!some!information!may!be!gathered!during!the!Comprehensive!Plan!

data!collection!process,!it!is!often!helpful!to!have!a!more!thorough!understanding!of!internal!

operations!and!strategic!opportunities!for!the!organization!through!dedicated!employee!focus!

groups.!!Additionally,!direct!stakeholder!engagement!helps!to!build!buy-in!for!the!strategic!guide!

process,!an!important!consideration!for!successful!implementation.!!For!this!project,!at!least!three!

focus!groups!are!recommended,!two!consisting!of!city!staff!in!front!line!positions!and!another!

consisting!of!supervisors!and!middle!management.!!!

!

Ø Measure!Gallery.!!See!Phase!1D!below.!

!

It!is!anticipated!that!the!majority!of!the!external!stakeholder!data!will!come!from!existing!sources!and!the!data!

being!generated!through!the!Comprehensive!Plan!process.!

!

Both!proposed!stakeholder!engagement!activities!include:!!

1. Discussion!and!finalization!of!methods!to!be!used!(e.g.,!focus!groups!�!number!and!types,!audience!for!

Measure!Gallery,!!etc.).!!!

2. Facilitation!of!the!process!with!selected!approaches.!!

3. Summarization!and!presentation!of!results!derived!from!the!raw!data.!

!

It! is! the! responsibility!of! the! City! to! secure!any! facilities!or!meeting! rooms!as!well!as! coordinate! invites!needed! for!

stakeholder!engagement.!The!City!will!coordinate!with!CP2!Consulting!for!room!arrangements/set-up,!participant!list,!

and!refreshments!for!all!workshops!and!project!sessions.!The!City!should!check!with!its!legal!counsel!to!make!sure!all!

meeting! postings! are! consistent!with! any! open!meetings! act! procedures.! The! City! is! responsible! for! reviewing! and!

securing! facilities! including! technology! or! equipment,! supplies! and/or! other! ancillary! logistical! items,! as! well! as!

refreshments!and!any!associated!costs.!!

!

Phase 1C: Understanding the Operating Environment

The!introductory!step!in!the!strategic!planning!process!is!to!understand!the!operating!environment.!In!addition!

to!the!stakeholder!data!in!Phase!1B!above,!this!is!accomplished!in!the!following!four!ways:!(1)!an!Environmental!

Scan;!(2)!an!Organizational!Profile;!and!(3)!interviews!with!members!of!the!City!Leadership!Team;!and!(4)!a!SWOT!

(Strengths,!Weaknesses,!Opportunities,!Threats)!analysis.!!

!

Ø Conduct!Environmental!Scan!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

An! environmental! scan! is! a! thoughtful! analysis! and! evaluation! of! the! strategic! environment! facing! the!

organization.!!Environmental!factors!affecting!the!organization�s!operative!environment!should!be!reviewed,!

including! financial! and! economic! conditions,! demographics,! political! and! intergovernmental! relations,!

citizen! and! stakeholder! issues,! technology! changes,! environmental! sustainability,! and! the! regulatory!

environment.!This!will!be!generated!by!the!consultant!with!guidance!from!the!staff.!

!

Ø Develop!Organizational!Profile!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

An!organizational!profile!is!a!snapshot!of!your!organization,!the!key!influences!on!how!it!operates!and!the!

key!challenges!it!faces.!!Information!regarding!organizational!structure,!work!processes,!staff!capacity!and!

capabilities,!and!the!strategic!environment!are!included.!Employee!focus!group!data!can!help!inform!the!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

5!

!

organizational!profile!along!with!employee!surveys!and!other!internal!documents.!!This!will!be!generated!by!

the!consultant!with!guidance!from!the!staff.!

!

Ø Interviews!!

Interviews!with!members!of!the!City!Leadership!Team!will!be!conducted!to!introduce!the!consultant(s)!and!

acquire!the!perspective!of!the!senior!leadership!regarding!the!current!environment,!challenges,!and!issues.!

!

Ø SWOT!Analysis!

A!SWOT!questionnaire!is!administered!in!advance!of!the!strategic!planning!retreat!to!all!strategic!planning!

participants.!This!provides!a!leadership!perspective!on!the!current!internal!and!external!environments.!The!

SWOT! is! administered! by! the! consultant! to! ensure! anonymity;! candor! by! participants! is! encouraged! to!

uncover!and!understand!strategic!issues.!The!data!generated!is!used!at!the!strategic!planning!sessions.!

!

Phase 1D: Strategic Guide Workshops  

!

Strategic!Guide!Session!#1-!Review!Stakeholder!Feedback,!Environmental!Scan,!and!Organizational!Profile!

This!session!is!dedicated!to!reviewing!the!results!of!the!stakeholder!feedback,!the!environmental!scan,!and!the!

organizational! profile.! The! consultants! will! present! focus! group! results,! the! organizational! profile! and!

environmental!scan.!The!session!concludes!with!a!facilitated!discussion!amongst!City!Leadership!Team!regarding!

issues!raised.!(This!session!is!typically!60!to!90!minutes!in!length.)!

!

Strategic! Guide! Session! #2! Executive! Team! Retreat! �! Facilitate! Strategic! Discussion,! Mission,! and! Vision!

Review,!and!Strategic!Goal!Development!

This!session!focuses!on!reviewing!or!confirming!organizational!purpose,!examining!the!operating!environment,!

and! establishing! strategic! goals.! The! impact! of! organizational! culture! will! be! discussed! via! a! facilitated!

conversation.!The!current!mission,!vision,!and!values!will!be!reviewed!and!updated!as!appropriate.!A!facilitated!

process!is!held!to!generate!a!list!of!organizational!challenges!and!a!resulting!set!of!strategic!goals.!The!group�s!

effort!will!be!informed!by!the!results!of!the!information!generated!by!the!scan,!profile,!and!results!of!the!SWOT!

questionnaire.!(This!session!is!typically!3-4!hours)!

!

Strategic!Guide!Session!#3!�Establish!Outcomes,!Key!Indicators,!Targets!!

This!session! is!dedicated!to!defining!a!set!of!outcomes,!key!performance! indicators,!and!targets! to!measure!

progress! towards!the!strategic!goals!established! in!Session!#2.!Measures!are!established!with!the!priority!of!

establishing!clear!alignment!between!all!measures,!resulting!in!buy-in!through!all!levels!of!the!organization.!!This!

session! should! include! a! comprehensive! cross-section! of! departmental! leadership! as! their! subject! matter!

expertise!may!be!necessary! to! precisely! identify! key!performance! indicators! and!performance! targets.! (This!

session!is!typically!3-4!hours.)!!!

!

Measure!Gallery!

Generally,!an!organization�s!staff!from!various!job!functions!and!management!or!non-management!levels!within!

the!organization!will!implement!a!strategic!guide!and!track!progress!on!performance!indicators.!!Performance!

measures!should!be!reviewed!by!these!internal!stakeholders,!as!well!as!any!desired!external!stakeholders,!to!

evaluate!the!identified!performance!indicators!and!suggest!any!modifications!that!may!better!track!progress.!!A!

Measure!Gallery!provides!the!opportunity!to!provide!this!feedback!and!build!buy-in!about!the!process!and!the!

validity!of!the!mesaures.!!During!this!open!house,!information!about!strategic!guide!goals,!outcomes,!and!key!

performance! indicators! will! be! displayed! around! a! large! conference! room! or! other! space.! Post-its! will! be!

available!to!provide!input!on!key!performance!indicators!and!performance!targets,!including!recommendations!

for!refining!measurements!and!suggestions!for!implementation.!!For!this!project,!a!Measure!Gallery!for!staff!is!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

6!

!

recommended!to!be!held!in!at!least!two!locations!(City!Hall!and!Public!Works!or!other!location)!and!during!two!

time!blocks!convenient!for!staff!working!any!shift.!!Recommended!time!blocks!include!7:00-9:00!am!and!2:00-

4:30!pm!to!best!accommodate!employees!from!throughout!the!organization.!!A!Measure!Gallery!can!also!be!held!

as!an!open!house!for!external!stakeholders!to!provide!feedback!before!finalizing!performance!measures.!

!

Strategic!Guide!Session!#4!�Finalize!Outcomes,!Key!Indicators,!Targets!!

This!session!is!dedicated!to!finalizing!outcomes,!key!performance!indicators,!and!targets!to!measure!progress!

towards!the!strategic!goals!by!incorporating!the!feedback!from!the!Measure!Gallery.!Measures!are!confirmed!

by!the!City!Leadership!Team!and!final!Indicator!and!Target!data!sources!are!determined.!(This!session!is!typically!

2-2.5!hours.)!

!

.!!!
!

! !



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

7!

!

Phase!2:!Implementation!Strategy!and!Plan!!

!

Achieving!strategic!goals!can!be!a!daunting!challenge!unless!deadlines!and!accountability!measures!are!put!into!

place.!As!a! result,!CP2!Consulting! in!collaboration!with! the!City!will! focus!on!building!buy-in! throughout! the!

organization.!CP2!Consulting!will!also!work!to!develop!an! implementation!strategy!that!clearly!demonstrates!

how!employees! throughout! the!organization!play!a! role! in!breathing! life! into! the! strategic!goals!and!overall!

strategic!plan!that!is!intended!to!guide!the!community!forward!over!the!next!3-5!years.!!

CP2!Consulting!will!work!with!the!City!to!assemble!an!Implementation!Team,!representing!staff!from!multiple!

levels! and! job! functions! throughout! the!organization.! The! Implementation!Plan! development! process! aligns!

efforts!to!ensure!that!every!department!works!together!in!a!complementary!fashion!as!they!achieve!measurable!

progress!towards!common!goals.!We!will!discuss!resources!for!tracking!progress!using!systems!ranging!from!

spreadsheets!to!software,!depending!on!your!organizational!preference.!!

Strategic!Plan!Implementation!Session!#1�Develop!Strategic!Initiatives/Project!Plans!!!

This!session!is!conducted!with!the!Implementation!Team!and!focuses!on!cascading!the!strategic!plan!throughout!

the!organization!through!the!development!of!initiatives!and!project!plans.!!Project!plans!will!be!developed!to!

include!milestones!to!measure!progress!on!initiatives,!providing!accountability.!Options!to!manage!the!Strategic!

Plan!progress,! including! internal! tracking!or!using!external! software,!will!be!determined!with!the! leadership!

team.!!A!Strategic!Guide!Final!Report!that!includes!an!Executive!Summary!will!be!submitted!once!initiatives!are!

established.!(This!session!is!generally!3!hours)!

!

Strategic!Plan!Implementation!Session!#2!-!Project!Plan!refinement!and!Budget!integration!!

This!session!is!conducted!with!the!Implementation!Team!and!focuses!on!further!cascading!of!the!strategic!plan!

throughout!the!organization!to!achieve!integration!of!effort!across!service!areas.!It!includes!development!of!the!

workplan,! including!deadlines!and!task!responsibilities.! !Fiscal! impacts!will!be! further!assessed,!and!resource!

allocation!needs!aligned!across!the!planning!lifecycle.!!(This!session!is!generally!3!hours)!

!

Strategic!Plan!Implementation!Session!#3!-!Project!Plan!final!alignment!and!Communications!Plan!!

This!session!is!conducted!with!the!Implementation!Team!and!focuses!on!finalizing!the!timing!of!the!action!steps!

in!the!workplan,!fully!aligning!deadlines!and!task!responsibilities!across!the!Strategic!Guide.!!Best!practices!for!a!

Communication!Plan!to!roll!out!both!the!Strategic!Guide!and!the!Implementation!Plan!to!the!full!organization!

will!be!discussed.!!(This!session!is!generally!3!hours)!

!

!!

Quarterly!Check-ins!

Three!sessions!are!conducted!remotely!with!the!Implementation!Team!to!discuss!progress!on! strategic!goals!

and!building!of!organizational!culture.!The!sessions!are!generally!30-60!minutes,!conducted!remotely!via!Zoom!

with!the!Implementation!Team!and!focus!on!sharing!successes!and!finding!solutions!for!obstacles.!Progress!on!

both!Strategic!Plan!Implementation!and!the!development!of!a!Learning!Culture!will!be!discussed.!

!

!

! !



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

8!

!

Statement!of!Qualifications!

Firm Overview

!

CP2!Consulting!is!a!woman-owned!strategic!planning!and!organizational!development!company!that!works!with!

local!governments!to!create!and!implement!strategic!plans!that!achieve!measurable!outcomes.!Our!company!

provides!data-based!solutions!that!enable!organizations!to!actively!engage!stakeholders,!define!future!outcomes!

with!significant!impact!and!implement!result-oriented!strategies!to!meet!those!goals.!We!incorporate!leading!

performance!management!practices!to!help!our!clients!measure!and!analyze!performance!data!and!implement!

strategies!to!achieve!results!with!considerable!impact.!

CP2! Consulting! was! founded! in! 2021! by! Cory! Poris! Plasch,! an! experienced! local! government! and! 501(c)3!

nonprofit! leader! passionate! about! helping! the! public! sector! and! nonprofits! achieve! significant! impact! and!

results.! ! Since! 2015! she! has! worked! with!municipalities! in! numerous! states,! assisting! them! in! stakeholder!

engagement,!developing!measurable!and! impactful!strategic!plans,!and!designing! implementation!plans!that!

inspire!the!entire!organization.!!CP2!Consulting!works!primarily!with!clients!in!Wisconsin,!Illinois,!Tennessee,!and!

Iowa.!!Current!Wisconsin!clients!include!Burlington,!Mukwonago,!Shorewood!Hills,!and!Franklin!

!

Project Members

!

Cory!Poris!Plasch,!MPA,!President/CEO!of!CP2!Consulting.!Cory!has!served!in!variety!of!leadership!positions!in!

the! public! and! private! sector! including! Executive! Director! of! the! Wisconsin! City/County! Management!

Association,! Membership! Director! for! the! Alliance! for! Innovation,! and! most! recently! as! Vice! President! of!

Strategic!Development!at!POLCO.! !Her! local!government!experience! ranges! from!911!Dispatcher! to! the!City!

Manager�s!Office! in!several!communities.!She!speaks!across!the!country!on!topics! including!the!use!of!data,!

implementation!of!strategic!plans,!engaging!hard-to-reach!populations,!and!innovation!in!local!government.!She!

has!a!master�s!degree!in!public!administration!from!Northern!Illinois!University!and!a!certification!in!strategic!

planning! from! George!Washington! University.! ! She! has! been! assisting! local! governments! with! stakeholder!

engagement,!developing!performance!measures,!and!establishing!a!learning!culture!since!2015.!

Cory!will!be!the! lead!for! this!project,!overseeing!all!phases!of! the!project.! !She!will!be!the! lead! facilitator! for!

Strategic!Guide!Workshop!Sessions!#2-4,!and!will!co-lead!Session!#1!and!Phase!2.!

Cory!can!be!reached!at:!

Office:!!262-362-8841!

Cell:!!630-476-0763!

Email:!!cory@cp2-consulting.com!

!

Wilyna!(Winnie)!Frankel,!LCSW,!Senior!Manager,!Training!and!Stakeholder!Engagement.!!With!over!20!years!

of!professional!experience!in!leadership!and!communication,!Winnie!is!an!adept!facilitator.!!She!has!extensive!

experience! working! as! a! liaison! between! residents,! elected! officials,! and! city! staff.! ! She! specializes! in! the!

collaborative!process!necessary!to!engage!stakeholders! in!meaningful!and!productive!discussions.!!She!has!a!

bachelor�s!degree!in!organizational!communication!and!political!science,!and!a!master�s!degree!in!social!work.!!

Over! the! last! ten! years,!Winnie! has!worked! in! a! variety!of! settings! including! as! a! school! social!worker! and!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

9!

!

coordinating! public! relations! for! a! State! Representative! and! has! served! on! the! Strategic! Planning! Advisory!

Committee!for!the!City!of!Geneva,!IL!since!2018,!most!recently!as!Committee!Chair.!!!

Winnie!will!be!the!lead!for!Phase!1B,!the!majority!of!Phase!1C!and!the!Measure!Gallery.!!She!will!co-lead!Session!

#1!and!Phase!2.!

Winnie!can!be!reached!at:!

Work!Cell:!630-360-1706!

Email:!winnie@cp2-consulting.com!

!

References

!

CP2! Consulting! has! worked! with! numerous! clients! on! strategic! plans,! and! strategic! plan! implementation.!!

References!include:!

Matt!Harline,!Village!Manager,!Villa!Park,!IL!

E-mail:!mharline@invillapark.com!!Phone:!!630-592-6052!(O)!

!

Villa! Park,! IL! had! struggled!with! lack! of! specific! performance! indicators! and! clear! outcomes! in! past!

strategic!plans,!impacting!their!ability!to!implement!their!plan!successfully.!!The!plan!is!already!producing!

tangible! results,! informing!decisions!about! the!upcoming!budget!and! helping! the!Village!understand!

what!data!they!need!to!better!understand!in!order!to!meet!strategic!plan!goals.!!(case!study!and!adopted!

strategic!plan!attached)!

!

Anna!Christopherson,!Assistant!City!Manager,!Whitefish!Bay,!WI!

E-mail:!A.Christopherson@wfbvillage.gov!!Phone:!!414-962-6690!(O)!

!

Whitefish!Bay,!WI!was!new!to!the!strategic!planning!process,!but!with!a!highly!educated!community!that!

desired!better!understanding!of!their!local!government,!they!enlisted!CP2!Consulting!to!draft!their!first!

plan.!!Despite!their!Village!Manager!leaving!during!the!stakeholder!engagement!portion!of!the!process,!

the! strategic! plan! continued,! providing! a! road!map! of! priorities! for! the! community! into! the! future.!

(adopted!strategic!plan!attached)!!

!

Phil!Kiraly,!Village!Manager,!Glencoe,!IL!

E-mail:!!pkiraly@villageofglencoe.org!!Phone:!!847-461-1101!(O)!

!

Glencoe,!IL!is!a!high-performing!local!government!that!adopted!an!ambitious!strategic!plan!in!FY!2019.!!

With!their!team!over-extended,! they!desired!a! right-sized!strategic!plan!with!a!clear! implementation!

strategy!to!ensure!successful!accomplishment!of!the!Village�s! long-term!goals.! !(case!study!and!draft!

strategic!plan!attached.!!Strategic!plan!has!been!reviewed!by!the!Board!and!is!anticipated!to!be!adopted!

at!the!November!21st!meeting)!

!

!

!

!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

10!

!

Schedule

The!strategic!planning!meeting!activities!and!workshops!will!be!held!on!dates!that!are!mutually!convenient!for!

both! the!City�s! participants! and! CP2!Consulting.! The! completion! date!will! be! dependent! on! the! timing! and!

sequence!of!the!various!planning!components!and!leadership!workshops.!The!following!is!a!sample!timeline!for!

the!recommended!multi-phased!approach:!!

!

Sample Project Plan

!

STEP  POTENTIAL 
DATES* 

ACTIVITIES  Anticipated 
Hours^ 

Project!Initiation! December!1st!!!!
Project!planning,!meeting(s)!with!key!!

project!staff!

6!

Development!of!

Environmental!Scan,!

Organizational!Profile!

December!1st!�!

January!3rd!!!

Review!and!analysis!of!data;!draft!

Environmental!Scan,!Organizational!Profile!

!

40!

Stakeholder!Engagement! December!15th!!
Focus!Group!session!preparation,!execution!

and!follow!up!

18!

Data!review,!preparation! January!3rd!�!10th!!!!!!!
Synthesis!of!data;!focus!group!report;!

presentation!preparation!

24!

Strategic!Planning!Session!#1! January!14th!!!!

Review!Focus!Group!Feedback,!

Environmental!Scan,!Organizational!Profile,!

Meeting!preparation!and!follow!up!

8!

SWOT!Survey!and!Interviews! January!15th-24th!!!!
SWOT!survey,!interviews!with!City!

Leadership!Team!

10!

Strategic!Guide!Session!#2-!

Executive!Team!Retreat!
January!25th!!!!

Meeting!preparation,!Strategic!Guide!

session!including!review!and!updating!of!

mission,!vision,!and!values!as!appropriate,!

determine!Goals!

!

!

12!

Strategic!Guide!Session!#3! February!5th!!!!

Meeting!preparation,!Strategic!Guide!

session!including!Establish!Outcomes,!Key!

Indicators,!Targets!!

!

12!

Measure!Gallery! February!20th!!
Open!house!preparation,!facilitation!with!

City!Leadership!Team!staff,!and!follow!up!

14!

Strategic!Guide!Session!#4! February!28th!!

Meeting!preparation,!session!to!finalize!

Outcomes,!Key!Indicators!and!Targets!

!

!

12!

Strategy!

Implementation!Session!#1!
March!12th!!!

Meeting!preparation,!Management!&!staff!

session,!Initiatives,!action!plans,!

performance!management!

!

12!

Summary!Report!including!

Executive!Summary!
March!31st!!

Professionally!designed!report!submitted!for!

client!review!

20!

Strategy!Implementation!

Session!#2!!
April!9th!!!

Meeting!preparation,!Project!Plan!

refinement,!Budget!integration!

12!

Strategy!Implementation!

Session!#3!
April!30th!!!

Meeting!preparation,!Project!Plan!final!

alignment,!Communications!Plan!

12!



!!!

Strategic!Guide!Proposal!for!Appleton,!WI!

!

11!

!

STEP  POTENTIAL 
DATES* 

ACTIVITIES  Anticipated 
Hours^ 

Quarterly!Check-Ins!
July,!October,!

January!

Meeting!preparation,!Consultant-client!

review,!strategy!session,!follow!up.!

9!

^Hours!include!all!planning,!preparation,!execution,!and!follow-up!from!activities.!!!

*Dates!to!be!confirmed!after!initial!project!meeting!between!the!City!project!staff!and!CP2!Consulting!

!

Budget!

Breakdown of Costs

Rates:  Cory $225/hour Winnie $175/hr  Blended rate:  $200/hr 

The fee for this project (not including stakeholder engagement) is:      $44,200 
(221 hours at a blended rate of $200 per hour) 

Travel  (to include all mileage, lodging, etc. not to exceed)     $5,000 
Total not to exceed:          $49,200 
Payments shall occur according to the following schedule: 

1. Twenty-five percent (25%), upon execution of the agreement. 
2. Twenty-five percent (25%) 60 days after the execution of the agreement 
3. Twenty-five percent (25%) 90 days after the execution of the agreement 
4. Twenty-five percent (25%) upon submittal of final report 
5. Payments shall be made upon receipt of invoice 



 

1 

2025 INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.0301 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF APPLETON AND OUTAGAMIE COUNTY  

TO PROVIDE FOR COST SHARING OF TRANSIT SERVICES FOR ELDERLY AND DISABLED INDIVIDUALS 
 

I. THE PARTIES 

City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, 
Wisconsin   54911-4799 (“Appleton”). 
 
Outagamie County, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 320 South Walnut Street, Appleton, 
Wisconsin   54911 (“County”). 
 
Together, the municipalities may be jointly referred to as “the Parties”.   

 

II. THE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Americans with Disabilities Act ( “ADA” ), has resulted in an increase in trips provided by the 
City’s wholly owned transit service, Valley Transit, for individuals covered by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the City, in furtherance of the goals fostered by the ADA, wish to coordinate 
service to offset the increase in costs; and 

WHEREAS, the County provides transportation services for clients of the Outagamie County Department of 
Human Services requiring transport to sites of client service; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined to be beneficial to Valley Transit and County to have the City, via Valley 
Transit assume the responsibility for the payment of all urban and rural specialized transportation service 
routes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 66.0301, Wisconsin Statutes, provides a means by which municipalities may agree to share 
the cost of mutually beneficial services; and 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of Valley Transit and assumes responsibility for and direction of its operations; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County assumes responsibility and direction of its operation; 

 

III. THE AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and County, by their respective authorized representatives, do hereby agree as 
follows: 

 1.  Cost Sharing Arrangements.  

A. ADA Service 

County agrees to pay the local share of ADA paratransit contract costs for trips originating in the 
County portion of Valley Transit's ADA service area (all of the parts of the city of Appleton that lie 
within Outagamie County, the City of Kaukauna, Villages of Kimberly, Little Chute and Combined 
Locks, and the area which is within 3/4 of a mile from all Valley Transit fixed routes within the Towns 
of Grand Chute, Kaukauna, Vandenbroek, and Buchanan). The parties agree that approximately 38% 
of such trips occur in the Outagamie County portion of Valley Transit's service area. The parties 
further agree that, throughout this Agreement, wherever reference is made to Valley Transit having 



 

2 

obligations or responsibilities, the City, as the contracting party and the owner of Valley Transit 
assures the compliance of Valley Transit with all of these duties and responsibilities. 

   The formula for computing Outagamie County's actual ADA funding contribution will be as follows: 

Outagamie County Rides x Contract Cost 
+ Outagamie County Share of Administrative Costs 
- Federal Share 
- State Share 
- Farebox Revenues                         
= Outagamie County’s Estimated ADA Funding Requirement 

 
   In 2025, Valley Transit estimates 100,000 ADA rides of which it is estimated that 38% will originate in 

Outagamie County. The base contract cost per ride is estimated to average $25.50 with a separate 
charge for administrative expenses.  The Federal and State shares are estimated to be 28% and 28% 
respectively; therefore the County’s estimated funding requirement will be: 

$969,000 Costs (38,000 rides at $25.50 per ride) 
   $167,412  38% of admin charges  
 ($329,559)  Federal Share 

   ($329,559)  State Share 
 ($152,000)  Fares (38,000 rides at $4.00 per ride) 

$325,294  Estimated funding 
 

The County’s actual costs will be based on actual ridership, contract costs (including fuel 
surcharge), federal share, state share, and fares in 2025. The full percentage of federal and 
state shares received by Valley Transit for transit funding assistance shall be applied to this 
service. All fares received as payment for the Outagamie County service shall also be applied in 
this formula. For 2025 the parties agree that the County’s liability for ADA urban paratransit 
services will be capped at $350,000 and all paratransit services will be capped at the full cost of 
its ancillary services. 

  B. Elderly and Sunday Service 

As part of the service contract for ADA rides, Valley Transit will also provide rides to the elderly 
(non-ADA eligible) and Sunday service to ADA eligible passengers. Outagamie County requires 
certification of elderly riders for eligibility of this service. The service will be provided in the 
same service area described earlier. The formula for computing Outagamie County’s actual 
contribution for this ancillary service will be based on the following: 

Outagamie County Rides x Contract Cost  
- Federal Share 
- State Share 
- Farebox Revenue 

+   Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share) 
= Outagamie County's Estimated Ancillary Funding Requirement 

 
The contract costs for elderly rides will be $25.50; Sunday service will be $25.50. In 2025, Valley 
Transit estimates 2,850 Outagamie County elderly trips and 500 Outagamie County Sunday 
trips with estimated costs as follows: 
 
 



 

3 

 
 $72,675  Elderly Costs (2,850 x $25.50) 
      ($21,076)  Federal Share 
     ($21,076)  State Share 
    ($11,400)  Fares (2,850 x $4.00/ride) 
 $14,051  Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share) 
      $33,174 Estimated funding 

 
$11,475  Sunday Costs (450 x $25.50) 

     ($3,328)  Federal Share 
    ($3,328)  State Share 
   ($4,950)  Fares (450 x $11.00/ride) 

 $2,219  Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share) 
$2,088  Estimated funding   

 

Actual County costs will be based on actual ridership, contract costs per ride (including fuel 
surcharge), federal share, state share and fares in 2025. The full percentage of federal and state 
shares received by Valley Transit for transit funding assistance shall be applied in this formula. 
All fares received as payment for the Outagamie County service shall also be applied in this 
formula. 

  C. Other Ancillary Transportation Service 

   1) As part of this agreement, Valley Transit will be the funding mechanism for Outagamie 
County rural demand response paratransit service. These services will be managed 
separately from Valley Transit’s ADA paratransit contract service (which combines with 
elderly, Sunday, and evening service).   

The formula for computing Outagamie County's rural demand response paratransit 
service funding contribution will be as follows: 

+  Cost of Service 
-  Federal Share 
-  State Share  

    + Local Administrative Charge 
= Outagamie County's Estimated Rural Service Requirement 

  
In 2025, Valley Transit estimates 12,000 Outagamie County rural demand response 
paratransit trips with estimated costs as follows: 
      
$ 462,600  Costs (12,000 rides x $38.55) 

($102,765)  Federal Share 
($102,765)  State Share 
 ($72,000)  Fares (12,000 x $6.00/ride) 
 $  46,260  Administrative charge 
 $231,330  Estimated funding 

     
 2 Method of Payment. The County will pay Valley Transit the gross cost of ADA mandated paratransit, 

ADA optional paratransit, and elderly (non-ADA eligible) service as outlined in this contract on a 
quarterly basis. Valley Transit will invoice for this service in advance of the quarter. Federal and State 



 

4 

operating assistance will be reimbursed to the County on a quarterly basis based on the amount paid 
in, actual costs, actual fares, and intergovernmental revenues. Final reconciliation of actual costs will 
occur at year end. 

The County will pay Valley Transit monthly for the Other Ancillary Services based on the billings 
received from the provider. Valley Transit will invoice for this service also.  Payments are due 30 days 
from the invoice date.  Interest will accrue at a rate of 18% per year (1.5% month) thereafter unless the 
billing is disputed by the County. 

 3. Service Criteria. 

Elderly Service. Service to the elderly will be provided between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
Monday through Friday. These hours may be changed at the discretion of the 
County. 

  Rural Service. Rural demand response service will be provided between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 
4:00 p.m. Tuesday and Thursday and between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday, 
Wednesday and Friday (with the additional hour for medical rides only). These hours 
may be changed at the discretion of the County. 

ADA Service.  Service to people with disabilities will be provided Monday through Saturday in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.   

Sunday Service. Service to people with disabilities will be provided on Sundays, 7:30 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

General.   There will be no service on six of the holidays where Valley Transit does not operate 
(Christmas, New Years, Labor Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, and Thanksgiving). All 
ADA paratransit and elderly service and will be in compliance with ADA regulation, 
49 CFR Section 37.131. 

 4. Eligibility.  

Elderly Service. Service will be provided to the elderly (those persons age 60 and over who are not 
eligible for ADA services), although the County will encourage the use of Valley 
Transit's fixed route service when possible.  

  Rural Service. Service will be provided to the elderly (those persons age 60 and over) or disabled 
individuals over age 5 traveling outside Valley Transit’s ADA service area. 

Sunday ADA.  Sunday service will be available to ADA eligible people.  

ADA Service.  ADA eligibility is consistent with the ADA regulations, 49 CFR Section 37.125. The 
service will allow advance reservation up to 14 days in advance of a trip and ensure 
that ADA subscription trips not absorb more than 50 percent of the ADA trips at a 
given time unless modified by both parties to this contract.  

 5. Length of Agreement. This agreement shall be in effect commencing on January 1, 2025 through 
December 31, 2025. 

 6.  Statistical Reports. Valley Transit agrees to provide the County information sufficient to complete the 
Outagamie County semi-annual reports for submission to the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation as a requirement of the Section 85.21 transportation assistance program. The 
information submitted must pertain to the service identified in this agreement and must be provided 
in a timely manner. Valley Transit will also provide to the County all other reasonable ridership or 
financial information which the County requests.  



 

5 

 7. Safety. Valley Transit will monitor the safety and operational requirements of its contracted ADA, 
elderly, and Sunday and rural services.  In the event that the parties agree to contract with a third party 
for random safety and operational checks, the contract costs for such checks will be paid for by the 
County.  

 8. Audit. Valley Transit will include audit costs for its contracted ADA service in its budget without 
impact on the County's cost. However, any audits required for ancillary services will be added to the 
total cost of those services, and the County's cost impact will be as described in Section 1 above. Valley 
Transit shall establish and maintain accounts for the specialized transportation services receiving 
funding under this agreement. The accounts shall distinguish the costs of this transportation service 
from any other service. 

 9.  Records. Valley Transit shall maintain such records as necessary for a period of three years from the 
close of the Federal fiscal year to which they pertain, which said record keeping will enable Valley 
Transit to meet any responsibilities it may have to the state and federal government. 

 10. Inspection. Valley Transit will allow inspection of records and programs, insofar as it is permitted by 
state and federal law, by representatives of the County, the Area Agency on Aging, the Department of 
Health and Social services and its authorized agents, and federal agencies, in order to confirm Valley 
Transit’s compliance with the specifications of this agreement. 

 11. Disclosure. The use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible clients who 
receive services for any purpose not connected with the administration of the service under this 
Contract is prohibited except with the informed, written consent of the eligible client or the client’s 
legal guardian. 

 12. Indemnification. Each party to this agreement agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend the 
other party from and against all liability, loss, damage, costs or expenses which a signing party may 
sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of the other party's acts, errors or omissions. 

 13. Fares. Between January 1 and December 31, 2025, fares for elderly and ADA eligible riders will be 
$4.00 in compliance with “origin to destination service” as defined in 49 CFR 37.3.  Fares for Sunday 
service will be $11.00 in 2025. Fares for the rural transportation will be established by the County. 

 14. Insurance. Valley Transit agrees that, in order to protect itself and the County, its Officers, Boards, 
Employees and Representatives under the indemnity provisions of the paragraph above, it will at all 
times during the term of this Contract keep in force as required at a minimum: 

   Coverage       Limit 
 1. Worker’s Compensation Statutory  $1,000,000 General Aggregate 
 2. Comprehensive General Liability  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 3. Auto Liability      $1,000,000 CSL 

 
Policies shall be issued by a company or companies authorized to do business in the State of 
Wisconsin and licensed by the Wisconsin Insurance Department. The County shall be given thirty (30) 
days advance notice of cancellation or non-renewal during the term of this Contract. 

In the event any action, suit, or other proceeding is brought against the County upon any matter 
herein indemnified against, the County shall, within five (5) working days, give notice thereof to Valley 
Transit and shall cooperate with their attorneys in the defense of the action, suit or other proceeding. 

15. Discrimination. In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, Valley Transit 
agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, 
religion, color, handicap, sex, physical condition, sexual orientation, developmental disability as 



 

6 

defined in s51.01(5), Wisconsin Statutes, national origin, marital status, ancestry, arrest record, 
conviction record, or membership in the National Guard, State Defense Force or any reserve 
component of the military forces of the United States or this state. This provision shall include, but not 
be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and section for 
training, including apprenticeship. Valley Transit further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure 
equal employment opportunities. 

 16. Conditions. This Contract is contingent upon authorization of Wisconsin and United States law and 
any material amendment or repeal of the same affecting relevant funding, or authority of the County 
or the City shall serve to terminate this Contract, except as further agreed to by the parties hereto. It is 
also contingent upon continued funding by Valley Transit and the County in its budgetary process in 
the option years of this Agreement and upon the City continuing the operation of Valley Transit. 

 17. Modification/Termination. Failure to comply with any part of this agreement may be considered 
cause for revision, suspension, or termination. 

Revision or modification of this agreement must be agreed to by all parties involved by an addendum 
signed by the authorized representative of both parties. 

This agreement can be reopened if State and Federal funding regulations restrict the type of service 
that can be funded in any ADA or ancillary service component of the Valley Transit budget. This does 
not apply to the federal funding rate.  

18.   Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, either by original signature 
or verified electronic signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts shall 
together constitute but one and the same agreement.  The headings in this Agreement are inserted 
for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part hereof. 

 
 
 

SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE NEXT PAGE 



 

7 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the forgoing instrument to be executed the date of last 
signature below. 
 

CITY OF APPLETON 
 
 

BY: ______________________________   By:  ________________________________________ 
      JACOB A. WOODFORD, MAYOR              KAMI LYNCH, CITY CLERK 
DATE: ____________________________    DATE: _______________________________________ 
 
 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY THE LIABILITY,  
WHICH WILL ACCRUE UNDER THE CONTRACT.    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________  _____________________________________________ 
JERI A. OHMAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR     CHRISTOPHER R. BEHRENS, CITY ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 

   OUTAGAMIE COUNTY 
 
 
            By: _____________________________________________ 

                  THOMAS NELSON, COUNTY EXECUTIVE 
 
 

 By: _____________________________________________ 
       JOHN RATHMAN, DIRECTOR,  
       DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
DAWN T. SHAHA, CORPORATION COUNSEL 
 
 
 
CL: A22-0939.AKA.DG 



 
 1 

 2025 INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.0301 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF APPLETON AND WINNEBAGO COUNTY  

TO PROVIDE FOR COST SHARING OF TRANSIT SERVICE FOR ELDERLY AND DISABLED INDIVIDUALS 
 

I. THE PARTIES 
 
City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 100 North Appleton Street, Appleton, 
Wisconsin   54911-4799 (“City”). 
 
Winnebago County, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 112 Otter Avenue, P.O. Box 2806, 
Oshkosh, Wisconsin   54903-2806 (“County”). 
 
Together, the municipalities may be jointly referred to as “the Parties”.   
 

II. THE RECITALS  
 
WHEREAS, the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), has resulted in an increase in trips provided by the 
City’s  wholly owned transit service, Valley Transit, for individuals covered by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the City, in furtherance of the goals fostered by the ADA, wish to coordinate 
service to offset the increase in costs; and 

WHEREAS, the County provides transportation services for clients of the Winnebago County Department 
of Community Programs requiring transport to sites of client service; and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined to be beneficial to Valley Transit and County, to have the City, via 
Valley Transit assume the responsibility for the payment of certain urban and rural specialized 
transportation service routes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 66.0301, Wisconsin Statutes, provides a means by which municipalities may agree to 
share the cost of mutually beneficial services; and 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of Valley Transit and assumes responsibility for and direction of its 
operations; and 

WHEREAS, the County assumes responsibility and direction of its operation; and 

 

III. THE AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and County, by their respective authorized representatives, do hereby agree as 
follows: 

 1. Cost Sharing Arrangements.  

A. ADA Service 

County agrees to pay the local share of ADA paratransit contract costs for trips originating in the 
County portion of Valley Transit's ADA service area (all of the parts of the city of Appleton that lie 
within Winnebago County, the Cities of Neenah and Menasha, the Village of Fox Crossing, and 
the area which is within 3/4 of a mile from all Valley Transit fixed routes within the Town of 
Neenah). The parties agree that approximately 14% of such trips occur in the Winnebago 
County portion of Valley Transit’s service area. The parties further agree that, throughout this 
Agreement, wherever reference is made to Valley Transit having obligations or responsibilities, 
the City, as the contracting party and the owner of Valley Transit assures the compliance of 
Valley Transit with all of these duties and responsibilities. 



 
 2 

The formula for computing Winnebago County’s actual ADA funding contribution will be as 
follows: 

Winnebago County Rides x Contract Cost 
+ Administrative Charges (14%) 
- Federal Share 
- State Share 
-    Farebox Revenues                         
= Winnebago County’s Estimated ADA Funding Requirement 

 
in 2025, Valley Transit estimates 100,000 ADA rides of which it is estimated that 14% will 
originate in Winnebago County. The base contract cost per ride is estimated to average $25.50 
with a separate cost for administrative expenses. The Federal and State shares are estimated to 
be 28% and 28% respectively; therefore, the County’s estimated funding requirement will be: 

 $357,000 Costs (14,000 rides at $25.50 per ride) 
$61,678 14% of admin charges 

  ($121,417)  Federal Share 
  ($121,417)  State Share 

 ($56,000)  Fares (14,000 rides at $4.00 per ride) 
 $119,844  Estimated funding 

  
   The County’s actual costs will be based on actual ridership, contract costs per ride (including 

fuel), federal share, state share, and fares in 2025. The full percentage of federal and state shares 
received by Valley Transit for transit funding assistance shall be applied to this service.  All fares 
received as payment for the County service shall also be applied in this formula. For 2025 the 
parties agree that the County’s liability for all paratransit service will be capped at the full costs 
of its ancillary programs. 

  B. Sunday Service 

As part of the service contract for ADA rides, Valley Transit will also provide rides on Sunday to 
ADA eligible passengers. The service will be provided in the same service area described earlier. 
The formula for computing Winnebago County’s actual contribution for this ancillary service will 
be based on the following: 

Winnebago County Rides x Contract Cost 
- Federal Share 
- State Share 
- Farebox Revenue 

+    Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share)  
= Winnebago County's Estimated Ancillary Funding Requirement 

 
The basic contract cost for Sunday service (including fuel) is estimated to be $25.50 per ride. In 
2025, Valley Transit estimates 35 Winnebago County Sunday trips with estimated costs as 
follows: 
 

$893  Sunday Costs (35 x $25.50) 
      ($259)  Federal Share 
      ($259)  State Share 

    ($385)  Fares (35 x $11.00/ride) 
 $   173  Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share) 
 $   163  Estimated funding 

 



 

 
 3 

   Actual County costs will be based on actual ridership, contract costs per ride (including fuel 
surcharge), federal share, state share and fares in 2025. The full percentage of federal and state 
shares received by Valley Transit for transit funding assistance shall be applied in this formula. 
All fares received as payment for the Winnebago County service shall also be applied in this 
formula. 

 
C. County Specialized Transportation Service 

Finally, as part of this agreement, Valley Transit will be the funding mechanism for Winnebago 
County’s Heritage program.  These services will be managed by Valley Transit separately from 
Valley Transit’s ADA paratransit (which combines with Sunday service) contract service.  

The formula for computing Winnebago County’s funding contribution will be as follows: 

       Cost of Service 
    -  Federal Share  
    -  State Share  
    + Administrative charge 
    = Winnebago County's Estimated Specialized Transportation Funding Requirement 

Estimated funding for 2025’s Heritage program is:   

$   9,285  Costs (500 x $18.57) 
      ($2,063)  Federal Share 
      ($2,063)  State Share 

    ($1,750)  Fares (500 x $3.50/ride) 
 $      929  Administrative charge 
 $   4,338  Estimated funding 

 

 2. Method of Payment. The County will pay Valley Transit the gross cost of ADA mandated paratransit 
and ADA optional paratransit service on a quarterly basis. Valley Transit will invoice for this service. 
Federal and State operating assistance will be reimbursed to the County on a quarterly basis. 

The County will pay Valley Transit monthly the Heritage program based on the billings received from 
the provider. Valley Transit will invoice for this service also.  Payments are due 30 days from the 
invoice date.  Interest will accrue at a rate of 18% per year (1.5% per month) thereafter. 

 3. Service Criteria. 

ADA Service.  Service to people with disabilities will be provided Monday through Saturday in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.    

Sunday Service. Service to people with disabilities will be provided on Sundays, 7:30 a.m. to 2:00 
p.m. 

General.   There will be no service on six of the holidays where Valley Transit does not operate 
(Christmas, New Years, Labor Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, and Thanksgiving). All 
ADA paratransit and elderly service will be in compliance with ADA regulation, 49 
CFR Section 37.131. 

 4. Eligibility.  

Sunday ADA.  Sunday service will be available to all ADA eligible people.  

ADA Service.  ADA eligibility is consistent with the ADA regulations, 49 CFR Section 37.125. The 
service will allow advance reservation up to 14 days in advance of a trip and ensure 



 

 
 4 

that ADA subscription trips not absorb more than 50 percent of the ADA trips at a 
given time unless modified by both parties to this contract.  

 5. Length of Agreement. This agreement shall be in effect commencing on January 1, 2025, through 
December 31, 2025. 

 6.  Statistical Reports. Valley Transit agrees to provide the County information sufficient to complete 
the Winnebago County semi-annual reports for submission to the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation as a requirement of the Section 85.21 transportation assistance program. The 
information submitted must pertain to the service identified in this agreement and must be 
provided in a timely manner. Valley Transit will also provide to the County all other reasonable 
ridership or financial information which the County requests.  

  7. Safety.  Valley Transit will monitor the safety and operational requirements of its contracted ADA, 
elderly, Sunday and Heritage service.  In the event that the parties agree to contract with a third 
party for random safety and operational checks, the contract costs for such checks will be paid for by 
the County.  

 8. Audit. Valley Transit will include audit costs for its contracted ADA service in its budget without 
impact on the County’s cost. However, any audits required for ancillary services will be added to the 
total cost of those services, and the County’s cost impact will be as described in Section 1 above. 
Valley Transit shall establish and maintain accounts for the specialized transportation services 
receiving funding under this agreement. The accounts shall distinguish the costs of this 
transportation service from any other service. 

 9.  Records. Valley Transit shall maintain such records as necessary for a period of three years from the 
close of the Federal fiscal year to which they pertain, which said record keeping will enable Valley 
Transit to meet any responsibilities it may have to the state and federal government. 

 10. Inspection. Valley Transit will allow inspection of records and programs, insofar as it is permitted by 
state and federal law, by representatives of the County, the Area Agency on Aging, the Department 
of Health and Social services and its authorized agents, and federal agencies, in order to confirm 
Valley Transit's compliance with the specifications of this agreement. 

 11. Disclosure. The use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible clients who 
receive services for any purpose not connected with the administration of the service under this 
Contract is prohibited except with the informed, written consent of the eligible client or the client’s 
legal guardian. 

 12. Indemnification. Each party to this agreement agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend the 
other party from and against all liability, loss, damage, costs or expenses which a signing party may 
sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of the other party's acts, errors or omissions. 

 13. Fares.  Between January 1 and December 31, 2025, fares for elderly and ADA eligible riders will be 
$4.00 in compliance with “origin to destination service” as defined in 49 CFR 37.3.  Fares for Sunday 
hours will be $11.00 in 2025.  

 14. Insurance. Valley Transit agrees that, in order to protect itself and the County, its Officers, Boards, 
Employees and Representatives under the indemnity provisions of the paragraph above, it will at all 
times during the term of this Contract keep in force as required at a minimum: 

Coverage        Limit 
1. Worker’s Compensation Statutory  $1,000,000 General Aggregate 
2. Comprehensive General Liability   $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
3. Auto Liability       $1,000,000 CSL 



 

 
 5 

Policies shall be issued by a company or companies authorized to do business in the State of 
Wisconsin and licensed by the Wisconsin Insurance Department. The County shall be given thirty 
(30) days advance notice of cancellation or non-renewal during the term of this Contract. 

In the event any action, suit, or other proceeding is brought against the County upon any matter 
herein indemnified against, the County shall, within five (5) working days, give notice thereof to 
Valley Transit and shall cooperate with their attorneys in the defense of the action, suit or other 
proceeding. 

 15. Discrimination. In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, Valley Transit 
agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, 
religion, color, handicap, sex, physical condition, sexual orientation, developmental disability as 
defined in s51.01(5), Wisconsin Statutes, national origin, marital status, ancestry, arrest record, 
conviction record, or membership in the National Guard, State Defense Force or any reserve 
component of the military forces of the United States or this state. This provision shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
section for training, including apprenticeship. Valley Transit further agrees to take affirmative action 
to ensure equal employment opportunities. 

 16. Conditions. This Contract is contingent upon authorization of Wisconsin and United States law and 
any material amendment or repeal of the same affecting relevant funding, or authority of the County 
or the City shall serve to terminate this Contract, except as further agreed to by the parties hereto. It 
is also contingent upon continued funding by Valley Transit and the County in its budgetary process 
in the option years of this Agreement and upon the City continuing the operation of Valley Transit. 

 17. Modification/Termination. Failure to comply with any part of this agreement may be considered 
cause for revision, suspension, or termination. 

Revision or modification of this agreement must be agreed to by all parties involved by an 
addendum signed by the authorized representative of both parties. 

This agreement can be reopened if State and Federal funding regulations restrict the type of service 
that can be funded in any ADA or ancillary service component of the Valley Transit budget. This does 
not apply to the federal funding rate. 

18. Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, either by original signature 
or verified electronic signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts shall 
together constitute but one and the same agreement.  The headings in this Agreement are inserted for 
convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part hereof. 

 

SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE NEXT PAGE 



 

 
 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the forgoing instrument to be executed on the date of last 
signature below. 

 
CITY OF APPLETON 

 
 

BY: _____________________________________ BY: ______________________________________ 
       JACOB A. WOODFORD, MAYOR                    KAMI LYNCH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY THE LIABILITY,  
WHICH WILL ACCRUE UNDER THE CONTRACT.    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________   __________________________________________ 
JERI A. OHMAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR     CHRISTOPHER R. BEHRENS, CITY ATTORNEY 

 
             
 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
 

 
BY:_________________________________________ 
       JONATHAN DOEMEL, COUNTY EXECUTIVE 

          
            DATE: ________________________________________ 
 
               
            BY: __________________________________________ 
                   SUE ERTMER, COUNTY CLERK 
 
            DATE: ________________________________________ 
 
CL: 22-0939AKA.DG 



 

  
 

2025 INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.0301 
 BETWEEN THE CITY OF APPLETON AND CALUMET COUNTY  

TO PROVIDE FOR COST SHARING OF TRANSIT SERVICE FOR ELDERLY AND DISABLED INDIVIDUALS 
 

I. THE PARTIES 
 
City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 100 North Appleton Street, 
Appleton, Wisconsin   54911-4799 (“City”). 
 
Calumet County, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 206 Court Street, Chilton, Wisconsin    
53014 (“County”). 
 
Together, the municipalities may be jointly referred to as “the Parties”.   
 

II. THE RECITALS  
 
WHEREAS, the Americans with Disabilities Act ( “ADA” ), has resulted in an increase in trips provided by 
the City’s wholly owned transit service, Valley Transit, for individuals covered by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the City, in furtherance of the goals fostered by the ADA, wish to coordinate 
service to offset the increase in costs; and 

WHEREAS, Section 66.0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes, provides a means by which municipalities may 
agree to share the cost of mutually beneficial services; and 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of Valley Transit and assumes responsibility for and direction of its 
operations; 

III. THE AGREEMENT  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the County, by their respective authorized representatives, do hereby 
agree as follows: 

 1.  Cost Sharing Arrangements.  

A. ADA and Sunday Service 

The County agrees to pay the local share of ADA and Sunday paratransit contract costs for 
trips originating in the County portion of Valley Transit’s ADA service area (all of the parts of 
the Cities of Appleton and Menasha that lie within Calumet County and the area that is within 
3/4 of a mile from all Valley Transit fixed routes within the Village of Harrison). The parties 
agree that approximately 3% of such trips occur in the Calumet County portion of Valley 
Transit’s service area. The parties further agree that, throughout this Agreement, wherever 
reference is made to Valley Transit having obligations or responsibilities, the City, as the 
contracting party and the owner of Valley Transit assures the compliance of Valley Transit with 
all of these duties and responsibilities. 

The formula for computing Calumet County's actual ADA funding contribution will be as 
follows: 

Calumet County Rides x Contract Cost 
+ Administrative Charges (3%) 



 

  
 

- Federal Share 
- State Share 
- Farebox Revenues                         
= Calumet County's Estimated ADA Funding Requirement 

In 2025, Valley Transit estimates 100,000 ADA rides of which it is estimated that 3% will 
originate in Calumet County. The base contract cost per ride is estimated to average $25.50 
with a separate charge for administrative expenses.  The Federal and State shares are 
estimated to be 28% and 28% respectively; therefore, the County’s estimated funding 
requirements will be: 

$76,500   Costs (3,000 rides at $25.50 per ride) 
       $13,217  Administrative charges (3%) 

       ($26,018)  Federal Share 
       ($26,018)  State Share 

 $ ($12,000)  Fares (3,000 rides at $4.00 per ride) 
 $25,681  Estimated funding 

  
The County’s actual costs will be based on actual ridership, contract costs (including fuel), 
federal share, state share, and fares in 2025. The full percentage of federal and state shares 
received by Valley Transit for transit funding assistance shall be applied to this service. All fares 
received as payment for the Calumet County service shall also be applied in this formula. 
 

B. Elderly and Sunday Service 

As part of the service contract for ADA rides, Valley Transit will also provide rides on Sundays 
to ADA eligible and the elderly (non-ADA eligible). Calumet County may require certification 
of elderly riders for eligibility of this service. The service will be provided in the same service 
area described earlier. The formula for computing the County's actual contribution for this 
ancillary service will be based on the following: 

Calumet County Rides x Contract Cost 
- Federal Share 
- State Share 
- Farebox Revenue 

+ Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 State Share) 
= Calumet County's Estimated Ancillary Funding Requirement 

The contract costs (including fuel) for elderly rides will be $25.50; Sunday service will be 
$25.50.  In 2025, Valley Transit estimates 150 Calumet County elderly trips and 15 Sunday trips 
with estimated costs as follows: 

  
  $3,825   Elderly Costs (150 x $25.50) 
           ($1,109) Federal Share 
           ($1,109)  State Share 
          ($600)  Fares (150 x $4.00/ride) 
     $ 740  Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share) 
  $ 1,747 Estimated funding 

  
  



 

  
 

                          $383 Sunday Costs (15 x $25.50) 
          ($111)  Federal Share 
          ($111)  State Share 
         ($165)  Fares (15 x $11.00/ride) 

 $   74  Local Surcharge (1/3 of Federal plus 1/3 of State Share) 
 $   70  Estimated funding 

 

  Actual County costs will be based on actual ridership, contract costs per ride, federal share, state 
share, and fares in 2025. The full percentage of federal and state shares received by Valley Transit 
for transit funding assistance shall be applied in this formula. All fares received as payment for the 
Calumet County service shall also be applied in this formula. 

 C. Other Ancillary Transportation Service 

   1) As part of this agreement, Valley Transit will be the funding mechanism for the rural 
van service. This service will be managed by the County separately from Valley 
Transit’s ADA paratransit (which combines with elderly, Sunday, and evening 
service) contract service which Valley Transit will manage. 

The formula for computing the County's funding contribution will be as follows: 

   Cost of Service 
-  Federal Share 
-  State Share 
-  Fares 

    + Local Surcharge (1/2 of Federal plus 1/2 of State Share) 
= Calumet County's Estimated Ancillary Funding Requirement 

 

 In 2025 the cost estimate is as follows: 

$ 37,620  Costs  
(10,910)  Federal Share 
(10,910)  State Share 

 (18,700)  Fares  
 $  10,910  Local Surcharge (1/2 of Federal plus 1/2 of State Share) 

 $  8,010  Estimated funding 
      

2. Method of Payment. The County will pay Valley Transit the gross cost of ADA mandated 
paratransit, ADA optional paratransit, and elderly (non-ADA eligible) service on a quarterly basis 
upon receipt by Valley Transit of quarterly ridership reports. Valley Transit will invoice for this 
service. Federal and State operating assistance will be reimbursed to the County on a quarterly 
basis. 

The County will pay Valley Transit monthly for the other Ancillary Services based on billings 
received from the provider.  Valley Transit will invoice for this service also.  All payments are due 
30 days from the invoice date.  Interest will accrue at a rate of 18% per year (1.5% per month) 
thereafter. 

 

 



 

  
 

 3. Service Criteria. 

  Elderly Service.  Service to the elderly will be provided between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m. Monday through Friday.  

  ADA Service.  Service to people with disabilities will be provided Monday through Saturday in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.    

  Sunday Service.  Service to people with disabilities will be provided on Sundays, 7:30 a.m. to 2:00 
p.m. 

  General.   There will be no service on six of the holidays where Valley Transit does not 
operate (Christmas, New Years, Labor Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, and 
Thanksgiving). All ADA paratransit and elderly service will be in compliance with 
ADA regulation, 49 CFR Section 37.131. 

 4. Eligibility.  

Elderly Service.  Service will be provided to the elderly (those persons aged 60 and over who are 
not eligible for ADA services), although the County will encourage the use of 
Valley Transit’s fixed route service when possible.  

Sunday ADA.  Sunday service will be available to ADA eligible persons.  

  ADA Service.  ADA eligibility is consistent with the ADA regulations, 49 CFR Section 37.125. The 
service will allow advance reservation up to 14 days in advance of a trip and 
ensure that ADA subscription trips not absorb more than 50 percent of the ADA 
trips at a given time unless modified by both parties to this contract.  

 5. Length of Agreement. This agreement shall be in effect commencing on January 1, 2025, through 
December 31, 2025.  

 6.  Statistical Reports. Valley Transit agrees to provide the County information sufficient to complete 
the Calumet County semi-annual reports for submission to the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation as a requirement of the Section 85.21 transportation assistance program. The 
information submitted must pertain to the service identified in this agreement and must be 
provided in a timely manner. Valley Transit will also provide to the County all other reasonable 
ridership or financial information which the County requests.  

 7. Safety. Valley Transit will use internal staff to monitor the safety and operational requirements of 
its contracted ADA, elderly, Sunday and evening service and Calumet County Van Service.  

 8. Audit. Valley Transit will include audit costs for its contracted ADA service in its budget without 
impact on the County’s cost. Valley Transit shall establish and maintain accounts for the 
specialized transportation services receiving funding under this agreement. The accounts shall 
distinguish the costs of this transportation service from any other service. 

 9.  Records. Valley Transit shall maintain such records as necessary for a period of three years from 
the close of the Federal fiscal year to which they pertain, which said record keeping will enable 
Valley Transit to meet any responsibilities it may have to the state and federal government. 

 10. Inspection. Valley Transit will allow inspection of records and programs, insofar as it is permitted 
by state and federal law, by representatives of Calumet County, the Area Agency on Aging, the 
Department of Health and Social services and its authorized agents, and federal agencies, in order 
to confirm Valley Transit’s compliance with the specifications of this agreement. 



 

  
 

 11. Disclosure. The use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible clients who 
receive services for any purpose not connected with the administration of the service under this 
Contract is prohibited except with the informed, written consent of the eligible client or the 
client’s legal guardian. 

 12. Indemnification. Each party to this agreement agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend 
the other party from and against all liability, loss, damage, costs or expenses which a signing party 
may sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of the other party's acts, errors or omissions. 

 13. Fares. Between January 1 and December 31, 2025, fares for elderly and ADA eligible riders will be 
$4.00 in compliance with “origin to destination service” as defined in 49 CFR 37.3.  Fares for Sunday 
service will be $11.00 in 2025.   

 14. Insurance. Valley Transit agrees that, in order to protect itself and the County, its Officers, Boards, 
Employees and Representatives under the indemnity provisions of the paragraph above, it will at 
all times during the term of this Contract keep in force as required at a minimum: 

 Coverage         Limit 

 1. Worker’s Compensation Statutory    $1,000,000 General Aggregate 
 2. Comprehensive General Liability    $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 3. Auto Liability        $1,000,000 CSL 

Policies shall be issued by a company or companies authorized to do business in the State of 
Wisconsin and licensed by the Wisconsin Insurance Department. The County shall be given thirty 
(30) days advance notice of cancellation or non-renewal during the term of this Contract. 

In the event any action, suit, or other proceeding is brought against the County upon any matter 
herein indemnified against, the County shall, within five (5) working days, give notice thereof to 
Valley Transit and shall cooperate with their attorneys in the defense of the action, suit or other 
proceeding. 

 15. Discrimination. In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, Valley Transit 
agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, 
race, religion, color, handicap, sex, physical condition, sexual orientation, developmental disability 
as defined in s51.01(5), Wisconsin Statutes, national origin, marital status, ancestry, arrest record, 
conviction record, or membership in the National Guard, State Defense Force or any reserve 
component of the military forces of the United States or this state. This provision shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or 
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
section for training, including apprenticeship. Valley Transit further agrees to take affirmative 
action to ensure equal employment opportunities. 

 16. Conditions. This Contract is contingent upon authorization of Wisconsin and United States law 
and any material amendment or repeal of the same affecting relevant funding, or authority of the  
County or the City shall serve to terminate this Contract, except as further agreed to by the parties 
hereto. It is also contingent upon continued funding by Valley Transit and the County in its 
budgetary process in the option years of this Agreement and upon the City’s continuing the 
operation of Valley Transit. 

 17. Modification/Termination. Failure to comply with any part of this agreement may be considered 
cause for revision, suspension, or termination. 



 

  
 

Revision or modification of this agreement must be agreed to by all parties involved by an 
addendum signed by the authorized representative of both parties. 

This agreement can be reopened if State and Federal funding regulations restrict the type of 
service that can be funded in any ADA or ancillary service component of the Valley Transit budget. 
This does not apply to the federal funding rate. 

18.  Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, either by original 
signature or verified electronic signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same agreement.  The headings in this 
Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the forgoing instrument to be executed on   the date of 
last signature below. 
 

CITY OF APPLETON 
 
 
 

BY: ___________________________________  By:_____________________________________ 
 JACOB A. WOODFORD, MAYOR                 KAMI LYNCH, CITY CLERK 
 
 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY THE LIABILITY,  
WHICH WILL ACCRUE UNDER THE CONTRACT.    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JERI A. OHMAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR      CHRISTOPHER R. BEHRENS, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 

CALUMET COUNTY 
 
 

BY: ___________________________________________ 
       TODD M. ROMENESKO, ADMINISTRATOR  

            
           DATE: _________________________________________ 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________________ 
KIMBERLY TENERELLI, CORPORATION COUNSEL 
 
CL: A22-0939AKA.DG 

 



1 

 
2025 INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.0301 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF APPLETON AND THE CITY OF NEENAH 
TO PROVIDE FOR COST-SHARING OF TRANSIT SERVICES FOR THE ELDERLY 

 
I.  THE PARTIES 

 
The City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 100 North Appleton Street, 
Appleton, Wisconsin   54911-4799 (“Appleton”). 
 
The City of Neenah, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 211 Walnut Street, Neenah, 
Wisconsin   54956 (“Neenah”). 
 
Together, the municipalities may be jointly referred to as “the Parties”.   
 

II. THE RECITALS  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton, the owner of Valley Transit, assumes responsibility for and direction of its 
operations, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Neenah operates Northern Winnebago Dial-A-Ride, a transportation program 
(hereinafter referred to as "DIAL-A-RIDE") for the benefit of the elderly of the Cities of Neenah and Menasha, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton and the City of Neenah wish to coordinate services to maximize outside 
revenue sources. 

III. THE AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Appleton and the City of Neenah by their respective representatives, do 
hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. COST-SHARING AGREEMENT. 
 Expenses for the Dial-A-Ride program will be shared based on the following formula: 
 
     Dial-A-Ride x Contract Cost 
  -  Federal Share 
  -  State Share 
  -  Farebox Revenues 
  + Administrative Charge 
  = City of Neenah Estimated Contribution 
 
Valley Transit and the City of Neenah estimate that there will be 5,000 rides in 2025.  Cost estimates are as 
follows: 

Cost for Dial-A-Ride (5,000 X $18.57) $92,850 
Federal Share (20,628) 
State Share  (20,628) 
Fares (5,000 X $3.50) (17,500) 
Administrative Charge 9,285  
The City of Neenah Estimated Contribution* $43,379 



2 

Actual costs will be based on actual ridership, federal share, state share, and fares in 2025. 
 
*This cost figure is illustrative given that the amounts used in the formula are estimates. 
 
2. METHOD OF PAYMENT.   Payment by Valley Transit to the contractor will be made monthly based 

on ridership information provided by the City of Neenah to Valley Transit.  Valley Transit will invoice 
the City of Neenah for its contribution on a monthly basis. 

 
3. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT.  This agreement shall be for the calendar year 2025.  Renewal shall occur 

upon mutual agreement by the parties 30 days prior to the termination date of this contract. 
 
4. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND REPORTING.   Valley Transit and the City of Neenah shall be 

responsible for administration of the Dial-A-Ride Program.   
 
5. INSPECTION.  Both parties agree to allow inspection of each other's records and books so far as 

permitted by law.  Record inspection shall be allowed upon reasonable notice in order to confirm 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

 
6. AUDIT.  Any audits required for Dial-A-Ride services will be added to the total cost of those services, 

and the City of Neenah's cost impact will be as described in Section 1 above. Valley Transit shall 
establish and maintain accounts for the specialized transportation services receiving funding under 
this agreement.  The accounts shall distinguish the costs of this transportation service from any other 
service. 

 
7. INDEMNIFICATION. Each party to this agreement agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend 

the other party from and against all liability, loss, damage, costs or expenses which a signing party 
may sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of the other party's acts, errors or omissions. 

 
8. INSURANCE.  The City of Appleton and the City of Neenah agree at all times during the existence of 

this Agreement to keep in force the following insurance coverages: 
 
  Coverage     Limit 
  Worker's Compensation    Statutory Limit 
  Comprehensive General Liability  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
  Auto Liability     $1,000,000 CSL 
 
9. DISCRIMINATION.  In connection with the performance of work under this agreement, the City of 

Appleton and the City of Neenah agree not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, religion, color, handicap, sex, physical condition, sexual 
orientation, development disability as defined in §5101 (5), Wis. Stats., national origin, marital status, 
ancestry, arrest record, conviction record, or membership in the National Guard, State Defense Force 
or any reserve component of the military forces of the United States or this State.  This provision shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following:  employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other form of 
compensation; and section for training, including apprenticeship.  Valley Transit further agrees to 
take affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunities. 

 
10. CONDITIONS.  This agreement is contingent upon authorization of Wisconsin and United States law 

and any material amendment or repeal of the same affecting relevant funding, or authority of the 
City of Appleton and the City of Neenah shall serve to terminate this agreement. 

 



3 

11. MODIFICATION/TERMINATION.  Failure to comply with any material part of this agreement may be 
considered cause for revision, suspension, or termination.  

 
 Revision or modification of this agreement must be agreed to by all parties involved by a written 

addendum signed by the authorized representatives of each party. 
 
12.  ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, either by original 

signature or verified electronic signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same agreement.  The headings in this 
Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part hereof. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the forgoing instrument to be executed on   this ______ day 
of ________________________, 2024.  
 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 
 
  



4 

CITY OF APPLETON 
 
 

BY: _________________________________  By: ________________________________ 
      JACOB A. WOODFORD, MAYOR              KAMI LYNCH, CITY CLERK  
 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY THE LIABILITY,  
WHICH WILL ACCRUE UNDER THE CONTRACT.    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________  ___________________________________ 
JERI A. OHMAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR     CHRISTOPHER R. BEHRENS, CITY ATTORNEY  

 
 

CITY OF NEENAH 
 

 
     BY:______________________________ _________________ 
           JANE B. LANG, MAYOR   DATE 
 
     BY:______________________________ _________________ 
           CHARLOTTE K. NAGEL, CITY CLERK  DATE 
    
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
DAVID C. RASHID, CITY ATTORNEY  
 



1 

 
2025 INTERMUNICIPAL AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. § 66.0301 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF APPLETON AND THE VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING, 

TO PROVIDE FOR COST-SHARING OF TRANSIT SERVICES FOR THE ELDERLY 
 

I.  THE PARTIES 
 
The City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 100 North Appleton Street, 
Appleton, Wisconsin   54911-4799 (“Appleton”). 
 
The Village of Fox Crossing, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, doing business at 2000 Municipal Drive, 
Neenah Wisconsin   54956 (“Fox Crossing”).  
 
Together, the municipalities may be jointly referred to as “the Parties”.   
 

II. THE RECITALS  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton, the owner of Valley Transit, assumes responsibility for and direction of its 
operations, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Fox Crossing operates Northern Winnebago Dial-A-Ride, a transportation program 
(hereinafter referred to as "DIAL-A-RIDE") for the benefit of the Village of Fox Crossing, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Appleton and the Village of Fox Crossing wish to coordinate services to maximize 
outside revenue sources. 
 

III. THE AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Appleton the Village of Fox Crossing by their respective representatives, do 
hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. COST-SHARING AGREEMENT. 
 Expenses for the Dial-A-Ride program will be shared based on the following formula: 
 
     Dial-A-Ride x Contract Cost 
  -  Federal Share 
  -  State Share 
  -  Farebox Revenues 
  + Administrative Charge 
  = Village of Fox Crossing Estimated Contribution 
 
Valley Transit and the Village of Fox Crossing estimate that there will be 1,000 rides in 2025.  Cost estimates 
are as follows: 

Cost for Dial-A-Ride (1,000 X $18.57) $18,570 
Federal Share (4,127) 
State Share  (4,127) 
Fares (1,000 X $3.50) (3,500) 
Administrative Charge 1,857  
The Village of Fox Crossing Estimated Contribution* $8,673 



2 

Actual costs will be based on actual ridership, federal share, state share, and fares in 2025. 
 
*This cost figure is illustrative given that the amounts used in the formula are estimates. 
 
2. METHOD OF PAYMENT.   Payment by Valley Transit to the contractor will be made monthly based 

on ridership information provided by the Village of Fox Crossing to Valley Transit.  Valley Transit will 
invoice the Village of Fox Crossing for its contribution on a monthly basis. 

 
3. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT.  This agreement shall be for the calendar year 2025.  Renewal shall occur 

upon mutual agreement by the parties 30 days prior to the termination date of this contract. 
 
4. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AND REPORTING.   Valley Transit and the Village of Fox Crossing 

shall be responsible for administration of the Dial-A-Ride Program.   
 
5. INSPECTION.  Both parties agree to allow inspection of each other's records and books so far as 

permitted by law.  Record inspection shall be allowed upon reasonable notice in order to confirm 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this agreement. 

 
6. AUDIT.  Any audits required for Dial-A-Ride services will be added to the total cost of those services 

and the Village of Fox Crossing’s cost impact will be as described in Section 1 above. Valley Transit 
shall establish and maintain accounts for the specialized transportation services receiving funding 
under this agreement.  The accounts shall distinguish the costs of this transportation service from 
any other service. 

 
7. INDEMNIFICATION. Each party to this agreement agrees to indemnify, save harmless and defend 

the other party from and against all liability, loss, damage, costs or expenses which a signing party 
may sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of the other party's acts, errors or omissions. 

 
8. INSURANCE.  The City of Appleton and the Village of Fox Crossing agree at all times during the 

existence of this Agreement to keep in force the following insurance coverages: 
 
  Coverage     Limit 
  Worker's Compensation    Statutory Limit 
  Comprehensive General Liability  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
  Auto Liability     $1,000,000 CSL 
 
9. DISCRIMINATION.  In connection with the performance of work under this agreement, the City of 

Appleton the Village of Fox Crossing agree not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of age, race, religion, color, handicap, sex, physical condition, sexual 
orientation, development disability as defined in §5101 (5), Wis. Stats., national origin, marital status, 
ancestry, arrest record, conviction record, or membership in the National Guard, State Defense Force 
or any reserve component of the military forces of the United States or this State.  This provision shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following:  employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; 
recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other form of 
compensation; and section for training, including apprenticeship.  Valley Transit further agrees to 
take affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunities. 

 
10. CONDITIONS.  This agreement is contingent upon authorization of Wisconsin and United States law 

and any material amendment or repeal of the same affecting relevant funding, or authority of the 
City of Appleton and the Village of Fox Crossing shall serve to terminate this agreement. 

 



3 

11. MODIFICATION/TERMINATION.  Failure to comply with any material part of this agreement may be 
considered cause for revision, suspension, or termination.  

 
 Revision or modification of this agreement must be agreed to by all parties involved by a written 

addendum signed by the authorized representatives of each party. 
 
12.  ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, either by original 

signature or verified electronic signature, each of which shall be deemed an original, but such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same agreement.  The headings in this 
Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part hereof. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the forgoing instrument to be executed on   this ______ day 
of ________________________, 2024.  
 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE 
 
  



4 

CITY OF APPLETON 
 
 

BY: _________________________________  By: ________________________________ 
      JACOB A. WOODFORD, MAYOR              KAMI LYNCH, CITY CLERK  
 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY THE LIABILITY,  
WHICH WILL ACCRUE UNDER THE CONTRACT.    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________  ___________________________________ 
JERI A. OHMAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR     CHRISTOPHER R. BEHRENS, CITY ATTORNEY  

 
 

DAVID C. RASHID, CITY ATTORNEY  
 

VILLAGE OF FOX CROSSING 
 

    
     BY:______________________________  ______________ 
             DALE YOUNGQUIST, VILLAGE PRESIDENT  DATE 
         
    
     BY:______________________________  _______________ 
                      DARLA M. FINK, VILLAGE CLERK   DATE 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
ANDY ROSSMEISSI, VILLAGE ATTORNEY 
CL: A22-0939AKA 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 12-4-24
	0003_1_Dec 18 2024 Council Appointment Memo
	0004_1_Morrison St Design Changes 12-09-2024 
	0005_1_Award 2025 SCS Mackville 12-09-2024 
	0006_1_Sole Source Purchase Request - Traffic Equipment 2025
	0007_1_Crystal Williams Application
	0007_2_Crystal Williams Clerk's Letter
	0007_3_Crystal Williams denial letter
	0007_4_Crystal Williams supplemental denial
	0007_5_Crystal Williams Operator License Memo
	0007_6_Letter provided by Crystal Williams 12.11.24
	0008_1_2025 SECONDHAND.PAWN RENEWALS
	0009_1_Sushi Lover in Appleton LLC.Alcohol.Class B Beer_Liquor.11.11.24.REDACTED
	0010_1_Missfits Tavern.Eldorado Moon LLC.Alcohol.Class B Beer_Liquor.11.11.24.REDACTED
	0011_1_Mad Elephant.Tast of Thai Appleton LLC. Alcohol. Class B Beer_Liquor.11.25.24.REDACTED
	0012_1_2025 Sole Source Memo
	0012_2_Armor Express - PD
	0013_1_Request_to_Apply_AFG_SCBA
	0014_1_12-04-24_Request_to_Purchase_Cardiac_Monitors
	0015_1_0515 - Lawe - Relocation Order (12-02-2024).pdf
	0016_1_MemoContractExtension_BMCARPA
	0017_1_0288 - Lumbini - Development Agreement - Draft 12-03-2024.pdf
	0017_2_LumbiniEstate_DAMemo_12052024
	0018_1_AR Write Off List 2024
	0018_2_PP Write off List 2024
	0019_1_241202_UCMHSU_contract extension 2025
	0020_1_2025A BC Plan Review Award Util Memo 12-10-2024
	0021_1_2025B raSmith Plan Review Award Util Memo 12-10-2024_r1
	0022_1_N-24 Contract Award Form w Bid Tabs
	N-24 Contract Award Form
	N-24 BID TABS

	0023_1_K-24 NES Contract Amend Util Memo 12-10-2024
	0024_1_241120_Utilities Memo_HEX Project Contract Amendment2
	0025_1_2025_North-Ridgeway Tower Coating Services Contact Award Memo
	0027_1_Over Hire HR Deputy Director
	0028_1_Strategic Planning RFP Memo
	0028_2_CP2 Strategic Plan Proposal
	0029_1_2025 Outagamie County Contract
	0030_1_2025 Winnebago County Contract
	0031_1_2025 Calumet County Contract
	0032_1_2025 NWDAR Neenah Contract
	0033_1_2025 NWDAR Fox Crossings Contract



